
 
 
 

Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 
ATTENTION:  This will be a virtual meeting of the Board of Directors pursuant 

 to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California. 
There will not be a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested member of the public  

can participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on this agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note:  In the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the District Secretary will adjourn the 
meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled for a future special meeting which shall be 

open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown Act. 
 
 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 

August 17, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 
Location: Virtual Meeting 

Novato, California 
  
 

Video Zoom Method 

 
 CLICK ON LINK BELOW:     SIGN IN TO ZOOM: 

 

 Go to:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82191971947 OR  Meeting ID:  821 9197 1947 
 
 Password: 466521      Password:  466521 

Call in Method: 
 
Dial:   +1 669 900 9128 
   +1 253 215 8782 
   +1 346 248 7799 
   +1 301 715 8592 
   +1 312 626 6799 
   +1 646 558 8656 
 
   Meeting ID: 821 9197 1947# 
 
   Participant ID:  # 
 
   Password: 466521# 
 

For clarity of discussion, the Public is requested to MUTE except: 
1. During Open Time for public expression item. 

2. Public comment period on agenda items. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82191971947
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Est. 

Time Item Subject 
6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, August 3, 2021 
 2.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 3.  OPEN TIME: (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 4.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 5.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT  

 6.  PRELIMINARY FY 2020/2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 
 7.  NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Design Development Overview and Cost 
 8.  STP Solar Power Facility – Status Report (Fiscal Year 2018/19 – 2020/21) 
 9.  Gallagher Well No. 2 – Coastal Permit Appeal to California Coastal Commission 
 10.  TAC Meeting Update – July 12, 2021 
 11.  MISCELLANEOUS 

Disbursements – Dated August 5, 2021 
Disbursements – Dated August 12, 2021 
SWRCB 20% Mandatory Reductions in Russian River Diversions – Tracking Status 
    (July 1 – August 5) 
Summer 2021 Drought Mailer 
Point Reyes Light – Salinity Notice August 5, 2021 
James D. “Jim” Fritz – Obituary and Jim Fritz leaves NMWD 
News Articles: 
Marin IJ - Marin county drought tracker 
Marin IJ – 1,081-home plan draws concern – NOVATO 
Marin IJ – Marin Voice – Supervisor touts conservation, growth amid water shortage 
Marin IJ – Utilities consider rationing of water – WEST MARIN 
Marin IJ – Landscaping restrictions eyed for new developments – MARIN MUNICIPAL 
Marin IJ – Strict watering rules approved for West Marin – DROUGHT CONCERNS 
Marin IJ – Desalination option shelved; focus now on bridge pipeline –MARIN MUNICIPAL 
Marin IJ – Opinion -Voters have role in Marin Municipal Water District shortage 
Marin IJ – Marin Voice – Water district board VP makes case for bridge pipeline 
Marin IJ – Editorial – Find ways to increase Marin water supply 
 
Social Media Posts: 
NMWD Web and Social Media Report – July 2021 
 

 12.  CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation Pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) - (disclosure of matter name would 
jeopardize existing settlement negotiations). 
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All times are approximate and for reference only.   
The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 
  

Est. 

Time Item Subject 

8:00 p.m. 13.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 





Item #1

1

2
3
4
5

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECÏORS

August 3,2021

CALL TO ORDER

President Grossi announced that due to the Coronavirus outbreak and pursuant to

Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California this was a virtual

meeting. President Grossi called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Notlh Marin

Water District to order at 6:01 p.m. and the agenda was accepted as presented. President Grossi

added that there was not a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested

members of the public could participate remotely by utilizing the video or phone conference dial-

in method using information printed on the agenda.

President Grossi announced in the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the

District Secretary will adjourn the meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled

for a future special meeting which shall be open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown

Act.

President Grossi welcomed the public to participate in the remote meeting and asked that

they mute themselves, except during open time and while making comments on the agenda items.

President Grossi noted that due to the virtual nature of the meeting he will request a roll call of

the Directors. A roll call was done, those in remote attendance established a quorum.

Participating remotely were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Jim Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle.

President Grossi announced all public attendees will be invited to speak and will need to

use the ralsed hand icon in Zoom or dial *9 to be called upon.

Mr. Mclntyre performed a roll call of staff, participating remotely were Drew Mclntyre

(General Manager), Tony Williams (Assistant GM/Chief Engineer), Terrie Kehoe (District

Secretary), Julie Blue (Auditor-Controller), Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance

Superintendent) and Tim Fuette (Senior Engineer). Also participating remotely were Carl Nelson

District legal counsel (BPMNJ) and lT consultant Kevin Cozarl. (Core Utilities).

President Grossi announced for those joining the virtual meeting from the public to identify

themselves. Participating remotely were Ken Levin (Point Reyes Station Village Association) and

Will Houston (Marin lJ).
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On motion of Director Joly seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved minutes from

the July 20,2021 Regular Board Meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GENERAL MANAGER,S REPORT

West Marin Salinit)¡ UPdate

Mr. Mclntyre reported the current sodium level for this week was 57 mg/L which means

NMWD will be placing a notice in this week's Point Reyes Light newspaper. He noted low saline

water will be made available for customers on salt restricted diets via a bottle fill station near the

Point Reyes Treatment Plant when sodium levels reach the 115lmglL threshold. Mr. Mclntyre

added staff will continue to monitor and test the water each week and repoft in the Point Reyes

Light accordingly.

COVID-19 Updelq

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board effective 12:01 a.m. August 17th, Bay Area heath

officials, including Marin County issued orders requiring the use of face coverings indoors to

prevent the spread of COVID. He stated this order applies to all individuals regardless of

vaccination status. Mr. Mclntyre added health officials reported they are very concerned about

the substantial levels of community transmission now found across the Bay Area in part due to

the widespread Delta variant. He added, due to the increase in COVID transmission in indoor

settings, coupled with the reinstated mask mandate, staff will be postponing any discussion

regarding returning to in-person meetings at this time. Mr. Mclntyre noted he will continue to

update the Board.

Russran River D rsion Trackino

Mr. Mclntyre apprised the Board that through the third week in July the Water Contractors

collectively have reduced Russian River diversions by 24o/o lhereby exceeding the state Order's

2Oo/o mandate so far, He stated we still have a long way to go this summer and fall; but this is a

good start,

Stafford Treat nt Plant Uodate

Mr. Mclntyre reported over the last couple of weeks Stafford Treatment Plant has been

operating at reduced capacity due to high algae and manganese concentrations. He noted
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however, the treatment plant staff have been able to operate sufficiently to keep Russian River

deliveries within 1o/o of our July target. Mr. Mclntyre stated August will be more challenging as

we have been informed by our primary coagulant supplier that there was a catastrophic failure at

the production facility significantly impacting ferric chloride deliveries. He added, staff are looking

at switching to a different chemical, however in the interim we are on a day to day operations

status based upon availability of ferric chloride. Mr. Mclntyre added ferric chloride supply

limitations are expected to continue through August, but the supplier states more chemical supply

will be available in September.

im Fritz

Mr. Mclntyre announced that it was with great sadness that he wished to inform the Board

that our former Chief Engineer and Board of Director, Jim Fritz, passed away last week. He noted

there has not been any news of any services that are being held, but Ms. Kehoe will keep the

Board updated.

Director Joly asked how many of years of service Mr. Fritz had with NMWD. Mr. Mclntyre

replied he was Chief Engineer for over 20 years and he was on the Board of Directors for one

four-year term. Director Joly noted it was wondedul he served the District for so many years.

Director Joly asked what the capacity of Lake Sonoma was and where the District was

with recycled water capacity. Mr. Mclntyre reporled as of Monday, Lake Sonoma was at 50%

and Lake Mendocino was at 3'1%. He added he expects the State Water Board will issue

additional curtailment orders for water right holders along the Russian River. Director Joly asked

what percentage of local supply was recycled water. Mr. Mclntyre responded he estimated at

least 12-15%. Director Joly noted Stafford Lake is at39% capacity and asked what capacity we

plan to draw it down to. Mr. Mclntyre replied aboul23o/o.

Director Petterle stated at the last meeting the Board rescinded the COVID-19 Declaration

of Emergency and asked if the District will need to renew that declaration. Mr. Mclntyre stated he

does not anticipate a need to re-instate this declaration at this time.

OPEN TIME

President Grossi asked if anyone from the public wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and the following were discussed.

Mr. Levin stated he appreciated letting the Point Reyes community know about the salinity

levels, noting everyone in town was happy to have another source of drinking water at

Commodore Webster. He also asked what the progress was on the Gallagher Well No. 2 project.

Mr. Mclntyre replied in response to the Gallagher Well No. 2 project he gave the Board an update
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on the appeal process at the last Board meeting. He added a more formal update will be provided

at the August 17th Board meeting.

Mr. Houston stated in respect to the recycled water station behind Fireman's Fund, he

wanted to give a shout out to District employee, David Ladd. He added he is an advocate for

expanding hours and locations. Mr. Houston stated he knows there are state permitting

requirements involved, but it would be nice if there were more stations set up so people can come

and go as the please. Director Grossi asked Mr. Mclntyre to look into this possibility. Mr. Mclntyre

first thanked Mr. Houston for acknowledging Mr. Ladd who took ownership of the recycled water

fill program. ln regards to additional fill stations, he responded that he and Mr. Williams already

had that discussion and are exploring options to streamline regulatory requirements, but the state

ultimately governs how we run the program. Mr. Mclntyre added the District is extending fill station

hours to include Saturdays.

STAF F/DI RECTO RS REP O RTS

President Grossi asked if any Directors or staff wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

CONSENT ITEMS

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

the following item on the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

REVISED EN ERING TECH IV JOB

The Board approved the revised Engineer Tech lV Job Description. The revised Engineer

Technician lV job description reflects two distinct focus areas, including current duties and

requirements for education and experience. The revised job description was provided to the

NMWD Employee Association for review and approval was received on July 14,2021.

ACTION ITEM

AMENDING WEST RIN EMERGENCY WATER CONSERYA ORDINANCE 39

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board on May 5,2020, the Board adopted Ordinance No.39,

thereby declaring a water shortage emergency condition within the West Marin Service Area of

the District, prohibiting the waste and non-essential use of water. He noted pursuant to the

District's lnterconnection Agreement with Marin Municipal Water District, (MMWD), the District

must impose voluntary or mandatory water-use reductions and prohibitions on use within the West

NMWD Draft Minutes 4of7 August 3,2021



134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

Marin Service Area in accordance with those reductions and prohibitions imposed by MMWD

during water shortage emergencies. Mr. Mclntyre added at the May 1 8,2021 Board meeting, the

Board adopted a resolution implementing a drought surcharge for the West Marin Service Area

for the July 1 through November 1 period and amended Ordinance 39. Mr. Mclntyre stated the

May l Bth amendments to Section 6 of Ordinance No. 39 aligned the District's limitations on water

use with the limitations imposed by MMWD's Board on May 4th. He added staff have reviewed

the limitations imposed by MMWD's Board on July 6th and recommends that the District also limit

use of overhead irrigation to one day per week and drip irrigation to two days per week. Mr.

Mclntyre reporled West Marin water savings for July compared lo 2013 was 37% and compared

to 2O2O was 260/o. He noted when looking at the total gallons per capita per day for July, NMWD

West Marin customers are using less water than MMWD customers.

Director Grossi asked if there were any comments from the public and there were none.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Joly the Board approved

Resolution 21-17 amending Section 6 of Ordinance No. 39 by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

AMENDING TIONl_NEWSERVICE coNNECflOwS

Mr. Williams proposed amendments to Regulation 1 which would increase meter and

service line charges, revise the annexation recovery fee and also include other miscellaneous

revisions in multiple sections of Regulation 1.

Director Joly noted the resolution had a lot of changes, with many areas highlighted and

asked once it is approved if the public would be able to read it clearly on our website and see

what areas they need to look at. Mr. Williams replied all the District's regulations are posted on

our website and Regulation 1 will include a new revision date.

Director Grossi asked how staff determines if a parcel needs to be annexed or know if it

is within our service area. Mr, Williams discussed the District's GIS mapping information and how

it is used by staff to determine LAFCo approved Service Territories and also actual lmprovement

District boundaries.

Director Joly asked if the Board approved the resolution, how would it impact people who

are already underway in the process. Mr. Williams replied any application received by August 3'd

would not be affected by the regulation changes. Mr. Williams also added he would like to

acknowledge Lia Solar and legal counsel for their assistance with the review and revisions.
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Director Joly commended Mr. Williams, stating it was a good review and after five years it was

time to update the fees.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board adopted

Resolution 21-18 approving an increase in the meter and service line charges, approved a revised

annexation recover fee and amended Regulation 1 by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

RE-DEC SURPTUS PROPERTIES. VATO (APNs 153-110-10. I 111-15. 153-

182-441

Mr. Williams stated in 2000 and 2001 the Board determined these Novato properties were

no longer in use and identified them as surplus properties. He noted since that time no actions

have been taken to dispose, negotiate or sell these properties. Mr. Williams added since 2001

there has been a change to the law requiring that a surplus declaration must be made by a "formal

action" which is why it has been brought back to the Board for approval. He added he worked

with legal counsel to bring this resolution to the Board to officially declare these parcels as surplus

so the District can dispose of them. Mr. Williams also noted there was a lot line adjustment done

that combines two of the parcels into one, however it is not official yet.

Director Petterle stated in the case of public schools, the school district would identify a

parcel as surplus and they were required to offer the parcel first to parks, open space, and land

management. He added they were also required to sell it to these agencies below market value,

and asked if the District would be required to do the same. Mr. Williams replied he will come back

to the Board with this process, however when we move forward to dispose of the parcels we will

reach out to the City of Novato and County of Marin, especially to parks and open space. He

added low-income housing developers that are registered may also be interested in these surplus

properties. Mr. Williams noted if none of the agencies show an interest then they can be sold on

the open market.

Director Grossi emphasized that the housing developers must provide affordable housing.

Mr. Williams confirmed, they must acknowledge the site be used only for affordable housing.

Director Grossi asked if there were any comments from the public and there was no

response.

On the motion of Director Fraites, and seconded by Director Baker the Board re-declared

the parcels to be surplus and adopted Resolution 21-19 to formalize the action by the following
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vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN. None

ABSENT: None

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements- Dated July 22,

2021, Disbursements- Dated July 29,2021, CaIPERS Preliminary lnvestment Returns FY

2Q2Ol21and FY2020121 4ti Quarter Labor Cost Report.

The Board received the following news articles: Marin U - Big Novato home project

unveiled; Marin lJ - Water limit for new development - MARIN MUNICIPAL; Point Reyes Light -
Supervisors uphold Norlh Marin well permit; Marin lJ - North Marin Water District looking to

expand supply - FACING THE DROUGHT and Point Reyes Light - Letters - NMWD came

through.

Director Joly stated he had question on a disbursement and will have a conversation with

Ms. Blue about it later in the week.

ctosED sEss/oN

President Grossi adjourned the regular session at 6:48 p.m. and the Board began the

closed session at 6:54 p.m. in accordance with Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing

Litigation Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) - (disclosure of matter

name would jeopardize existing settlement negotiations).

OPEN SESS/ON

Upon returning to the regular session at7:25 p.m., President Grossi announced the Board

had not taken any reportable action during closed session'

ADJOURNMENT

President Grossi adjourned the meeting at 7:26 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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Item #5
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR July 2021
August 17,2021

1.

Novato Potable Water Prodn - RR & STP Combined - in Míllion Gallons - FYTD
Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FYl8/19 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July 282.9 341 7 317 7

.Exc ludes water bac kfed into Stafford Lake : FY21=363.51 lVlG

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

341.1 33',t.0 -17%

Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July 6.0

Stafford Treatment Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

8.2 8.9 10.2 9.5 -26%

Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FYIB/I 9 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July 67.0 105.8 68.2 78.6 112.6 -37%

Month

d Water Productionn - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 9 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July 42.9 39.0 36.5 30.2 27.7 10o/o

.Exc ludes potabìe water input to the Rwsystem: FY22=0 MGI FY 21=24.7 lVlG; FY20=19.4; FY19=20,6 lVlG; FY 18= 15.8MG

t:\ac\excel\w tr use\[production.xlsx]nþ rpt

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is '196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡y¡Ç = quantity available for delivery

Temperature (in degrees)

Minimum Maximum Average
Julv 2021 (Novato) 50 o7 70

Julv 2020 (Novato) 52 104 6B

3. Number of Services

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (Julv)

1

July Average

0.01 lnches
0.01 lnches

187.6 Feet
835 MG

July 2021

0.00 lnches
0.00 lnches

181 .9 Feet
543 MG

July 2020

Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation*

0.00
0.00

184.4
660

lnches
lnches
Feet
MGLake sto e**

July 31

Novato Water Recycled Water West Marin Water Ocèana Marin Swr
FY22 FY21 lncr % FY22 FY21 lncr o/o FY22 FY21 lncr o/o FY22 FY21 lncr o/o

Total meters installed
Total meters actirc
Actiw dwelling units

24,U1 20,780 0.10k 99 98 1.0% 794 791 0.4%

20,610 20,559 0.2% 96 93 3.2% 785 782 0A%
24,094 24,077 0.1% 836 832 0.5% 235 235 0.0%

Description July 2021 July 2020

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.611 0.611

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0.304 0

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 5.3 5.8

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 12.5 o-7

t:\gm\progress report\cuffenl progress report july 2021.doc



5. Devetoper Proiects Status Report (Julv)

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.2820.00
1.2837.00
1.2831.00
1.2817 .03
1.2841.00
1.2821.00

Bahia Heights
McPhails Phase 2A
Landsea Homes
COM-Miwok Center
Hamilton Village
Atherton Place

0
0
0
1

50
2

96
99
95
96
70
98

District Proiects Status Report - Const. Dept. (Julvì

Job No Proiect % Complete % This month

2.6263.20 Replace PRE Tank 4A
1.7193.00 Glen Rd AC Pipe Replacement
'1.6600.87 STP Coat Top of Concrete Clearwells

Emplovee Hours to Date. FY 20/21

As of Pay Period Ending July 31 ,2021
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = B%

6. Safety/Liability

FY 22 through July

FY 2'1 through July

Days since lost time accident through July 31,202'l

\\nmwdserverl\ad minist rat ion\AC\EXC EL\ Personml\wc\WC.X LS

1 Days

'100

100
100

I
10

1

7. Energy Cost

Developer
Projects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

Construction 138 1,400 10% ffi Construction 11 3,460 0%

Enoineerinq 209 1,504 14% ffi Enqineerinq 111 2.722 5%

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp,

lnwlled

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYrD)

Paid
(FYTD)

($)

4
11

$896
$4,840

I
1

0

0
$

$

0

0

July Fiscal Year-to-Date thru July
FYE kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day

Pumping 155,206 27 .5ø $1 ,332 155,206 27 .5ø' $1 '332
Othe12 42,308 ' 91.1 $41 1 42,308' St.tç $411

239,280 27

2021 Stafford TP

Pumping

Other2

2020 Stafford TP

Pumping

Othe12

95,067
167,936

45,392

1e.6ø

25.8ø

29.5ø

$2,033

$601

ç1,497

9462

95,067 19.6ø
'167,936 25.8ø,

45,392 29.5ø

$601

$1,497

ç462
308,395 24.5ø $2,560 308,395 24.5ø $2,560

74,698
160,236

54,252

21.9ø
23.1(,

27.6ø

$527
$1,236

$499
23.7ø $2,262

74,698 21.9ø, $527
160,236 23.1ø, $1 ,236

54,252 27.6ç, $499

289,'186
lActual electricity used 37,8 1 0klVh.
2Other includes West Marin Facilities

l:\gm\progress reporl\current progress report july 2021.doc 2

T:\AC\Board Reporls\PGE\PG&E Usage\FY 21.22\[PGE Usage 07.2021Xlsx.xlsx]rc rpt



L Water Conservation UPdate

9. Utilitv Performance Metric

10. Summarv of COVID-19 Costs and Water Bill Delinquencv Impa cts - to Date

Total

lncrease in on-call Labor Costs

Payroll Accounts Receirable Collection Costs

Time offto Employees for COVID related reasons* -

Vendor Expenses - lncluding Legal Fees

Total Covid-19 Costs to Date $ 212,900

* Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) & CAsupplemental Paid Sick Leave (SPSL)

Allows employees to take time offfor COVID medical reasons includingvacc¡nation.

Water Bill DelinquencY lmPacts
2 Years Ago

0712019

$ 115,600

$ 10,400

$ 44,300

$ 42,600

Last Year

0712020

This Year

07t2021'l.

Customer Accounts Past Due (count)

Delinquent Balances % Due on Account

Delinquent Balances $ Due on Account $

T:\AC\Board Reports\B oard M emos\202 1[COVID Costs.xlsx] Progress Report

1.70/o

2.Bo/o

43,000 $

3.8%

7 .60/o

1 13,000

3.9o/o

11.8%

$ 1 31 ,000

J

Month of
Julv 2021

Fiscal Year to
Date

Program Total
to Date

H Efficien Toilet Rebates 17 17 4,292

Retrofit Certificates Filed 16 16 6,648

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out 10 10 958

Washi Machine Rebates 4 4 6,834

Water Smart Home SurveY 0 0 3,899

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS
No. of Customers lm

July 2021 July 2020 Fiscal Year to
Date 2021

Fiscal Year to
Date 2020

PLANNED

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 17 32 17 32

Duration Between 4 and '12 hours
Duration Greater than '12 hours
UNPLANNED
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 2 23 2 23

Duratio n Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours

REP
P lene 10 10 '10 10

Copper (Replaced or RePaired) 0 B

t:\gm\progress rePort\cutrelrt progress report july 2021 doc



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Comolaints Service Orders Julv 2O21

Jul-21 Jul-20 Action Taken Julv 2021
8t11t2021

Consumers' Problen
Service Line Leaks
Noisy Plumbing
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
High Pressure

Total

Service Repair RepoÉs
Meter Replacement
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

Total

Leak NMWD Facilities
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Fire Hydrants-Damaged
Meter Leak
Meters-Nothing Found
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill laints
Consumer Leaks
Nothing Found
Excessive lrrigation

Total

Low Bill Reports
Total

Water Qualitv Complaints
Total

TOTAL FOR MONTH:

FiscalYTD Summarv
Consumer's System Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak NMWD Facilities
High BillComplaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total

27
0

19
14

2

37
1

6
'10

I
62 55

Notified Consumer

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer
PRV failed advised to call plumber

Replaced
Replaced
Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

Repaired

Repaired

Repaired
Notified Consumer
Repaired

103 5%

3

3

6
9

1

6
5

0

21

12

0
1

0
J

1

8

22

I
1

2
2
0

0

10

25 23

0
0
0

30

00

0 0

108

62
21

25
0
0
0

55
22
23

3

0

0

13o/o

-5Yo

9o/o

-100%
0%
0%
5%

Chanqe P lv Due To
lncrease ln Nothing Found/Meter Off
Decrease ln Box and Lids

lncrease ln Service Leaks

Decrease ln Nothing Found

No Change
No Change

{08 103

c-1



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Complaints Service Orders Julv 2021

Jul-21 Jul-20 Action Taken Ju 2021

"ln House" Generated and
Completed Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

57

Chanqe Mefer leaks
hard to read

Possible Stuck Meter
Repair Meter: registers,

shut offs
Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Trims
Diq Outs
Letters to Consumer:

meter obstruction, trims,
bees, gate access, etc.
get meter number,
kill service, etc.

68 45

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy:

Julv 21 vs. Julv 20

8t11t2021

3B

4

0

0

0
1

0

2
0

7

1

3

0

0
0

0

0

Jul21
Jul-20

9

12
$1,072
$9,625

$1,072
$9,625

FiscalYear vs Prior FY

21t22 FY
20t21 FY

I
12

t:\cons sruc\compla¡nt report\[complain 22.xlsxliuly21
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To:

From

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Julie Blue, Auditor-Co ntroiler þ
Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor

Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for July 2021
t:iaclwordi¡nvèst\22\investncnt roport 072'1,doc

August 13,2021

Subj:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amoftized costvalue (i.e., cash balance)

of $24,303,707 and a market value oT $24,305,375, During July the cash balance decreased by

$257,915. The market value of securities held increased $1,668 during the month. The ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expen$e stood at 130Yo, down 8% from the prior month.

At July 31,2021, 837o of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's Local Agency

lnvestment Fund (LAtF),11þ/o in Time Cerlificatesof Deposit,4% inthe Marin CountyTreasury,and2o/o

retained locally for operating purpose$" The weighted average maturity of the portfolio was 28 days,

comparedto3l daysattheendofJune.TheLA|Finterestrateforthemonthwas0.22ô/o,comparedto

A.26ô/o the previoue month. The weighted average Portfolio rate was 0.36%, compared to 0.417o the

previous month.

lnvestment Transactions for the month of July are listed below:

US Bank
ank rs

LAIF account
Matured

to LAIF account
to account

$ 000.00
373,23

,000,0t0

Bank
LA

US Bank

LAIË'

LAIF

U$ Bank
1

1

7t1
7t2

7t1612421



Type Ðescriptlon

h¡ÕRTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AUDITOR"COh¡TROLLËR'S MONTHLY REPÕRT ÕF INVË$TMËNTS

July 31, 202{
S&P Purchase Mêlurìty Cost 713112021

Ralìng Date Date Basisl Market Value
AA- Various Open $2û,108,'11û $20,109,778

%of
Yield? Portfolio

ozz%,,--lsøLAIF

Time
TCD
TCD
TOD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCN
TCD
ÏCD
TGÜ
TCD

Bt23t21
9t7121

10t12t21
11115t21
12tgt21
1118122
st1l22
4t7¡22
4t18t22
5lSl22
9125124

247,00A
247,0AA
247,00ü
247,000
247,OÕt
247,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
24S,000

247,000
247,000
247,00t
247,0û0
247,000
247,Ot}
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,û00
249 00

75

1.85%
1.75Yo

1.70ak
1.75Yo

1.65%
1.75%
{ alìo/-

1.35%
1,20%
0.9û%
0.45o/ow

1o/o

1Yo

I '/Ð

1%

1%
10/

1%
t/d
10/tlo
1ö/o
40/t/o* - -7î%

State of CA Treasury

Cerliflcate of Ðeposif
Capital One Bank NA
Capital One Bank USA
Goldnlan Sachs Bank U$A
Flagstar Bank
Synovus Bank
Morgan Stanley Bank
Wells Fargo National Bank
American Ëxpress Natl Bank
Synchrony Bank
Pinnacle Bank
Enerbank

nla Bl21l1S
nla 9/6/1S
nla 1011 1/1S
nla 11l15hS
n/a 12lSl19
n/a 111612.0

n/a 31612û

n/a 417120

n/a 4117120

n/a 5l7l2j
n/a 9125120

Ather
Agency Mari¡r Co Treasury
Other Variouc

AAA Various Open
nla Various Open

TATAL IN PÐRTFOLIO

$1,û45,r 08 0.22% tôt

0.41a/" 20,1ö
-õ'3õ.%" ---lT6%-

s f ,045,1 0B

Weighted Average Maturity = 28 qqyq

LAìF: StaÌe of Calitornia Local Agency lr'ìveslnlent Fund^

TCD: Time Certificate of Deposìt,

Agencyi STP Stale Revolv¡ng Fund Loan Reserve.
Oihei: Contprised ôf 5 arcounls usecl for operatìrrg purposes. US Bank Operat¡ng Acùount, US Bank SIP SRF Loan

Accoutlt, US Bänk FSA Pâynlents Acrrór,rnt, Êank of lvlarín AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petly Cash Fund.

1 Origlnal cost less tepävmonl óf principãl ¿nd amortizatÌon of premium or discount'

2 Yield delíned to be annuãlizecl ìnteÍest earnings lo nlalurity ãs a percentage of invested funds.

3 Earningsarecalculaledda¡ly-thisrepresentslheâverÉ¡geyieldforthernùntheûd¡ngJ(|y31,2021.

Original
I oan Àmol¡nt

4lt

Principal
Õr rtstanrlínai

{nlerest
Ráte

Lc¡an MaturÍty

lnferesf Bearinq Loans Date Date

Marin Country Club Loan 111t18 1111147

Marin Mr"rnicÍpal Wafer - AEEP 711114 711!32

Ernployee Hous¡ng Loans (2) Varìous Various
T OT AL IIiTTEREST BËARIÅ,Ë LÙA,VS

525.000 525,000
-----s53süãCI6 -"-'- --sãF6l44t

$J,265,2S5
$3,rì00,000

$1,130,210
s1,S30,238

1.00%
2.71%

Cônt¡ngent

The Distric{ has the abillty to mËet the nÈxt six months of tash flow requirernents"
t: r¡¿!ùnl¡ nls\h!0nlterì!9i2),{0:2 I .u fsìûì6 rf;i
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MEMORANDUM

To. Drew Mclntyre, General Manager August 13,2021

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Subj, lnformation - FY20l21 June Financial Statement
t:\accountants\financials\stmtfy2'l \md&a0621.doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Rerenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Rercnue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)
. 

See Page B.

Jun-21
Actual
$3,163,604

1,918,204
(64,447)

$1 ,180,953
(1,513,127)

$1,081,242
1,235,056

$849,000
(4,817,000)

FYTD /
Budget %

112%
1 11o/o

149o/o

127Vo

FY20t21 FY20t21
Actual YTD Budget

$25,345,803 $22,646,000
23,967,781 21,598,000

(2e6,780) (1ee,000)

($332'1?4) $2'316 ($3,e68,000)

For the fiscal year 2020-2021, the District generated a net income of $1,081 ,242 and saw a net cash
increase of $2,316,298. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in12% overbudget
and Operating Expense came in 11% over budget. The primary driver of the increased expense was
the need to backfeed water into Stafford Lake. $3,381,228 (49Yo) of the Capital lmprovement Projects
Budget was expended this fiscal year. At month end the ratio of total cash to budgeted annual
operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at 138o/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Jun-21
Actual

$2,764,761
1,676,388

(58,52e)

FY20121
ActualYTD

FY19t20
ActualYTD

FY21 vs 20
Up/(Down)

7o/o

2o/o

230%

(0%)
3%
5o/o

229%
231%
128%

$22,401,348
21,172,303

(208,747)

$21,012,449
20,730,642

27 616

$1,029,844 $1 297

20,607
2,570
$6 66

$49.5'1

$0 40

$3,496,08e
($Beo,o72)

$10,733
$o

$994,377

____$!!9t??_
20,554
2,502
$6.37

$15.05
$0.1 2

$1,531,535
$689,600

$20,510
$0

$864,540

20,607
221

$10 44

$49 98

$4 65

$10,000
($e6,153)

$2,205
$0

$111,742

(48o/o)

$0
15%

Consumption for the fiscal year to date was 3% more than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased 7o/o ($1,388,899)
from the prior year. Total operating expense was $441,661 more than last year.

1



Memo - June Financial Statement
August 13, 2021
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 211 MG this fiscal year at a cost of $7,81g/MG'versus
$3,071/MG3 from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 650 MG at a cost of $3,305/MG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was g% less than last year. Salary and benefit cost was
$5,732,150, which was 88% of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $1,020,297 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $546,000 and to a net income of
$309,422 for the prior year. $1,833,179 (37o/o) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus $1,947,104 (460/0) for the prior year. $3,496,089 in connection fees have been
collected ($486,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $890,072 were transferred this
fiscal year from the Novato Water Fund to the Recycled Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee
Reserve has a net deficit of $4,908,761 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection
Fee receipts. This is down from a net deficit of $6,599,639 last year. That deficit will be reimbursed by
future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance decreased $69,344 in June, and stood at
$18,557,1 30 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $1 3,079,000 at fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)
Novato Sanitary Production (MG)
Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Connection Fee Alloc from Novato
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
RW Costs

_____$_129J_q9_ ($35,7e0)

96
255.8
$6.23

9.0
216.5

40.4
24.7

$890,072
$o

$309,398

Jun-21
Actual
$306,320

119,271
(10,8e6)

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$1 ,686,124
1,518,398
(203,516)

FY19t20
ActualYTD

$1,530,259
1,033,357

FY21 vs 20

Up/(Down)
10%
47%

(54%)

5%
9o/o

0o/o

42%
23o/o

(14%)
4ïYo

(100%)
(13%)

444,373\

$52,529

96
48.B

$6.1 6
0.0

35.9
9.4
6.8

($e6,1 53)
$0

(924,370)

91

235.3

$6.22
6.4

176.0
47.0
16.7

($6Be,6oo)

$10,000
$354,861

255.6 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year, 9o/o more than the prior year. Operating
revenue was 10% more than last year. Total operating expense was 47o/o more than the prior year. The
recycled water was produced at a cost of $1,943/MG2 (including potable water consumed) versus
$3,071/MG'frorn SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is $2,023/MG.

The fiscal year net loss of $35,790 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $19,000 and a net
income of $52,529 for the prior year. None of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been
expended this fiscal year.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $5,296,866 at month end, $4.2M of which amount resides
in restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled
Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

1 Stafford production cost = IP op expense ($872,719) + SRF loan interest ($196,033) + plant depreciation (9581 ,127)1 211 MG produced
2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($307,840) + treatment expense ($12,401) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan
interest($41 ,816) +Deerlsfandplantdepreciation($115,919)1246 Mc produced
3 SCWR production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,512) + debt service charge ($207) + Russian River conservation charge ($320¡ + Russian
River projects charge ($27)

2



Memo - June Financial Statement
August 13,202'1
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Compar¡son
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Jun-21
Actual

$68,415
99,243

849

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$981,971
993,309

FY19t20
ActualYTD

$989,841
776,619

FY21 vs 20
Up/(Down)

(1o/o)

28o/o

(55%)

(88%)

0%
(3%)
1%

(BB%)

(BB%)

49 111 '109 246

785
6.8

$7.41
($38 1e)

($4.es¡

$0
$830

($29 ,979)

------s37-Jl3-785
70.1

$11.09
$48 12

$0.54
$0

$830

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$322 468

782
72.3

$10.94
$412.36

$4.46
$o

$336,398

FY',,gt20
ActualYTD

Consumption for the fiscal year was 3% less than the prior year. Operating revenue was 1% less than
last year.

Operating expenditures were $216,690, ot 28o/o more than the previous year. The fiscal year net
income of $37,773 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $237,000 and to a net income of
$322,468 for the prior year. $1,510,796 (102o/o) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was
expended this fiscal year, and no connection fees were collected ($23,000 is budgeted). The West
Marin Water cash balance decreased $65,024 in June and stood at $257,616 at month end, compared
to a budgeted projection of $386,000 at June 30,2021.

Jun-21
Actual

$24,1 08
23,302

$276,360
283,771

$264,372
232,750
70,240

FY2l vs 20

Up/(Down)
5o/o

22Yo

(6%)

(42%)

0o/o

5o/o

4 128 66 372

$4 934

235
$1 03

$21.00
$0

*_______$!9,eqt_
235
$eB

$250.90
$o

$101 ,863

235
$e3

$433.46
$0

Operating revenue of $276,360 was 5% more than the previous year due to the 5o/o rate increase
effective July 1 , 2020. Operating expenditures were 22o/o $51,021 more than the previous year. The
fiscal year net income of $58,961 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $85,000 and to a net
income of $101,863 forthe prior year. $37,253 (13%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has
been expended this fiscal year.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 ¡s budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased
$2,501 in June and stood at $453,504 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $387,000 at
June 30, 2021.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Cash lNote t¡
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS NorthiSouth SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Piazza Construction Escrow Accou nt
Des nated Cash ote 2)

Liability ngency
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments
Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Gurrent Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accounts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

TotalCash $24,563,521 $18,555,535
$1,595 $1,595

$3,685

$0
0
0

1,804,801
2,417,211

0
0

614,299
275,773

0

0 98,885 0

8,097 16,740 5,958
000
000

173,000 92,834 69,000
$5,296,866 $257,616 $453,504

$0 $0 $o
$5,296,866 $257,616 $453,504

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$104,606
89,007

0
0

559
0
0
0

$1 94,1 73 $1 ,1 00

TOTAL

$3,385,560

$o
0
0

1,804,801
2,417,211

3,582
1,045,043

614,299
275,773

48,240

1,430,370
534,782

4,658,025
2,500,000
5,845,834

$1,433,697
3,023,415

424,909
321,631

91 ,1 98
61,023

687,346
23,274

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$3,005,957

o4045,

($o¡

$0

$375,918

$0
0
0
0
0

38 291

0
0
0
0
7
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0

628
0
0
0
0

3
0
0
0 2448

u 1,331,485
503,987

4,658,025
2,500,000
5,51 1,000

51,263,478
2,618,367

387,387
320,531
90,639
60,076

687,346
23,274

$65,613
316,041
37,521

0
0

947
0
0

À

$24,565,1 15 $18,557,130

1,1

$0
0
0

00
0
0
0
0

Total Current Assets $6,066,493 $5,451,098 9420j22

t:\accountants\financ'als\stmtfyu\finfyu.xlsal 1312021 10:29 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENÐING JUNE 30,2021

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Nore 3)

Other Long Term Receivables 1ruote +¡

Loans Receivable

Propertv and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment (ruote 6)

Buildings
Office Ëquipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note s¡

Net Buildings and Equipment

$3,790,365 s2,604,140

TOTAL

$525,000
3,265,365

$'1,473,091
5,675,845

22,750,231
24,593,098
29,405,627

108,484,790
258 111

$193,640,794
(63,447,370)

NOVATO
WATER

$525,000
2,079,140

$l,368,872
s,183,433

18,771,513
20,844,117
29,283,304
71,004,968

0

$146,456,206
(52,964,834)

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$0
0

$o

$103,41 1

492,412
454,159

2,105,523
122,324

6,023,862
0

$9,301,690
(4.311.689)

$0
0

$0

$830
2,768,124
2,768,953
7,758,954

0
0

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0

$808
0

858,362
0
0
0

1,258.111

fizJ17,282
(1 .135.936)

$0

$0
281,782
281,782

1,263,127
0
0

717 731

$1,362,828
6,040,940
7,403,768

139,075,411
2,795,641

341,851

$1,361,998
2,520,374
3,882,372

98,851,963
2,795,641

341,851

$0
1,186,225

s1,186,225

$o
0

2,666,198
1,643,458

0
31,455,961

0

$35,765,617
(5.034.91 1)

$0

$o
470,660
470,660

31,201,366
0
0

$0
0

1

$130,193,424 $93,491,372

$2,1 r 9,365 $2,1 19,365
1,122,658 1,122,658
323,072 323,072

1 ,287 ,7 18 1 ,287 ,718
974,660 974,660
220,890 220,890

$6,048,363 $6,048,363
(4,570,144) (4,570,144)
s1,478,219 $1 ,478,219

$30,730,706 $4,990,001 $981,346
(¡

$0
0

0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0

$o
0

Construction ln Progress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB75

TOTAL ASSETS $38,104,579 98,210,743 $r$176,634,876 $128,601,823
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NORTH MARIN WATER ÐISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note s)

Deferred Revenue
Total Gurrent Liabilities

Restricted Liabi lities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabi lities
Long Term Liablilities (Note 7)

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @ 6130120
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred Inflow of Resources-GASB 75

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL

$1,711,556
357,831

1,344,431
394,701
275,000
114,058
34,342

381,439
23,400
23,440

1,081,031
303,086

$6,044,316

$545,901
$545,901

$3,555,000
7,132,774
1,273,680
5,835,707
6,286,299
4,411,764

13,653,187
4,658,025

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

fi48,240
1 1,100

0
50,522

0

0
0

29,829
0

797
34,539

6 957

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$1,663,316
346,731
431,840
344,179
275,000

0

34,342
348,610
23,400
21,682

1,000,811
295,652

$4,785,564

$465,281
$465,281

$3,555,000
7,132,774

0
0
0

3,847,058
13,653,187
4,658,025

$0
0

912,591
0
0

1'14,058
0
0
0

656
32,311

478
$1,060,094

$o
$0

$0
0

1,273,680
5,835,707
6,286,299

0
0
0

$13,395,687
0
0

914,455,781

$0
0
0
0
0

0

0

3,000
0

305
13,370

0

O)

$181 ,983

$80,620

$16,675

$0
$80,620

0
0

$564,706
0
0

$827,309 $16,675

$o
0
0
0
0

$0

$0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

706564

$46,806,436 932,846,044
801,855 801,855
121 829 121 829

$54,320,337 $39,020,573

$0
0
0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENÐING JUNE 30,2021

Net Assets
lnvested an capitalAssets
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Restricted Reserves 
Total lnvestment

Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Prior Period Adjustment
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see below)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves

AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Transfer

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

$o
0
0
0
0
0
0

(8,4e0)
19,955

(134,000)

$0
0
0

(855,730)
0

(83,739)
0

(1 03)
0

(5.000)

($1a;
0
0
0
0
0
0

(274)
193,868

(4.000)

TOTAL

$86,496,274
13,637,997
42,704,901

9142,839,172

($5,872,444)
0

1,804,801
2,417,211

614,299
275,773

1,430,370
2,500,000

511,342
2,759,513
5,940,000

(33,038,563)
1,081,242

(68,555)
(87e,622)

($20,524,633)
8122,314,538

0
0

(855,730)
0

(83,739)
0

(8,e62)
213,823

(145.000)
{s8?9 6?^

NOVATO
WATER

ç77,867,213
426,448

28,954,363
$1Ð7,248,024

($4,908,761)

1,331,485
2,500,000

482,304
2,759,513
5,511,000

(26,240,076)
1,020,297

0
(122,535)

($17,666,774)
$89,581,250

($122,535)

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,1 39,1 78
3,'163,585
2,233,588

$7,536,351

($763,6e7)

98,885
0

15,944
0

187,000
81,596
37,773

0
'189,581

($152,91 8)

$7,383,434

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
86,060

693,68r
$'1,459,496

0
0

5,653
0

69,000
378,582

58,961
(68,555)

(2,0e5)
9241,561

$1,701,057

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

$5,81 0,128
9,961,904

10,823,269
$26,595,300

$0
0

1,804,801
2,417,211

614,299
275,773

0
0

7,441
0

173,000
(7,258,665)

(35,7e0)
0

(944,572)
($2,946,502)
$23,648,798

($199,986)
0
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0
0
0

(es)
0

__t

.f($

$944,572) $189,581

$38,104,579 $8,210,743 61,717 ,731

(2,000)

----($2'oeÐ-

$176,634,876 $128,601,823
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT . ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

$25,345,803 $22,646,000

3 827 851

$23,967,781

$6,286,000
567,000
857,000

2,628,000
178,000

3,694,000
683,000
408,000

2,520,000
3,777,000

$21,598,000

$8,767,13't
632,836

1,152,928
1,769,446

175,092
3,370,654

441,569
370,813

3,459,461

$7,096,644
646,366

1 ,176,833
2,647,688

145,032
3,560,512

534,552
398,010

3,201,5'15
3,366,216

$19,498,245
5,210,162

276,360
361,036

$16,330,000
5,610,000

276,000
430,000

$1 8,1 94,1 68
4,968,620

264,372
369,761

$23,796,921

s22,773,367

$1,023,554

$1 15,565
582,383
170,571

(796,147)
(3,e33)

(305,71 1)

119%
93%
100%
84%

112o/o

139%
112%
135o/o

67o/o

98%
91o/o

65o/o

91%
137%
101o/o

I 1 1o/o

NET OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS) $1,378,021 $1,048,000 131%

NON-OPERATTNG REVENUE(EXPENSE)
$119,142

294,066
30,227

(737,629)
(2,585)

0

$1 18,000
316,000
135,000

(748,000)
(20,000)

0

101%
93o/o

22o/o

99%
130k

($296,780) ($199,000) 149o/o ($237,271)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)-ß61W $849 000 127% $786,283

oTHER SOURCES/(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital I mprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$3,827,851
3,496,089

0
86,060

(250)
0

10,733
0

(114,737)
(3,381,228)
(2,183,242)

(506,220)

$3,777,000
509,000
647,000

0
0
0

1,000
205,000

(6e9,000)
(6,862,000)
(2,3e5,000)

0

1073%
0%

160/o

49%
91%

$3,366,216
1,531,535

0
336,398

(135,005)
1 ,081 ,103

20,5'10
0

(285,105)
(3,134,715)
(2,124,083)
1,867,008

101o/o

687o/o

Oo/o

$1,235,056 ($4,817,000)

--TS-tp68,00ÕT$2,316,298

$2,523,862

$3 310 145

I

cASH TNCREASE(DECREASE)
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND GASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer I n-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capítal Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Prior Period Adjustments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position June 30, 2020
Net Position June 30, 2021

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Gash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club Loan Principal Pmts
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) Incr
Connection Fee Transfer
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,2020
MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,2021

$25,345,803 $22,401,348
23,967,781 21,172,303
$1,378,021 $1,229,044

(296,780) (208,747\

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN

SEWER
$1,686,124

1,518,398

$981,971

993,309

$276,360

283 771

$167,726
(203,516)

($11,338)
49,111

($7,41 1)

66,372

$1,081,242 $1,020,297 ($35,790) $37 ,773 $58,961

$995,207
10,733

0
3,496,089

86,060
0

$994,377
10,733

0
3,496,089

0
(890,072)

$830

0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0

072
86

$0
0
0
0

060
U890

$4,588,088 $3,611,127 $890,072
(ô8,555) 0 0

$5,600,775 $4,631,424 $854,282
116,713,763 84,949,826 22,794,516

$830
0

$38,603
7,344,831

$86,060
(68,555)

976,467
1,624,590

$122,314,538 $89,581,250 $23,648,798 $7,383,434 $1,701,057

s1,081,242
3,827,851

$1,020,297
2,798,092

($35,7e0) $37,773
199,315

$58,961
786 073 44 371

$4,909,093 $3,818,389 $750,283 $237,088 $103,333

$3,496,089
0

86,060
(3,495,965)

10,733
0

(250)
(2,183,242)

(163,e18)
(1,103)

703,886
140,843

(1,185,930)
0

($2,592,795)

$o
0
0
0
0
0

(250)
(683,339)

9,435
(10,000)
140,975

(203,485)
(47,944)
890,072
$95,463

$3,496,089
0
0

(1,e47,916)
10,733

0
0

(1,451,075)
(15e,61 1)

(70,223)
160,6'14
409,636

(1,168,251)
(890,072)

($1,610,076)

$0
0
0

(1,510,796)
0
U

0
(48,827)
(13,742)
79j20

333,793
2,969

30,266
0

($1,127,217)

$o
0

86,060
(37,253)

0
0
0
0
0
0

68,504
(68,276)

0
0

$49 035

$2,316,298 $2,208,313 $845,747 ($890,129) $152,367

s22,248,817 $16,348,817 $4,451,119 $1,147 745 $301 137

$24,565,115 $18,557,130 $5,296,866 $257,616 $453,504

9
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEARTO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
MainVMonitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Fishery Maint
Erosion Control
Purchased Water
Pu rchased Water-Backfeed
GAS868 Adjustment
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

$2,316,511
(4,005)

4'15,981
0

375
27

100
12,656
8,946

14 170
$2,764,761 522,401,348

$17,187,590
(61,290)

4,921,137
0

5,935
162

3,920
151,706
36,751

'155,436

$ 1 6,000,386
(5e,788)

4,709,222
54,154
5,990

360
4,800

149,428
43,132

104,765

$787
467

'1,550
'1,388

0

12

629
0
0

677,230
0
0
0

$9,002
7,517

23,927
5,252

538
8,442

722
1,333

603
7,278,894
1 ,098,1 09

0
0

119o/o

85o/o

92o/o

0o/o

85o/o

160/o

78o/o

107o/o

111o/o

159o/o

111o/o

82o/o

54o/o

19%
260/o

13%
21%
5%

127%o

$21,012,449

$13,274
8,289

30,588
14,240

0

19,627
1,642

0
62

6,623,534
0

7,050
542

0o/o

$682 ,064 $8,434,339 141o/o $6,718,848

$0
95

(7,e32)
44,708

0
0

$0
41,581
28,068

473,379
0
0

$0
34,416

'158,903

341,401
13,279

'1 ,019

$263,383
444,904
58,439
55,401
18,506

0
0

Oo/o

130o/o

25o/o

139%
0o/o

1620/0

174o/o

104%
58o/o

93o/o

0%

$232,89s
507,830

52,959
61,798
16,656

127,039

PUMPING $36,871 $543,027 109o/o $549,018
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
Leased Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

OPERATIONS $95,183 $840,632 115% $'1,008,932

$26,864'
64,027
3,126

(1,758)
2,923

0
0 I 755
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEARTO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regu lators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$91,649 $1,491,896 61Yo $2,480,913

$1,970
2,979
2,572
1,027
8,544

18,178
4,199
5,643

22,719
4,279

10,1 10
8,625
4,449

(3,644)
0
0

$130,881
144,628
91,248
72,767
99,063

199,629
134,502
81,464

343,850
34,464
93,791
66,418
29,328

(30,137)
0
0

88o/o

45%
21o/o

59o/o

93o/o

107o/o

86%
85%
99o/o

77%
130%
81o/o

47o/o

121%
0o/o

108%
70o/o

414o/o

115o/o

72o/o

98o/o

21o/o

1O8o/o

57o/o

61o/o

125o/o

154o/o

107%
86%

104o/o

102o/o

48%
95o/o

0o/o

9170,261
284,929
503,664

93,987
93,901

200,107
160,692
107,549
404,859

46,974
89,662
67J28
38,770

(25,801)
226,813

17 417

$56,1 65
11,767
18,467
12,584
2,713

25,733
20

11,872
1,209

12,021
16,272

1 ,138
20,879
15,581
27,023
2,316
9,863
5,775
4,582

0
0

9642,299
132,140
281,257
162,184

43,172
266,691

1 0,1 58
131,822

9,662
113,317
202,998

20,075
231,595
133,175
482,542
56,466

135,771
40,072
68,567

0
0

$600,516
121,602
310,804
164,579
46,003

321,269
48,060

101,710
1 1 ,319

135,586
158,205

10,249
187,668
105,350
443,334
26,039
96,608
81,718
48,30'1

393,1 05
30, I 95

$255,980 $3,'163,961 91Yo $3,442,219
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEARTO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accou nts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Resrdentlal
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consu lting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$8,290
0

40
1 1,385

1,417
4,781
9,812

912
2,666
1,650

(1,258)
0
0

$21,659
0

1,700
197,174

18,752
69,038
59,613
10,998
23,681
28,205

(16,454)
0
0

$19,205
18,395

748
248,703

13,742
48,071
64,242
10,998
8,362

35,601
(17,814)
52,414

20o/o

0o/o

85o/o

92%
104o/o

1260/o

99o/o

100o/o

474o/o

45o/o

110%
0o/o

84o/o

18o/o

187o/o
360/o

0o/o

101o/o

138o/o

134o/o

62%
41%

104%o

64%
70%
10%
57o/o

1o/o

107o/o

101%
41o/o

99o/o

123o/o

80o/o

1650/o

80%
94o/o

105o/o

75%
102o/o
7 4o/o

4 024
$39,696 $414,367 63% $506,690

$24,981
425

15,970
822

0
0

$203,1 87
3,579

111,992
10,128

0
0

$198,881
6,481

125,537
17,317
32,083

2 464
$42,1 98

$4,282
6,797

1 5,1 91

0
13,664
97,693

3,215
3,244

45
374

0
265
676

8,335
84

3,379
944
339

3,486
6,627

17,173
16,525

(67,ee6)
(11,e21)
(33,580)

0
110,428

$41,450
28,892
73,713
1 6,008

1 15,503
1,233,924

37,355
31,434

1 ,186
8,508

250
106,192

8,112
79,640
19,844
37,495

8,589
2,390

97,509
112,374
145,870
209,174

(104,715)
(147,885)
(351,489)

0
345 781

$3,1 57,1 03

2,798,092
$21,172,303

$328,887 82% $382,764

$40,873
16,569
50,727
19,651

142,010
1,112,359

45,069
33,783

9,369
6,281

0

83,386
8,112

't 1 1,593
2,143

37,254
7,088
1,909

77,130
143,224
109,939
186,221

(322,446)
(130,5e2)
(38e,80e)

20,250
558,480

$2,980,572

2,660,688
$20,730,642

327o/o

135o/o

98%
109o/o

1

$199,271

233,475

$1,676,388

oPERATTNGTNCOME(LOSS) $1,q@,373
-----S1' 
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEARTO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Workers'Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury

MMWD lnterconnection Agreement Loan
Total lnterest Revenue

Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 12)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$6,365
15,453
1,674

0
568

0

$40,692
101,479

10,924
309

7,297

54%
2O3o/o

243%

171o/o

9jYo
47%

$26,381
217,621

25,422
1,279

22,085
64,18260 352

$24,060
4,022

(5,008)
Ø5.317\

$221,052
74,729
24,284

(74,650)

$356,969
81,043
33,930
49,825

($22,243) $245,415 93% 9s21,767

$1 1,921
15,657
8,586

123

$149,408
196,033
107,752

969
$36,286 $454,162

$84,949,826
1,029,844 1,020,297

111,742 994,377
2,205 10,733

10,000 3,496,089
(e6,153) (8e0,072)

00
--s60,æizm-

100%
100o/o

98%
5To

95o/o

$160,988
215,953
114,881

2 328

NET |NCOME(LOSS) 91,02e,844 91,020,2e7 182o/o

$494,1 50

$309,422

$79,168,973
309,422
864,540

20,510
1,531,535

689,600
2,365,246

$84,949,826

1073o/o

1028o/o

-98%
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEARTODATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Account Turn-on Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
sron Engineering

Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB)

$306,320 $1 ,686,124 131o/o $1,530,259

8246
18,086

(42,701)

$1,s58
278,056

29,784

$300,763
5,242

315
0

$1,592,656
9l,653

1 ,815
0

129o/o

158o/o

131%
42o/o

109%

$1 ,463,016
66,859

300
84

$0
253,961
100 900

$354,861($24,370)

$0

$309,398

545

0
0

1 73,24
0
7
0
0

$0

37

0o/o

18o/o

125o/o

132o/o

109o/o

1212%
237o/o

23o/o

0o/o

65%
52%
65o/o

34o/o

26%
0%

$o
1 ,199
3,900

236
1B

$1,247 $4,282 610/o $5,353

$10,648
6,024

82,157
4,851

0

3,879
298

$2,748
879

0
1,118

607
236

18
---516d6-

$974
0

1,522
7,006
1,014
2,547
3,496
1 ,198
2,468

190

$1,296
439

16,715
5,261

0
0
0

917,164
14,108

181,798
23,692
2,759

0
0

OPERATIONS $23,711 $239,520 324o/o $107,858
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & D]STRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Maint of PB Service Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$o
0
0
0

24
0
0

$2
7
1

1

595
856
950
374
784

0
0

$24

$2e
0
0

5,009
20

0
44,224

0
0
0

($1+o¡
12,500

1,650
22,747

1,699
3,466

48,997
139

0
0

47o/o

-1o/o

1250o/o

1650/o

325o/o

15o/o

69To

4900o/o

,5594$

,282I$4

0o/o

s91,U49 1660/o $20,415
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
JUNE YEAR TO DATE

2021 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/o)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Lega ees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4o/o)

GAS868 Adjustment
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
State Prop 50 Grant
IRWMP Prop 84 Grant
Water Smart Grant
FederalARRA Grant
FRC Transfer to/from Novato

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$1 19 271

971,917

786,073
$1,518,398

$t 326
$l,326

$1 05
3,250

52,508
8,248

$64,1 1 1

473,828
$1,033,358

$496,902

$43,204
79,847

431
18,549

9142,032
0

$142,032

947,243
233,451

0
305,711

$586,405

$52,529

$23,421,587
52,529
10,000

0
0
0
0

(689,600)

$125 $l,600

$1,103
0

59,751

$0
0

4,817
931

$125 $1,600 160%
160%

101o/o

553%
118o/o

117%
128o/o

158o/o

11 063
$5,748

63,505

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS) gl87,o4e $167 726

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total Interest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE $10,511

$3,375
6,1 61

27
947

$8,437
38,949

176
11,427

14o/o

$0

$10,511
0

$58,989
0

95o/o

39o/o

$58,989 39o/o

$3,371
18,036

0
0

$41,816
220,689

0
0

100%
97o/o

$21,406

$1 76,1 53

$262,505

790

s22,794,516
(35,7e0)

0
0
0
0
0

890,072

---TZæ-¿s,7s8-

97o/o

298o/o

76,I

196

53
0
0
0
0
0

53 -98%

_$n,794,516
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

JUNE
2021

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERI\TING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD
GAS868 Adjustment
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT 
OPERATIONS

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

WATER TREATMENT

$68,415 $981,971

$52,381
(1,753)
16,582

0
20

0

$818,603
(41,12e)
197,372

0
140

18

6,968

112o/o

99o/o

0o/o

14o/o

139o/o

105%

$815,485
(25,231)
192,539

336
115

I
184 6 588

$989,841

$o
56

0
484

0
0
0

$5,530
8,005
6,943

484
2,432

0
0

$2,680
1,500

18,064
14

171

470
36

114o/o

460/o

48o/o

$540 $23,394

0o/o

97o/o

100o/o

142%
153o/o

0%

170o/o

140%

107o/o

84o/o

0%

$22,935

$4,286
361

4,155
0
0

$9,043
37,303
39,954

5,289
406

$10,003
32,599
42,924

0
0

$8,802

5, 08

$2,1 55
2,199

215
,189

351
0
0

$91,995

$13,905
17,673

1,088
16,285
4,1 33
6,463

497

$85,527 1360/o

$25,508
25,142

1,832
16,104

4,1 90
0
0

$72,775 119o/o

$2,043
1'1,001

0

932
2,788

0

4,704
90

324
1,125
3,431

0
0

$21,333
61,012

2,372
3,006

24,932
22,618
47,778
10,769
25,719
16,192
27,259

0

0-*-S26æt

194o/o

244o/o

47%
301%
249o/o

94%
133o/o

154%o

643o/o
324o/o

130o/o

0%

$60,044

$14,058
22,890

3,332
654

7,572
19,802
42,312

5,748
3,060
2,579

22,965
15,042
1,156

$26,438 155o/o $161,169
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

JUNE

2021
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GASB75 Adjustment (OPEB)

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

$2,816 $23,735 108o/o

$9,215
0
0

4660/o

$9,215 $41,927 466Yo

$1 23
380
712

0
8,230

0

0
0

1,127
0
0

7

261
6,256

767
0
0
0
0
0
0

$3,452
11,004
4,983

28
32,164

0

867
0

5,402
4
0

4,852
3,865

35,032
2,446
I,835

610
0

9,099
0
0

43o/o

92o/o

1jjo/o

161o/o

0%
43%
0o/o

68%
0o/o

0%
81o/o

129o/o

121%
122o/o

184o/o

61o/o

0%
152o/o

0o/o

$5,939
11,564
9,009
7,137

19,867
28

705
0

8611,8
0

0

1,057
883

19,771
1 ,613
1,222

0
0

(6,342)
12,575

966

$1,768
0

1,048
0
0

$17,863 $1 15,645

$10,281
0

13,454
0
0

84o/o

129o/o

0o/o

103%

1060/0

129o/o

$97,879

$8,064
0

14,792
1,410

108

$¿ 927
0
0

$24,374

$13,474
1,646

126

$788
1,050
5,187

$3,803
40,693
64,348

'190%

1160/o

104Vo

2958o/o

170o/o

$15,246

$1,722
180

57,206
58,2174 918 59 158

$11,943

Depreciatiorì (Note s) 16,517
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE $99,243

$168,001

199,315

$117,324

185,652

$776,619$993 309

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS) ($30,82e) (7o/o) 9213,223

17

($1 1,338)

t:\accountants\financials\stmtfyu\finfyxx.xlsS/'13/2021 10:30 AM



WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

JUNE
2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - unds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Gallagher Ranch Streambank Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

($171)
13
56

0
0
0

$6,787
13

363
1,448
5,464

2

57,675
73

$48,027
2,053

850
21,394

5,305
I

55,941
3

101%

$2,599 971,825 1060/o

68o/o

1o/o

30
72

2,6

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE $1,750 922,714

NET TNCOME(LOSS) ($2e,e7e) $37,773

$1,750
0

$21,931
782

100%

103%

18o/o

$133,580

$23,631
704

$24,335

$322,468

(2e,e79)
$7,344,831

37,773

00
830 830

00
-Fz36g'ag4--

$6,685,965
322,468

$7,344,831

336, 398
0
0
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

JUNE
2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer ce rges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

$24,108 $276,360

-$z¿JoB- -T2?6J60

100%
100o/o

120o/o

83o/o

21o/o

441o/o

383%
144%

0o/o

57o/o

22o/o

73o/o

1A5o/o

2260/0

0%

$264,372
$264,372

$664
0

956
0

(5,258)
578

0
2,025

0

0

$33,171
0

15,625
3,3r 9
1,028

30,846
11,493
18,717

0

0

138o/o $26,634
56

12,325
2,006
3,614

17,509
0

14,082
5,759

442
$114,r98 136Vo s82,426SEWAGE COLLECTTON ($1,036)

SEWAGE TREATMENT
$o

Operating Expense 4,304
Maint of Equipment 0
Laboratory Direct Labor 227
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato 189
Electric Power 1,183
GASB68 Adjustment (Pension) 0
GASB7S Adjustment (OPEB) 0

SEWAGE TREATMENT 

-S5BOZ-
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)
GAS875 Adjustment (OPEB)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING $85

$32,416 72o/o $36,060

$256
10,876
1,940
3,671
2,094

13,579
0
0

$o
10,580
4,722
4,107
2,229

12,523
1,763

135

$2,015
3,821
4,708

568
0
0

$1 I,815
8,477
6,1 04
2,083

0
0

$5,265
3,352

12,314
3,083
2,351

181

98o/o

121o/o

44o/o

260/o

0o/o

SEWAGE DISPOSAL $11,112 $28,478 630/o $26,545

$466
1,696

$0
85

$468
400 70o/o

93o/o $2,162$1,868
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

JUNE

2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

GEN ERAL AN D ADMINISTR,ATIVE
Consu ce res
Legal Fees
Distributed from Novato (1.1o/o)
Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Nore 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERAT|NG tNcOME(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-l/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPER,ATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense
GAS868 Adjustment

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS 6.tote rro¡

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$19,833
878

23,786
2,154

15,789

$0
2,646

20,878
2,110

$3,540

3,698

$23,302

$62,440

44,371

$283,771

40o/o

95o/o

108o/o

81o/o

92o/o

94o/o

30%

1760/o

101o/o

lOS"l"

151o/o

$1 19
0

1,917
184

1,320

$806 7,411

$250
5,285

129
6'1,465

77

$0
1,228

20
2,803

77
$4,1 28 $67,206

0 833
0 0

13 874
$39,509

46.048

$232 750

$31,622

$250
10,754

304
59,617

217
$71,141

$901

$101 ,863

91,522,727
101,863

901
0

$o

$4,934

$833

$58,961

(68

4,934
$1,624,590

58,961

0
0

86,060
(68,555)

0
0
0

,555

0
0
0
0

$1,701,057 $1,624,590
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
t:\accountants\fi nancials\stmtfy2'1 \[cpm062 1 .xls] equ ip

JUNE
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 20t21 (OVER)

BUDGET UNDER Notes

1 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Metals Analyzer
¡. Meter Maintenance Program
c. Steam Scrubber and Glassware Washer Rack

2 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 5-Yard Dump Truck
n. 9,000 GVWR Hyd Dump Trailer
c. 14,000 GVWR Tilt Deck Trailer
o. Cart-Away 1 Yard Concrete Mixer

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

Notes
ment

$0 $70,748 $142,000 $71,252

$0
0

0

$61,053
0

9,696

$85,000
57,000

0

$23,947 t

57,000
(e,6e6)

$0
0

0
0

$0
7,724
9,352

26,913

$135,000
11 ,000
17,000
25,000

$135,000 ,r

3,276
7,648

(r,e13)
$0

$0

$43,989

$114,737

$188,000

$330,000

$144,011

$215,263

21
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NORTH MAR¡N WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior
Budget Budget % YTD Actual

otto

Change
1

¿

J

4
Ã

b

7

I
I
10

11

12
1A

14

15

16

17

OPERATING EXPENSE Novato Recycled
¡50

Water Purchases 7,278,894
Depreciation 2,798,092
Materials, Services & Supplies 2,917,336
Consulting Services/Studies 1 15,503

Chemicals 91,248
Electric Power 604,193
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib) 207,640
Tools & Supplies (Distrib) 250,452
Retiree Medical Expenses 209,174
Water Conservation Rebates 26,178
lnsurance & Claims 145,870
Office Supplies & Postage 100,472
GASB 68 Adjustments 1,345,781
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss (104,715)
Distributed Costs (Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg) (545,965)

$355,323
0

199,315
123,621
40,693

2,372
65,542
17,769
24,206

0
250

0
0

59,158
0

r 05,061

$71,012
0

44,371
68,595
19,833

0
28,306

4,540
3,985

0

0
2,154

0
15,789

0

25,185

$6,303,003
6,978,395
3,366,216
2,112,137

145,440
509,744
588,788
232,250
296,579
186,221

24,589
112,049
81,853

2,550,189
(322,446)
(3e2,038)

$88,471
327,420
786,073
245,393

0
2,595
5,687
3,426

0
62,1 35

$1,537,978
262,505

$993,309
22,714

$283,771
833

5,71

,063

4
0
0
0
0

$6,246,956
7,606,314
3,827,851
3,354,945

176,029
96,215

703,729
233,374
284,357
209,174

26,428
148,024
100,472

1,431,792
(104,715)
(353,583)

$6,360,000
5,985,000
3,777,000
2,093,000

145,000
484,000
513,000
325,000
180,000
172,OO0

104,000
173,000
102,000

0
(3e,000)

(374,000)

98%
127o/o

101o/o

1600/o

121%
20%

137%
72%

158%
122%
25%
86%
99%

-0 Yo

9%
13%
58%
21%

-81%
19%
00k

-4%
12%
7%

32%
22%

-67 %
-9%

5 o/o

-7 o/o

4 o/o

921,172,303
454,162

$23,987,361 $20,000,000
740,214 870,000

269%
95%

120o/o

850k

$22,773,370
800,080

N)
N)

18

19

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

Total Expense $21,626,466 $1,800,483 $1,016,023 $284,604 $24,727,575 $20,870,000 118% $23,573,450

20

¿t

22

23

24

Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

Total WH, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav
Salaries & Benefits
Equipment Expenditures
Debt Principal Payments
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total District Capital Outlay

Developer Funded Proiects
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total Developer Projects

Total

$199,998
343,258

51,668
(594,924)

$350,936
397,144

1,176,075
1,482,243

$237,776
518.006

$755,782

925,788,645

$o $0 $o $o

$277,000
341,000

0
(618,000)

$0 $0

$645,000
355,000

2,279,000
6,418,000

$o
0

760,536
0

$1 02,1 1 I
0

48,827
1,408,677

$7,620
0
0

29,633

$o

$199,998
343,258

51,668
(594,924)

$460,674
397,144

1,985,438
2,920,554

$239,053
519,090

72%
101%

0%
96%

71%
112%
87%
460/o

114%
425%

229%

$207,377
$283,381
9154,770
(645,52e)

$448,868
285,1 05

1,854,083
2,681,143

$309,598
569,866

-3%
21%
-66%
-7 o/o

2 o/o

39 0k

7%
8%

9%

-22%
-8%

-13%

$o
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0

$o

25

26

¿ô

29

30

31

32

$3,406,398 $760,536 $1,559,623 $37,253 $5,763,810 $9,697,000 59% $5,269,198

$o
0

$0
0

$o

$1,278
1,084

$209,000
122,000

$2,561 ,019 $321,858

$2,362

$2,578,007

$758,143 $331,000

s31,249,528 $30,898,000 101%

$879,464

$29,722,111 5%JJ
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2021
Fiscal Year to Date

t Recove

Vehicle Cost Mile

Life to Date FYTD21 FYTD2OYear

z 2003
z 2004
¿ 2007
s 2008
o 2008
z 2O08
a 2010
s 2010
ro 2010
r 2012
tz 2012
tz 2014
t¿ 2015
ts 2015
tø 2015
¡ 2016
rc 2017
ts 2016
zo 2018
zt 2018
zz 2019
zs 2019
z¿ 2019
zs 2019
za 2019
zt 2019
ze 2020
ze 2020
to 2020
st 2020
sz 2020
sz 2021

Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Chev Colorado
Ford F250 4x4
Ford F25O 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Fo¡d F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4
CHEVROLET COLORADO 2WI
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F150 2WD
FORD F,I50 2WD
NISSAN ROGUE

Veh#

49
54

504
505
506
509
511
512
513
515
516
517
518
520
521
5¿¿
523
524
526
527
528
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541

8,473
0
0

465
702

6,362
7,729
8,611
3,584
7,013

10,883
5,509
7,192

17,976
7,123
1,476
4,851
8,920
9,903

10,594
4,746
4,963

11,480
8,866
1,257
8,653

10,265
15,954

E 2aa

2,300
I,C¿t

0

$3,947
$1 41

$1 79
$1,672
$1,489
$4,013
$3,023
$2,757

$972
$3,327
$5,635
$2,580
$2,921
$5,763
$2,491

$31 0
$1,296
$3,71e
ç2,718
$4,806
$2,139

$980
$2,297
$2,897

$366
$2,682
$1,985
$5,124
$1,571

$61 4
$1,978

$2,569
s0
$0
$0

$217
$7,872
$3,752
$5,404
$2,254
s8,477

$1 0,514
$1 0,1 97

$6,461
$7,938
$2,384

$1 90
$2,069
$9,270
$1,657

$11,s68
$2,876
$1,858
$5,750

$11,378
$2,162
$3,335
$4,400

$16,821
$1,309

$1 96
$3,131

s714
$19,803

$364
ç20,440
$25,480
$17,766
$16,492
$16,520

764

($t 378)

153

71

127,398
109,681
89,496

107,766
80,413

118,272
99,380

123,489
91,089
78,247
86,496
21 ,274

101,529
100,480
51,393
52,200
29,458
40,024
25,821
26,058
13,044
16,088
13,282
12,851
2,445

13,352
10,505
't6,570
5,333
2,300
7,848

0

$0.47
$469.20

$0.00
$3.60
$2.12
$0.63
$0.39
$0.32
$0.27
$0.47
$0.52
$0.47
$0.41
$0.32
$0.35
$0.21
$0.27
$0.42
$0.27
$0.45
$0.45
$0.20
$0.20
$0.33
$0.29
$0.3r
$0.19
$0.32
$0.29
$0.00
$0.27
$0.00

$0.51
$0.35
($0.54)
($1.86)($1,672)

($1,272)
$3,859

$729
$2,647
$1,282
$5,1 50
$4,879
$7,617
$3,540
$2,175

($1 07)
($1 20)
$772

$5,551
$5,551

($1 ,061)
$6,763

$737
$878

$3,453
$8,481
$1,795

$653
$2,415

$11,698
(8262)
($41 8)

STP
Out of Service
Out of Service
Pool
Pool
Pool

($141 )
($1 7s)

$0.43
$0.46
$0.42
$0.78
$0.79
$0.37
$0.50
$0.49
$0.47

($2.t2¡
$0.49
$0.50
$0.76
$0.69
$0.67
s0.74
s2.99
$0.62
$0.35
$0.77
$0.42
$0.47
$0.54
$0.34
$0.62
$0.30
$0.37
$0.63
$0.30
$0.58

Bergstrom
Davenport
Construction
Reed
Castellucci
Kurfirst
Ocodhain
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Robefo
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
EngMtr Consv
Out of Service
Castellucci
Grisso
STP
Rodriguez
Kehoe, Chris
STP
Kane
Kauwe
Clark

r 1999
z 2002
s 1999
¿ 2006
s 2009
ø 2012
t 2015
e 2017
e 2019

770
5,008

281
3,582
3,476
5,141
6,772
8,627

$70
$13,430

$7,422
s7,422

$22,955
$r 0,778

$8,575
$10,645

139,144
114,123
98,786
52,407
42,561
49,320
47,494
43,279

$0.00
$1.75
$0.00
$2.59
$2.1 3

$1.45
$1.31
$0.62

$0.84
ç1.27
$2.36
$3.63
$0.73
$1.36
91.17
$0.68
$0.72

$0.61
$0.55
$0.69
$0.43
$0.28
$0.34
$0.38
$0.32
$0.44
$0.49
$0.67
$0.51
$0.33
$0.27
$0.36
$0.43
$0.30
$0.31
s0.42
$0.54
$0.00
$0.29
$0.00

N)(,
$0.29
$5.21
$2.85
$0.00
$0.00
$0.57
$0.00

n

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "

lnt'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 325 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4
FORD F55O 3 YD DUMP

Pool
Construction
Out of service
Construction/Crew
Construction/Crew
Breit
Sjoblom
Lemos
Construction

19
44
52

503
508
514
519
525
530 4 573

$644
$6,373

$663
$13,018

ç2,525
$6,988
$7,917
$5,875

$1.57
s2.11
$0.00
$2.59

$'14.43
$0.00

s20.77
$0.00
$1 .77b 831 1.19

t 
Expense amount shown excludes depreciation (approximately $81,ooo for FY2'l ).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles 1-ton and over is $14lhr. An additional 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fa¡r market value ofthe veh¡cle be¡ng used.
3 Pwctug uø ìn & # 32 ffi miæ. MiÞge show isbb incurd sinæ O¡süct Plrchâ*



1-7700-01

1-7700-02

1-7700-03

't-7700-06

1-7700-07

1-7700-11

t7740-t2

1-7700-13

1-7700-15

1-7700-16

1-7700-17

'1-7700-19

1-7700-OA

1-7700-20

1-7700-21

1-7700-23

1-7700-24

1-7700-25

't-7-700-35

1-7700-26

1-7700-27

1-7700-28

NORTH MARIN WAÏER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

PERIOD ENDIT{G JUNE 30,2021

JUNE 2O2O 2021Description
NOVATO

1 Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
s Fixtures Purchases
a Washing Machine Rebates
5 Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
s Residential Audits
0 High Efficiency Toilet Distribution
to Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
t t Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
lz ET Controller Rebate
rs Administration
14 New Development Wtr Cons Program
rs Demand Offset Rebate Program
16 Grant Administration
tz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
iB Res¡dent¡al Fill Station
rg UWMP

b. Commercial
t Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/l nformation
t Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
4 Publ¡c Outreach / H2O l-air
s Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
s Large Landscape lrrig Effìciency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
a. Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES

$436,415
24,907
53,5'19

351,148
55,105

1 ,019,555
18,507

474,729
242,177

92,739
3,547

41,010
1,650,751

116,121
3,843
3,300
2,491

66,421
0

67,561
35,572

$3,313
1 ,610

0
578

0
1,636

323
505

0
2,802
1,738

693
10,123

709
0
0

100
0

851

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,000
'1,000

5,000
130,000

15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

0
0

ÏOTAL

$17,745
2,320

0
3,648

0
19,635

388
8,314

20
9,678
2,135
8,456

101,210
12,764

0
0

425
0

16,449
0
0

3,579
0

11,497
11,860

0
86,944

1,691
0
0

284
1,216

0
62

BUDGET UNDER

917,255
2,680
5,000
1,352
1,000

(1,635)
1,612

56,686
(20)

(2,678)
(1 ,135)
(3,456)
28,790
2,236
2,000
1,000
1,575

0
(16,44e)

10,000
5,421

COST

$454,159
27,227
53,519

354,796
55,1 05

1,039,189
18,896

483,043
242,197
102,417

5,682
49,466

1,751,961
128,886

3,843
3,300
2,916

66,421
16,449

67,561
39,1 51

1-7700-29

1-7700-30

1-7700-31

1-7700-32

N)À

1-7700-33

1-7700-34

1-7701-02

1-7701-03

't-?701-05

1-7701-04

0
425

10,000
9,000

1-7700-04

1-7700-05

1-7700-22

1-8653-02

1-7702-01

1 -7702-A2

1-8653-01

1-7702-03

1-7702-04

89,458
103,959
20,290

236,197
172,908

11.327

0
142

0
15,828

0
0

8,000
9,000

0
17,000
15,000

0

(3,4e7)
(2,860)

0
(6e,e44)
13,309

0

100,955
1 15,819
20,290

323,141
174,598

11,327

91,788
40,123
14,960
19,760

103.892

2,716
(216)

4,000
1,938

000
000
000
000
000

3,
I,
4,
2,

0
255

0
0

567

92,O72
41,339
14,960
19,822

4
,080 87 000 $61 'l 13 $S

$1 17,535 $9,215 $41 ,927 $9,000 ($32,927) $159,461

433 11

198

2-5 166-00

$1 17,535 $9,215 $41 .927 $9.000 $32.92n $159.461



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2I

COST THRU
JUNE 2O2O

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 20121

BUDGET
(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET
TOTAL
COST202'l

a lúãin/Pipeline Replacements
1-718e-oo t Replace 12" CI Pipe (785LF) S. Novato Blvd
1-7183-v z Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch
1-7183-oo s Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe-Scown
1-71a3-01 4 Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe-Wilson
1-7183-03 s Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe -Glen Rd & Vonderuvorth
1-7186-00 6 Replace cl Pipe-Grant Ave
1-7'ie3-00 z Replace 6" ACP Pipe (810') Glen Rd
1-71s4-oo I Redwood Blvd Pipe Lowering
1-7'res-00 g Novato Blvd Widening Diablo to Grant
1-71e7-oo 10 Replace 16" Cl Pipe-Center Rd

t r Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)
o. Main/Pipeline Additions

1 San Mateo InleVOutlet Pipe (2,200')
z Loop South/North Zone 2Jndian Valley Campus
e Other Main/Pipeline Additions

c. PB Service Line Replacements
t Repl PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Svcs)
z Other PB Replacements (80 Svcs)
s Repl PB-San RamonA/ivian/\,/erismo (47)
+ Repl PB-VineyardiSan Joaq uin/Wilson/Brooke
s Repl PB-San Marin Dr/lgnacio Blvd

d.. Copper Service Line Replacements
1 Copper Repl112151619110 Ganey Ct

e. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
t Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

f. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
1 MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costs'
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

149
16
2

209
228

10
14

$100,000
150,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
U

U

200,000

$100,000
150,000

(149,003)
(16,307)
(2,092)

(209,903)
(228,705)

(1 0,507)
(14,258)

0
200,000

$0
0

164,332
16,307
2,092

215,568
228,705

10,507
14,258

0
0

5

$o
0

003
307
092
903
705
507
258

0

$o
0

329
0
0

665
0
0
0
0
0

$395
0
0
0
0
0

5,951
0

$0
0
0
0
0

52,937
192,247

0
492

0
0

1-7 1 50-00
'1-71 91-00

1-7139-u

1-7123-v

1-7123-28

1-7123-29

0

1,184
0

19,3401-71 96-00

1-8737-w

219,640
8,612

0
0

82,276
44,198
80,098

45,712

^

137,340
rì
rì

2,808
0

82,300
8,612

0
0

82,276
44,198
80,098

45,712

0

910,000

150,000

70,000
80,000

0

0
0

70,000

827,700
(8,612)

70,000
80,000

(82,276)
(44,198)
(80,0e8)

0 (45,712)lv(¡

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
a. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl (-l+ry¡
b. Anode lnstallations ltsory¡
c. Asset Management Software ProcuremenUlmplementation
d. Fac¡l¡t¡es Security Enhancements
e. San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit (STP to Zone 2)
f Watershed Property-Vineyard Fence
g. Rehab Black Pt Pressure Regulating Station
h. Rehab Harbor Dr pressure Regulating Station

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

70,000
$158,334 s269.009 s973.972 $1.730.000 $606.028 S1.1 32.306

$118,247 $2,205 $10,733 $0 ($10,733) $128,979
19,507 0 2,160 O (2,160) 21,667

$137,753 $2,205 $1 2,893 $0 ($12,893) $r 50,646

$87,653
264

282,407
68,635

0

35,453
18,714

0

$16,346 $148,059 $245,000 $96,941 $493,126

0

1-7118-02

1-7118-11

1-7007-14

1-7090-04

t717A-OO

1-71 36-00

1-7190-00

'1-7188-00

1-6302-21

1-63'1 3-20

$0
264

276,168
68,635

0
0
0
U

$87,653
0

6,239
0
0

35,453
18,714

0

$100,000
10,000

0
25,000

1 10,000
0
0
0

s12,347
10,000
(6,23e)
25,000

1 10,000
(35,453)
(18,714)

0

$345,067



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTR¡CT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2I

COST THRU
JUNE 2O2O

JUNE
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 20t21
BUDGET

$1,000,000

0

t:þccountanG\lnancrals\$mlryz1 \cpmubzt.Íslprolec6

(ovER)/UNDER TOTAL
GOSTBUDGET

$680,436

tt5

$429,500

1-6600-96

1-6600-x

l-6600-97

1-6600-92

1-6600-34

1-6600-83

1-6600-40

1-6600-39

1-6600-72

1-6600-87

'1-6600-88

45,724
0
U

68,996
15,803

0

0
10,787

0
0
0

5,520
0
0

0

2,142
12,O02
4,814

0
358

'145,606

192,000
100,000
100,000
75,000
20,000
20,000

0
0
0
0
0

1-6501-44

1-6502-47

2-6609-20

2-8829-00

2-7185-00

2-8912-00

2-6130-23

4-6133-20

2-7192-00

2-7183-02

2-6602-24

7

$2,126
46,102

0
0
0

708
0
0

0
U

0

$1,000,000
75,000
50,000

260,000
100,000

U

0
tt

0
0

$40,000
25,000

225,000
0

Description
3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS

a. Administration Building
I OfficefYard Building Renovation

b. Corp YardA/r/arehouse/Construction Office
1 Other Yard lmprovements

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
I Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair
2 Other Treatment Plant Improvements
e Efficiency lmprovements
+ STP-Chemical System Upgrades
s STP-High Service Pump #3 Replacement
6 F¡lter Underdrain/Media R&R
z STP-Upgr Plant Water Booster Pump Station
8 SIP-Replace Chlorine Control System
g STP-Discharge/Treatment
to STP-Coat Top of Concrete Clearuvells
t STP-Lake Aeration Expansion

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

a. Tank Construction
1 Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement

b. Tank Rehabilitation
1 Hydropnuematic Tank Repairs

c. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
d. Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S.
e. Other Tank & PS lmprovements

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

b. New Gallagher Well #2
c. PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
d. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization'?
e. Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
t. PB Replace-SR1 PT Reyes Caltrans
g. Olema PS Wireless to Tank
h. PRE P.S. #2 Pumping Equipment
i. Repl PRE 2" Galvanized Pipe-Balboa, Drakes View, Baywoo<
j. Repl Thin Walled Pipe < 4"-Bfackberry Ln
k. well #2 Rehab

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

$109,936

173

$142,752

15,145
150,067
226,865

0

$534,828

$0
$0

$578,764
82,616

1,455
386,826

32,357
75,876

8,468
0

0
0
0

$77,813
9,489

157,227

$147,693

0

4,500

$7,126

3,600
0

7,750
0

$319,564

(173)

40 903

$135,732

5,260
220

26,307
0

$813,080
282,151

rì

335,832
846

39,557
1ô8

8,361
5,363
2,796

22,643

$3,950
U

33,303
0

30,000
400,000
550,000

25,000

186,480
r 00,000
100,000
75,000
17,858
7,998

(4,814)
0

(358)
(145,606)

24,740
399,780
523,693

25,000

$186,920
(207,151)

50,000
(75,832)
99,1 54

(39,557)
(1 68)

(8,361)
(5,363)
(2,796)

(22.643'l

$36,050
25,000

191,697
0

51 ,244
0
0

68,996
17,945
12,002
4,814

10,787
358

145,606

20,405
150,287
253,172

0

$1,391 ,844
364,766

1,455
722,658

33,203
115,432

8,636
8,361
5,363
2,796

22.643

$81,763
9,489

190,530
0

¿,

6,61

0
0
0

42
0

0

0
4

1-6207-20

1-7170-00

1-6112-24

1-614'1-00

$500,000 $364,268 9278,484

N)
O)

5 RECYCLEDWATER
a. Other Recycled Water Expenditures

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER
6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

$18,476 $167,519 $1,505,000 $1 ,337,481 $702,347

$o $0 $100,000 $100,000 $0
$0 $o $100,000 $1 00.000 $0

$1 ,I 66,360 $48,936 $1 ,51 0,796 $1 ,485,000 ($25,796) $2,677,156

8-8672-28 a. lnfiltration Repair (Manhole Relining)
s-zo8s-os b. Tahiti Way Lift Pump Replacement
B-7173-oo c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA3
8-7173-01 d. OM Ïreatment Pond Rehab404 Grant-FEMA-Mgmt Costs3

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

$0
0

773
0

$244,529 9773 $37,253 $290.000 s252.747 $281.782

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDTTURES $2,838,290 $526,192 $3,381,228 $6,862,000 $3,330,772 $6,219,5r9



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30,2O2I

GOST THRU

JUNE 2O2O

JUNE
2021

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

($6,6s0)
75,566
61,082

$6,690 ($33,062)

(57e)
($57e) $129,958 ($610,000) $6,690 ($33,062)

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 20121

BUDGET

t\accounran6\nnancraFFtmÍyz1 \cpmobzr.¡slprolecB

TOTAL
cosTDescription

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
(Accrued)/Deferred

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 821
n. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization'?
c. OM ïreatment Pond Rehab-404 GranlFEMA3

FUNDTNG BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDyDEFERRED

Received
a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B2r
b. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization'?
c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA3

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

($26,372)

($26,372)

$0
(385,000)
(225,000)

$o
U

$0($1 16,642)
0
0

($1r6,642)

($4,042)
(411,398)

(86,060)

$o
(385,000)
Q25.000\

$4,O42
$26,398

($138,940)

($120,684)
($411,3e8)

($86,060)

$o
IJ

($501,500) ($6r0,000) ($1,228,142) ($618,142)

$3,009 686 000 3150

t\){

Notes to Capital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
(1) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization-$411,398 funded by others ($336,398K NRCS, $42,500K MALT, $25K MMWD, $7,500 Gallagher Family Trust)
(3) OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Project to be funded af 75%by grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (75%=$1 .425M). Also includes loans for

capital projects of $250K in FY22.

Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

000
000
000
000

37%
0%

102%
13o/o

BuCIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES
ProjectsNovato Water Capital

25337
rovementilGross ca

FYTD TotalCurrent Month
76,484

0
48,936

I t.t

1 00,
1,485,

1 ,833,179
0

1 ,510,796

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

CIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES:

0

773
48,936

Current Month FYTD Total Bud

12
Net

0%
107%
19o/o

100,000
1,100,0001,174,964

CONSULTING SERVICES/STUDIES

Dam Safety Emergency Action Plan
Stafford Dam EAP & lnundation Mapping Updates
Urban Water Management Plan
Electronic Document Management System
Oceana Marin Sewer System Management Plan
Stafford Lake Sediment Survey
West Marin Water Rate Study
Design Report (Eagle Dr & Hayden Hydro-P System Upgrade
COVID lmpacts-Safety
COVID lmpacts-Bldg Maintenance
MMWD Kastania Pump Stat¡on Eng & Ops

0
12,071
96,878
14,367
17,053
4,427

0
U

U

0
6,303

0
0

0
518

0
686

10,602
U

119
0

1,050
0
0
0

585

U

6,570
3,433
6,328

73,253
0

19,833
0

40,693
0

109
13,177

585

25,000
3,430
6,567
3,672

(23,253)
60,000
30,1 67
60,000
(5,6e3)
20,000

0
18,641

100,311
20,695
90,305
4,427

19,833
0

40,693
0

6,412
13,177

585

0e)
77)

c.

2-4082-OO

7i4o-oo d

358,515

rvey
Study

FERC Relicensing

7140-01

(1

(1 3,1

50,000
60,000
50,000
60,000

25,000
10,000
'10,000

10,000

35,000
20,000

0
0
0

1-4055-00 a.
i-4057-oo b.

1-4078-oo l.

1-4079-00 m.
1-4084-00 n.

f.

s.
h.

i.

j

k.

Local Water
Potter Valley

1-4050-01

8-4080-00



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Nofe I - Restricted Cash

Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new development.
These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the service area where
the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as expenditures are
incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance accrues interest
monthly.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $B million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54% annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 101271203'1 . ln June 2012 the Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling
Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues interest monthly.
The West Marin Fund was depleted in November2020 and the Novato Fund was depleted in January 2021.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The WRCRF
is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for Construction of
Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the District. The
September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended limiting the
reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipment (including transmission
pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's recommended 6%
interest rate factor and 2S-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Gapital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD) by
the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this fund.
Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance Costs
do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,711 was made
to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest to these funds quarterly.

STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin Gounty Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
($1,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2O-year repayment period. Every
January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the County 10% of the semi-
annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6/30/19. The County credits the fund with
interest quarterly, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2
semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserye fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.
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Financial Statement Notes

RWS Central SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the
construction completion date.

Note2-DesiqnatedCash

Liability Gontingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it reached
a balance of $2 million. ln FY9B the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and built-up a
proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the reserve was made
available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted Housing Program. ln
August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation
Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans. Currently there is $525,000
in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March 2005, $652,400 was expended
from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes Station. The home is currently
rented. ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Workers'Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2019, the District switched from self-insuring its
workers'compensation liability to l.tdollar workers'compensation insurance with Zenith lnsurance
Company. The premium for 1't dollar insurance is higher than staying with the SIR plan, but the risk of $1M
out of pocket costs is eliminated.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of 12 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of 20
years (for employees hired after September 30, 2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's
contribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the
same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for
both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse
becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per
year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus
$250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board
directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate
amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled Total OPEB Liability.
inãçZg:,an tuaiíálÁnafysis çaleulated NMWD's totaf actuarial neÏ:ili1,i|l.al$q:,7,,r¡liÅioni;,,The Retiree Medical
Benefits cash fund earns interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FYgl to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds of
$67f ,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $'100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% ot the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in
unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate working
capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds are
borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.
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Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to
an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service territory
that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the District.
Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the Program.
lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value occurring on
the purchased property. There are two employee-housing loans currently outstanding totaling $525,000: a
$250,000 loan dated March 20'15, and a $275,000 loan dated June 20'18.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term Receivables

ln 2014, the District entered into an interconnection agreement with MMWD for their share of the Aqueduct
Energy Efficiency Project. The 2.71% $3,622,882\oan will have yearly payments due of $205,320, and the
final payment is due in July 2032.|n 2015 the District entered into an agreementwith Marin Country Club
for their share of the pipeline extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course.
ln 2016 the District received a $6.6 million 30-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Central
project, and Marin Country Club agreed to pay the District $1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at
1.0% over 30 years for their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay
$430,463 of the District's localshare of the project in bimonthly payments of $8,242 over 10 yearsat2.Bo/o,
which is the Novato Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin
Country Club's water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018.
The final payment from Marin Country Club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047.The Marin Country
Club also owes the District $189,402.89 in previously unbilled water receipts due to a recording error in
their 6" AMI meter. $89,990.87 of this amount was paid by Marin Country Club in October 2020 and the
remaining balance due of $99,412.02 will be re-paid in $2,000 monthly installment payments and will be
paid in full March 2025.

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv
Aqueduct. .. . ..

Dam............
Buildings & Structures...
Mains............
Pumping Equipment...
Water Treatment Equipment..
Storage & ïransmission (16"+) Facilities......
Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations)...... .. . .

Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.
Vehicles I ton or greater. .. . .. . .. .

AII other vehicles......
Sewer Mains..
Sewer Pumps.

Note 6 - Caoita lization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Lifejþs¡s)
150

100

40
50
25
20

50
50
10

10

5

40
10
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Note 7 - Bond & Loan Servicinq Schedule for FiscalYear 2020-202'l

FY21

lssue
Date

Original Payment Final
Pmt

Interest
Expense

Principal
Paid

6t30t21
Outstanding

BalanceService Area Descriotion Ratê Amount Due

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

4 RWTP

5 RW North

6 RW South

7 RW Central

SRF Loan

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase
Loan

Bank

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

$196,033

$149,51 1

$ I 1 0.290

$848,442

$332,531

$7,564,614

s4,191,417

STP 2004 2.39o/o $16,528,850 711 & 111 711129

2011 3.54% $7,000,000 ZTthlmo 10127131

2018 2.69% $4,600,000 3t1 &9t1 3t1t33 s270,000 $3,830,000

NovatoTotal $455,834 $1,450,973, $15,586,031

2006

2013

2013

2016

2.40/o

2.60/o

2.2%

1.0To

$4,302,560

$4,375,605

$5,361 ,952

$7,1 30,503

6t20

Varies

Varies

12t19

6t19t27

Varies

Varies

12t31t47

$41 ,816

$76,891

$83,532

s67.058

$231,551

$205,002

9248,874

$1 ,510,788

$2,752,334

$3,548,055

$6,497,101715

Recycled Water Total $269,297 $894,142 $14,308,278

Bank
Loan

Marin
I WM Water 2012 3.54o/o $1,000,000 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Marin Water Total

$21.946 $48 .812 $614,949

$21,946 $48,812 $614,949

FY2'l Total 5747,077 $2,393 ,927 $30,509,258

1. ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2,39% 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants requ¡re an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment per¡od. Debt service is funded 25o/o by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54% (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan 9 above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 1S-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4o/o 2}-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015 in
Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in June
2007 , and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.
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5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.60/o 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o
2l-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4,2013, and the first payment was made in December of 2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0% 30-year loan of
$7,130,503 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. The project will be completed in
December 2017 , and the first payment was made December 31, 2018.

B. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and
the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. See note
to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemplovment lnsurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the District
reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid on our
behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount paid over
the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 = $23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Sectionl2S payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - lnterest Policv on lnter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of: 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.760/o at6130120)', or 2. The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auqmentations

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note l3 - Explanation of Financial Statement Gomponents

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Sources
and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash Flow by
Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides information
about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the District's
creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the District is improving or deteriorating.
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The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Gombined (page 8) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses on
this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and comply
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and expenses
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and can be
used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees and
other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 28) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, f g). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the Vehicle
Fleet Analysis (page 23), Equipment Expenditures (page 21) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 25), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note 14 -Gonnection Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund:

Expansion Local Share

North South Central NBln RA

SRFRWF Expans¡on

Loan SRFLoan

Transfer

ctP Total Executed
BPGL Loan
Repay¡nent

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FY1 O

FY1 1

FY12

FY1 3

FY14

FY1 5

FYI 6

FY17

FYl 8

FY'19

FY2O

FY21

$133,659

$233,478

$236,291

$0

$265,500

9723,525 $4,024

$17,563 ($4,024)

$0 $66,729

$362,524

$5,071 ,51 2

($2,1 68,755)

$5,499

$29,725

$50,478

$ 150,455

$75,1 98

$133,319

$1 '15,883

$315,023

$63,035

$38,283

$102,842

$194,636

$38,908

9ô,966

$o

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

922,795

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$0

s133,659
7

$1,970,400

$'t,550,200

$ô88,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747 ,513
($1,248,922)

($68e,600)

$133,659

$1,'175,098

($7,088)

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,ôô4

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

(91,248,922\

($68e,600)

$890,072

$29,725n 
$lg,zrs

$173,250

$23'1,652

$1 56,1 14

$637,656

$464,572 $802,390

$500,529 $1,550,200

$614,299 9688,916

$614,299 $806,664

$614,299 $36,687 91,230,940

$614,299 $5,747,513

$890,072 ($1,248,e22)

$350,287 ($1,046,471) $1,084 ($689,600)

$890

$603,428 $1,006,589 $3,337,509 ç1,314,751 $273,539 $5,552,728 $0 $37,771 2,126,315 $11,079,843 $r1,079,843
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Note 15 -Debt Service Coveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and
connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments on
the District's total debt.

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY2O FY21

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

$597,600 $1,860,520

$3,416,507 $3,434,069

$757,935 $833,197

$1,034,585 $1,455,400

$1 ,159,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$733,000

$1,830,000

$3,486,000

$806,000

$340,000

$849,000

$3,777,000

$748,000

$509,000

$5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000 $6,462,000 $5,883,000

Annual Debt Service $2,527,021 $2,201,451 $3,129,000 $3,139,000 $3,141,004

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.30 3.45 2.01 2.06 1.87
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MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Tony Williams, Assistant GM/Chief Engineer ø

Item #7

August 13,2021To:

From
Robert Clark, Operations/Maintenance Superintendent

Subj: NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Design Development Overview and Cost
R:\Foldars by Job N0\6000 jobs\6501.44 NMWD Office_Yard Bldg Rênovation\BoD Memos\August 17 2021\Updato\BOD Memo NMWO HO
UpgradeDesign_Fl NALdocx.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time.
(Design Services Agreement for $1,245,000 authorized at
1111712020 BOD Meeting; Construction Management
Services Agreement for $179,000 authorized 5114121 BOD
meeting)

At the April 6, and May 4, 2021 Board meetings, staff provided updates regarding the

progress of the NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Project by Noll & Tam Architects (N&T) and the

District's Building Committee. The Building Committee currently consists of Robert Clark, Pablo

Ramudo, Tony Williams, and Drew Mclntyre. ln accordance with the project schedule, a Design

Development submittal, representing an approximate 60 percent level of design, was completed

in July for Phase 1, new laboratory building; and Phase 2, renovation of the existing administration

building. The Building Committee and the District's Construction Management consultant team

(Consolidated CM) provided review comments to N&T and a series of meetings were held in late

July and early August to review and reconcile those comments,

Since the last update to the Board, the Building Committee and Consolidated CM have

explored combining Phase 1 and Phase 2 into a single construction phase. This would reduce

the overall construction time by approximately 9 months as well as reduce construction cost by

approximately $900,000. Combining the phases will also likely have an overall reduction in soft

costs as well (field inspections, CM, etc.). The proposed single phase of construction requires a

temporary laboratory facility be in place during construction and until the new laboratory building

is ready for occupancy. Discussions with Novato Sanitary District (NSD) have indicated that use

of spare capacity at their onsite laboratory facility combined with a temporary trailer for District

staff can accommodate many of the required testing and analysis performed by the District. Use

of existing outside vendors would make up the remaining needed lab testing. All of the details

associated with this temporary laboratory setup are still being finalized.

The Building Committee and Consolidated CM have also conducted a feasibility and cost

analysis regarding two options for maintaining a temporary office during construction: 1) use of

onsite temporary trailers; or 2) leasing available commercial space. Regardless of the project
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phasing, temporary office space is required while the building is being renovated. The onsite

temporary trailers would require temporary electrical power, internet service, telephone, water

and sewer connections. These utilities would be provided for a commercial space. After

consultation with the City of Novato Building Department, a building permit would be required for

temporary trailers and ADA accessibility improvements would be required as well as designated

parking for the public. Another concern for the trailers is safety: locating them so that they were

out of the way of the project's construction activities as well as situated for ease of public access.

ln addition, there are potential conflicts with existing utility easements on the District property that

could limit temporary trailer locations. The table below provides an overview of the analysis

performed for the two options:

Compar,ison Category Onsite Temporary Trailers Commercial Space

Cost* $3.32lSF $2.75lSF

Permitting Required Not required

All staff in one location Yes No

Temporary Utilities Required Not required

Available Parking Limited Yes

Public Access Limited No issues

Safety Staff and Public Concerns No issues

Meeting Space (BOD, etc.) Limited Possible
*for onsite trailers, ADA improvements and other permit conditions are not included. Doesn't include temp lab
trailer cost

The overall cost as well as the comparison of advantages and disadvantages (as listed

above), shows the commercial office space leasing option as favorable. The commercial space

option could also allow space for the Board to hold meetings, if needed. lnitial conversations have

begun with Newmark, the managers of the Wood Hollow Office Park located approximalely To of

a mile north of the District Office on Wood Hollow Drive off Redwood Boulevard.

The Design Development cost estimate for construction (excluding soft costs) of the two

Phases, including site improvements is $12,623,000. This total cost is still higher than the Master

Plan Conceptual Cost of approximately $11 million but represents a series of value engineering

efforts to reduce overall cost since the Schematic Design was developed in April2021. One of

the main factors effecting overall cost is the price of certain construction materials such as lumber

and steel. The N&T team, the District's Building Committee and the Consolidated CM Team

recently met and identified project elements that can be redesigned potentially resulting in lower
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construction costs as well as identifying utility work that could be performed by District forces such

as water and sewer service connections. ln addition, several project elements have been

identified that could be included as "Bid Alternates" that would be awarded as part of a base bid

only if prices were favorable. The current CIP budget for the project in fiscal year (FY) 2022

through FY 2024 is $15.5 million and includes all soft costs. Once the construction cost for a

combined Phase 1 and 2 is furlher refined, a total cost estimate (construction plus all soft costs)

will be developed to compare to the current 3-year CIP budget.

Key members of the N&T team will be providing a short presentation of the current Design

elements, including:

" Public Accessibility to the Building

. Electrical Charging Stations for Vehicles

. Exterior Landscaping and lmprovements

. Overall Cost Summary

. Project Schedule

The next phase of the Project is the development of Construction Documents, including plans,

technical specifications, and bidding documents, followed by the submission of a Building Permit

application with the City of Novato. ln addition, the District must perform environmental review

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for this proposed project prior to

construction. Filing of the appropriate CEQA Notice of Exemption (NOE) will brought to the Board

at a future meeting.
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ENTRY SEQUENCE AND EV CHARGING

VISUALLY PROMINENT RAMP S¡GNALS

BUILDING ENTRY UPON ARRIVAL

SITE PREPARED WITH

I NFRASTRUCTURE FOR I NSTALLATION

OF EV CHARGING AT VISITOR AND
EMPLOYEE PARKING; EV CHARGER

INSTALLATION AS AN ADD ALTERNATE

OR IN A FUTURE PROJECT

U

ó

nrf

0

,f

t

s

s

C)

o

ffi

i. o

c'1

4

È

a:::aa

f-trtr
:IE:¡.!
:IT:LIi

=

ocì3cìo



DESIGN I}EVELOPMENT - 3.0 UIEWS

rrl\I
I
I
I
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5Detail of North outdoor space from Rush Creek Place
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MEMORANDUM
Item #8

August 13,2021To:

From

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations/Maintenance Superintendent
Julie Blue, Audiior-Co nlroller ;4 í,4C.

Subj STP Solar Power Facility -Status Report (Fiscal Year 2018119-2020121)
t:\ac\word\stp solar prcj\status rpt - 2021.docx

RECOMIIIENDED AGTION: None

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Approximately $10,500 Average Annual Savings

The Stafford Treatment Plant (STP) Solar Power Facility commenced operation on August 9,

2012 atwhich time staff reported annual production and energy savings based on the net metering

year, Augustthrough July. ln 2018the District moved to Marin Clean Energy (MCE) as ourenergy

provider and the net metering year was moved to April through March. Each April, MCE will provide

an annual true-up report which will be used as the basis for the annual fiscal year report. Note that

due to recent CPUC rule changes, both PG&E and MCE will no longer reimburse excess energy at

the daily demand rates but rather generation rates which are 40-50 percent of the daily demand rates.

This change results in a rebate of about 15ølkwh versus the 25-45ÉlkWh received in previous years'

Additionally, an annual cap of $12,OOO for 2021 and $5,000 Íor 2022 going forward, has been

implemented.

FiscalYear 2018/19

During 2018t19 the solar facility produced 653,737 kWh of electricity. Under the terms of the

Power Purchase Agreement, the District paid 20.3ølkwh forthe solar energy produced. STP produced

556 MG of water which consumed 690,198kwh of electricity. The 36,461kWh differential required

more energy to be provided by PG&E at a net cost of $12,923 (based on the PG&E weighted average

daily rate of 35.41lkWh). With typical daily solar production, the STP only consumes 35% of the solar

power generated during the peak time of the day. The remaining 65% of production is delivered to the

pG&E Grid. The operation of the solarfacility resulted in a net power savings of the difference between

the weighted average daily PG&E rates and the cost of the solar production (35,4Élkwh - 20.3ølkwh

=15.1ølkwh). Additional savings was realized for excess energy sold to MCE.

FiscalYear 2019/20

During 2O1gt2O the solar facility produced 678,275 kWh of electricity. Under the terms of the

Power Purchase Agreement, the District paid 20.9Élkwh for the solar energy produced. STP produced

086 MG of water which consumed 769,012 kWh of electricity. The 90,737kWh differential required

more energy to be provided by PG&E at a net cost of $33,754 (based on the PG&E weighted average

daily rate of 37.2g,tk\Nh). The operation of the solar facility resulted in a net power savings of the

difference between the weighted average daily PG&E rates and the cost of the solar production

(37.zç,/kwn- 20.gølkwh =16.3ÉlkWh). Additionalsavings was realized forexcess energy sold to MCE.
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FiscalYear 2020121

During 2020121the solar facility produced 672,825 kWh of electricity. Under the terms of the

Power Purchase Agreement, the District paid 21 .sølkwh for the solar energy produced. STP produced

211 MG of water which consumed 592,171 kwh of electricity. The differential of 80,654 kWh was

provided to PG&E / MCE at a net cost of $26,535 (based on PGE weighted average daily rate of

32.9ølkwh). The operation of the solar facility resulted in a net power savings of the difference

between the weighted average daily PG&E rates and the cost of the solar production (32.9Élkwh -
21.\ø,lkWh =11.41,1k\Nh). Additional savings was realized for excess energy sold to MCE.

Additional lnformation

REC Solar, the contractor that maintains the facility, continues to mow the grass and clean the

panels within the field enclosure in early spring. The system was 100% operational with a three-year

average of 28 days of reduced production (less than 600kwh) due to cloudy skies.

The 2O-year solar facility financing agreement includes a 3% annual rate increase. Cost

effective operation of the solar facility will continue to be enhanced by the ability of STP to produce at

least 650 MG of water annually.

Net
Metering

Year

STP
MG

Produced

STP
mWh

Gonsumed

Solar
mWh

Produced
Savings/
(Loss)1 2

2012t13 804 788 677 ($1,000)

2013114 464 600 /J() ($16,000)

2014115 598 642 701 ($12,000)

2015116 563 646 623 $6,000

2016t17 756 89'1 690 $11,000

2017 t18 775 739 697 $4,053

2018t19 556 690 654 $10,227

2019t20 686 769 678 $15,027

2020t21 211 592 672 $6,205

1 Savings/(Loss) derivecj from operating the solar facility is calculated using the TOU rates in effect from the PG&E A6 rate
table plus 23Yo for PG&E demand, service and tax charges for 2012-2017.

2 Savings/(Loss) derived frorn operatirrg the solar facility is the savings earned from selling excess electricity to MCE for the
years 2018-2021.





Item #9

TO:

FROM

SUBJ:

REGOMMENDED ACTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Mana

August 13,2021

Gallagher Well No. 2 - Coastal Perm Appeal to California Coastal Commission
(County lD P3010)
rìtfotOers by þO noteOOO jobs\ôôog.20 new gallaghôr well #2\bod memos\coastâl permit appeal to cccS-13-21 clean doc

lnformation Only

$ 42,000 (estimated appeal costs to-date)

Background

Although the environmental impact of Gallagher Well No. 2 was thoroughly examined in

2009, the passage of time and new evaluation requirements informed the decision to prepare an

Addendum to the 2009 IS/MND. At the March 2,2021 meeting, the Board approved the CEQA

Addendum for the 2009 Gallagher Wells and Pipeline Project and adopted a Resolution finding

the proposed mitigation measures were consistent with the previously approved 2009 Mitigated

Negative Declaration for the Project and Staff filed a Notice of Determination with the county on

March 5,2021. No protest was received during the 30-day posting period.

Coastal Permit Process

DZA Approval

The project site, located to the north of the existing Gallagher Well No. 1 site at the

Gallagher family ranch, is within the Coastal Zone and therefore subject to the policies of the

Marin County Local Coastal Program (LCP). As reported to the NMWD Board at the April 16,

2021 meeting, the District submitted an LCP permit application to the Marin County Community

Development Agency (CDA) which is responsible for processing a Coastal Permit application'

The Marin County CDA held a public hearing on March 25, 2021for the Project's LCP permit

and the Deputy Zoning Administrator (DZA) approved the Use Permit at the same hearing. The

DZA also indicated that interested parties may appealthe decision to the Marin County Planning

Commission within five business days. A timely appeal was filed by Save Our Seashore (SOS)

on April 1,2021.
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As a result of the April 1 SOS appeal, the Marin County (MC) Planning Commission held

a public hearing on May 24, 2021to take public testimony and consider the project (reference

June lSth Board Meeting Agenda ltem 15 for related documents). Testimony was provided by

the Appellant (Mr. Gordon Bennett, SOS), District Staff (and consultants) and the public (Mr.

Ken Levin). After consideration of testimony the Planning Commission ultimately determined

that the bases of appeal were insufficient to overturn the DZA's approval of the project and

made many findings including the project is: (1) consistent with the goals and policies of the

Marin Countywide Plan and (2) consistent with mandatory findings for Coastal Permit Approval.

Final action at the meeting was to vote to deny the SOS appeal and approve the Coastal

Permit. The Planning Commission indicated that interested parties may appeal the decision to

the Marin County Board of Supervisors within five business days. An appeal was submitted by

Save Our Seashore on May 28th, within the five-day window.

Appeal to Marin Co untv Board of uoervtsors

As a result of the May 28th SOS appeal to the Marin County Board of Supervisors (BOS)

a public hearing was held during the regularly scheduled BOS meeting on July 13th,2021 to

take public testimony and consider the project. Testimony was provided by the Appellant (Mr.

Gordon Bennett), District Staff (and consultants) and the public (Mr. Ken Levin). Final action at

the meeting was to unanimously vote to approve the Coastal Permit (See Exhibit 1). Under

California state law, an appeal may be filed with the California Coastal Commission (CCC)

within the tenth working day following receipt of the Final Action Notice issued by Marin County

(i.e., August 5,2021) On July 28th a CCC staff member sent an email informing the District that

a timely appeal was submitted by Save Our Seashore (See Exhibit 2).

Aooeal to California Coastal Commission

The next step is for the California Coastal Commission (Commission) to consider the

appeal. Staff, legal counsel and our environmental consultant, ESA, are preparing a response

to SOS' most recent appeal so that it can be submitted to Commission staff in advance of the

California Coastal Commission Appeal Hearing. Commission staff has indicated that they need

time to review the project and prepare a thorough staff recommendation for Commission

consideration and are tentatively scheduling this item for the October 12th Commission meeting.
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August 13,2021
Page 3

The Commission's consideration of appeals is a two-step process. The first step is

determining whether the appeal raises a substantial issue that the Commission finds to be

significant enough to warrant the Commission taking jurisdiction over the Local Coastal Permit

appllcation. This step is referred to as the "substantial issue" phase of an appeal. At the

substantial issue hearing, Commission staff will make a recommendation for the Commission to

find either "substantial issue" or "no substantial issue". lf staff makes the former

recommendation, the Commission will not take testimony at the hearing and a "substantial

issue" is automatically found. lf Staff makes the recommendation that there is "no substantial

issue" the Commission will take testimony. lf, following testimony and a public hearing, the

Commission determines that the appeal does not raise a substantial issue, then the first step is

the only step, and the LCP approval by Marin County stands.

However, if the Commission finds a substantial issue, the Commission takes jurisdiction

over the LCP application, and the appeal heads to the second phase. ln the second phase of

the appeal, the Commission must determine whether the Gallagher Well No. 2 project is

consistent with the LCp. Commission staff will make a LCP decision recommendation to the

Commission, and the Commission will conduct a public hearing to decide whether to approve,

approve with conditions, or deny the Gallagher Well No. 2 LCP. The estimated time for

completing both steps through the Coastal Commission is approximately six months.

lnstallation of Gallagher Well No. 2 continues to be delayed due to this appeal
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Pursuant to CoastalAct Section 30603{d), Coastal Commissíon Regulations Section 1357
Policy and/or lmplementation Plan
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California Coastal Commission
455 Market Street, Suite 300
San Francisco, CA 94105

RCgq{}gI'åFÊN,A
îHoÍYrAs rÁr,'#iHtttu*

July 19, 2021

Attention: Coastaf Planner

Applicant's Name:

CoastalPermit Number:

Assessols Parcel Nurnber:

Project Location:

Determination:

, ,.,iìi.
ü'i'icE

J. ûfhat 6t8
;¿0 elRTFERSI]CE #

APPIAL PERiOD 13

Gallagher Family {North Marin Water District} Coastal permit
and Use Permit

Coastal Permit [P3010]

1 19-050-17

145AO Poínt Reyes-Petaluma Road, Point Reyes Station, CA

Approved Wth Conditions
(Resolution of the July 13ttt Board of Supervisors' hearing is
attached specifying action.)

Decision Date: July 13, 2021

county Appeal Period: NIA - Final appeal to Board of supervisors

Local review is now complete.

This permit lS appealable to the Califomia Coastal Commission (see Marin County Code Section
22.56.080 attached); please initiate the California Coastal Commission appeal period.

Any co.rrespondence concerning this matter should be directed to lmmanuel Bereket, Sr. Planner at
(415) 473-2755.

Sincerely,

lmmanuel Bereket
Sr. Planner

Attachmentl - Resolution

350ì Cvc CexrrR DRtvE, RooM 308 * SÂN RAFAE|, cA 949Õ3-41 57 * 415"49ç-ó269 * F¡x 41 5-479-7BBA

EXHIBIT 1



22.56.080 APPEALS TO THË CALIFORNIA COASTAL

TüMMtSSION

For those coastal project permits which are ãpproved for

develaprnents defined as "appealable" under talifornia

Public Resources tode, Section 30603 (a), an appeal may be

filed with the Californía toastal Cornmission by: ({} an

aggrleved party: 12) the applicant; or (3) two members of the

coastal commissíon. such appeals rnust be filed i¡t the office

of California Coastal Oommission not later than S;0Û p'm' of

the tenth working day following the date of action from which

the appeal is taken. ln the case of an appeal by an applicant

or aggrieved party, the appellant must have first pursued

appeal to the county appellate body (or bodies) as

established in section 22.56.A74 of the Marin county code to

he considered an aggrieved Party.
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î-*'"i;::å"t""*y:ilï:..:: 
nenaif of rhe Norrh Marin water Disrrict {NM*D) and

ir'*c"as..:,l*r'*J;,:.¡tr;l:ïiå?',f ff ffiîËÏ:iijinl'tit'iï;îå:Ëiäi:'ill
operate a munrcrparii:'i Ë"ä;;ri'Guard propertv in Potnti:y:^Ì:;i'ä:-;**sed project is
rwo we*s are rocateää'uË. ð;"rt ou"iä'pî;öntl; p"intnËvä' $i;iil (coas-tjuard wells)'

wh'e the rhird werr (ä,ì;;ñ|w^aiy1^1itËJ"-"å':il;ljlffi'fffIiJffrliT1,,ï*ir'uob teet

;ää.turr.i Gallasher well No' 2 3l 'p"l
norrh or the existing,äulrugr..,"' we.rr r,ro.^i îÅ- o;öî "t,n"oiån"*ã 

btdlätt is to increase the

reriabìrity or domestiJîåtË, suppv ,u otr*ui'i^ä"iå*u ot *.t"i'p"åä""tion åt *''* NMwD's other

weils locateo on tire-rj.s. c"uài Guard ñ;;ny. tT t1:p1t-ä';äi;;'ld 
tie into the existing

water trans*i"ìon-pipiinå to"tuo 'o'lir'l'of 
tne private' oJnnñt lqttn i:::ss 

road' The

oroposed we' and i*irørti"" plpetinesï;;';;J; within öoÍ"*t of Lagunitas creek' which

ïou*tu". the Project site'

As part of this project, the NMwD wourd abandon an existing werl (the Downey well)' which lies

within the Lasunrtár'bi*ã* stream ,nri..,¡äi.'inï'uå*nuv \i'"il;à; initiallv constructed on the

bank of *re lagunit-as Cr*et stream.,HJ;;,;;,';h; til-f r'tu* 
"tigiàt*d 

ovär time such that the

weil is now locateJ;t th- center of 
'n*ïiã& 

tr'"nnet' ns t t*iüit the Downey Well produces

unsafe water quuTity for domest¡, """rlrñpìion' 
oiÀ*t i*p'**,n*nts proposed include the

construction ot*u.åïoi*'triu*iäÃîio-¡"ur, p'uîrn stations, 
" 

*äriti*ru, and other components both

*iitrìÀ and outside the project site'

The proposed municipar waterwer wi, serve the pubrÞ's criticar need by creating a reliable water

source for the commùnities or point *-iãTsår',Ñ, ä;;; tÃuàrn*u* Park, and Paradise Ranch

The properiy is located at 14500 Pt, Reyes-Petaluma Road' Point Reyes station' and is fudher

iJ"ni¡n*ä as Asres*or's Parcel 119-t50-17'

2'WHËREA$,onMarch25,20'2'lthel\ilarìnCountyDeputyZoningAdnrinisiratorhelda
dulv noticed pubtic hearing to take public iärti*onv and côns¡der ihe prolect and approved the

ääír"ghàt ru*ily Co"*tal Þermìt and Use Permit'

3'WHHRËAS,onAprill,202l,Mr.GordanBenneti,onbehalfofSaveOurShores'
submitted a timely appeal of the Gallagnui Famity Coastal Permit and Use Permii approvaì'

4.WHEREA$,onMarch24'2a2l,theMarinCounty,PlanningCommissionheldaduly
noticed public hearing to take public testimony ànd considei tne prolect and denied the appeal'

Estates

Resolution No. 2021-53
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and approved the Project.



:. ,- ,. WHEREAS, on May Zs, 2021submitted a timerv àppear;rilõ",,;;,1;,"H-î,"r'åil$;,ï:lt:l b:¡ur or save our shores,

.?. , ,. wHERËAs, on Jury 13, 2021 . the^r"" " ": _::tør 

rcrmrt and use Permit approval.
pubric hearins to take puuri.'tes-r,riåi;åffiifl'Jf"iïilyfr:Ël-orsupervisors herd a dury noriced," . WHËREAS, the bases of appeatoecision, for the reasons o¡r"rrrãiïå;il."* insufficienf to overrurn the planning commission,s

A' The. appellant asserts thet rao ,n^ô r¡!¡!

ilË:i,åî,åi:;r,irrffi *i,f:1,,'-,1Ïffi ï."#31ïïå"î:îiii:ïi_:ì
under the c.alifornia Environmental Quality Act (cal., pu.b. Res. codc section 21000et seq') and the .EQA c'ioårin* .*t"í"-å'i),îly:^io or the c"r¡rãÃ¡u code or
Resurarion* 1car. coàe *ö rit. l+, öå-.î"" ìsoool, ä _iãt"-îrïl.ar 

"sun"y
tvpicarrv ässurnes one of iñ"^::':* iÅ ciän'imþrumãni"tiå^,-räro-,os*n.y 

o,.Responsible Agencv' À GJAg*ngv hl: *,uirìnäiË"J resp.onsibirity foi carryins ouror approvíng a proiecf' Therefore, has the r*åu ,uîponsibirity.for ímprementing thec ËQA p'o:.9:t 
3ry ¡1*n"'ìôiÀ" b E¿iÀ ä;î;iÌir rh ar project (cãr code Resstit' 14' *u1i'o-1-1uolo) Ã nËsponsinr- ns-^-y i-'än usun.y orher than the LeadAgency with some oisåretionãfil authority;";; prùa:"r or a portion of it, but whichis nor desisnared rhe L*"J Ágå;'.t is;;ä ðåäA õlio*,,n** secrion r ssdr ). cEeAalso requíres Lead Agencies io consuft witn relevanüiustee agencies with jurisdíctionby taw when prepartng CËaA Jocuments (Cal Code nug*liit i¿ä;ïå" 15086).Trustee agencies, sücrl. as'ì¡,u nepartrànì 

"î-ËËh and witdtife (DFVV), have

'.,ü-u%il'"^ 
over resources held in trusiror Cariiorni- iàrr. code Ress. rir. 14, section

ln this case, the NMWD is the public âgency responsible for carrying out theproposed project and is the Lead Agun"fl wrli* niar¡n county is a ResponsibfeAgency' As a Lead Agency, the NMW-D nuï fl"ru àrilrårity to determine what tevel ofcËQA review is required for the pro¡e*t 
"nã 

räi'ir*p"ring and approving theappropriate 
..doc_ument [e.g., negative decraratioÅ (ND), mitigated negativedeclaration {MND), or Enviionmental lmpact nepòrt terni. rrreïéau Agency,sdecision is normaily binrring on ail Responäibtu Agåncies

Ilq, t?l* of a Responsible Agency is much nar*wer than that of a Lead Agency.
While the Lead Agency must Consider all environmental impacts of the projectËåt"i"
approving it, a Responsible Agency has a much more spãcific charge: tb consider
only those aspects of_the,project that are subjeet to ir¡e Responãible Agency,sjurisdiction. (State cËQA Guidelines section tsooo¡. ln other words, tne bouÁty
needs to rely on the environmental review adopted'by the Lead Agency, but that
does not mean thai the County has to äpprove the projåct.

B. The appellant asserts that the Planning tomrnission erred in approving the
projeot without preparation of a new Ënvironmental lmpact Repo*,

Resolution No. 2021-53
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The State CEQA Guidelines allow the Lead Agency to prepare an addendum to an
adopted negative declaratÍon "if only minor technical changes or additions are
necessary but none of ihe condiiions described in Section 15162 calling for the
preparation of a subsequent ËlR or negative declaration have occurred" (14 C.C.R.,
CEQA Guidelines Sectionl 51 64 (b)).

The Addendum ihaf the NMWD prepared, circulated for public review, and adopted
concluded ihat there will be no new impacts. Additionally, the proposed change to
the prr:ject would not resuli in any new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects in the
2009 MND, Further, as explained in the Addendum, all environmental effects would
be reduced to less than significant levels with the incorporation of mitigation
mea$urðs adopted in the 2009 M¡JD. The appellani chose not to challonge the
NMWD's CHQA determination in couttl, and the time límit for such a challenge has
since lapsed.

The appellant asserts that the North Marin Water District has not fully studied
the effects of multiple welfs, and additional wells may not be necessary to
sêrve its customers.

ln this appeaf point, the appellant raises no issues related to the project conformity
with standards outlined in the CoastalAct, the Marin County Localtóastal Frogram
(LCP), or the lnterim Zoning Code. lnstead, the appellant questions whethei the
NMWD completed the appropriate level of studies and whether an addìtÍonal well is
necessary to serve the NMWD's customers.

Pursuant to fnterim Zoning Code Section 22,89.1201, this appeal is de novo. For the
Board's "de rìovo" review of the application, the standard of review for the subject
Coastal Permit and L.lse Permit is the policies and provÌsions of the County of Mârin
Local Coastal Frogram, the Countywide Plan and the lnterim Zoning Code, which
applies to the coastal areas.

As described in detail in Section 13 below, the project conforms to all applicable
requirements of the Countywide Plan and is consístent with the mandatory iindings
for approving a Coastal Permit, as discussed in Section 14 below. Approval of the
proposed project would not adversely ímpact biologicaf and coastal resources,
including coastal acoess and recreational facilities. Further, as discussed in Section
15 below, the proposed project is consistent with the governing C-APZ-60 zoning
district and required findings under Section 22.57,0361 of lnterim Zoning Code
because it would be compatibfe with and accessory to the existing agricultural uses
on the property. Finatly, as discussed in section 16 below, the proposed project
meets the mandatory findings to approve a Use Fermit (under Sectíon 22"8S.0101.2
of the lnterim Zoning Code) because public utiiities, such as public wells, may be
permitted with a Use Permit under Section 22.88.0101"2 of the Interim Marin County
Code when it is found to be necessary for public health, safety, convenience, or
welfare.

Ïhe Planning Commission approved the Coastal Fermit application because it met
the legal requírements and findings for approving such a permit. The Board's purview
does not include a determínation of whether a project is necessary, lnstead, as

Resolution No, 2021-53
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cliscussed above, the standard of review is confined to the project's consistency wlth
all applicable regulations. Based on the substantial evidence on record, including
project plans and environmental studies, the project meet$ the required findings for
approval.

D" The appellant asserts that the NLWD is unlawfully pumping water reserved for
salmon when it has other alternative watêr sources that would not impact
salrnon nor violate its water permits.

The State Water Board's Division of Water Rights administers California's water

rights systenr (SWRCB). The Division of Water Rights also procosses petitions

submitted by wastewatei treatment plant operators who wish to increase or decrease

their discharges to a stream. The Òounty lacks jurisdiction over matters related to

water rights. ñlatters related to water rights and violation of any applicable covenants,

agreements, or restrictions äre withiñ the purview of other agencies, notably the

SWRCB and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Since the appellant

raises no issues related to the project conformity with standards outlined in the

Coastaf Act, the Marin County Locål toastal Program (LCP), the lnterim Zoning

Code, or other matters subject to the County's purview, the Board should dismiss

this apPeal Point

g. W¡-¡ËREAS, the NMWD prepared and adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration (NMD)

in 200g in accordance wiih the requirements oi the Çalifornia Ënvironmental Quality Act

Guidelines (14 tal. Code Regs" 15CI00, et seq^)'

9. WHEREAS, on Februa ry 7 ,2A21, the NMWD prepared an Addendum to the 2009 MND'

which was circulated'for a 30-day public review perÍod and adopted by the NMWD Board on

March 2,2A21

10. wl-{ERËAS, under state ÇEQA Guidelines sectìon 15367, the NMWD is the Lead

Agency responsible íor carrying out or approving a qroiegt a.nd lmplementing the OEQA process'

and preparing the CHQA Uocument forthe pro¡e"ct içai. CoUe Regs' tit' 14' Seciion 15050)'

ll.WHEREA5,thecountyisaResponsibleAgencyun<JerthestateüËoAGuidelines
Section 1538'1 .

12. WHËREAS, îhe Addendur¡ that the NMWD prepared, circulated for public review', and

adopted concluded that ihere the proposed change to the project would not result in any new

significant environmental effects. or a substantial iricrease in thå severity of previously identified

sig'ificant effects rn the 2009 MND. The òounty's review determined rhat the 2009 MND and

2CI21 Addendum ,cequx*rv evaluate tÁe aspeâts of the project subject to county approval'

Therefore, further enulronm*nlal review cannot be required by the County as a Responsible

Agency.

1g. ì/VHËRËAS, the project is consistent with the goals and policies of the Marin Countywide

Plan for the following reasons:

A. As discussed in section 15 below, the proposed project is compatible wiih the C-

AFZ land usu o**ignation foithe proieci site. lt would not iniedere with the existing

r¡se of the ranch property for lívestock grazing. The project will involve the

Resoluilon No. 2021-53
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construction of â municipal well thät is accessory to the existing use. The design,

location, siee, and operaiing characteristics of the proposed facility will be compatible

with the allowed uses in the vicinity.

B. As discussed in Section 16 below, fhe rnandatory fìndings lo approve a Use Permit

can be made to allow a public utility to serve the public and is necessäry for public

safety, convenience, and welfare.

C- The project ìs consistent with the CWP wosdland preservation policy (BlO-1.3)

because it would not entail the irreplaceable removal of a substantial number of

måturË, native trees. No vegetation removal is proposed with this project.

D. The project is consístent wiih the CWP special-status spectes protection policy (BlO-

2.2) because the subject property does not provide habitat for specialrstatus species
of plants. Protected species are in Laguniias Creek, but potential impacts to those
fish would be reduced to less than significant impacts because the Mitigation ând
Monitoring Program would be implemerrted.

Ë. The project is consistent with the CWP natural transition and connection policies (BlO

2.3 and BIO 2.4) because it would not substantially alter the margins along riparian
corridors, wetlandg, baylands, or woodlands. As documented in the MNÐ, two
componentc of the proposed project would require work within the stream channel of
Lagunitas Creek. Removing the exísting wellhead of the Downey Well will reqtlire
that an excâvätor, working from the top of the bank, remove the existing wellhead.
No riparian vegetation would be removed to abandon the well. The relocated gauging
station would be constructed on the edge of the Gallagher Ranch pasture and wou[d
not require removal of rìparian or vegetation other than annual grasses,

F. The project is consistent with the CWP stream and wetland conservation policies
(BlO-3.1 and üWP BtO-4.1) because the proposed municipal water well is one of the
types of improvements permitted within the wetland conseruation areâ and stream
conservation area, provided such projects would not resr:lt in any significant adverse
direct or indirect impacts on wetlands and minimize tmpacts to stream function and
to fish and wildlife hahitat.

G. As cliscussed äböve, the proposed project is to construct a municipal well to serve
the pubtic. Although the proposed project would be focated adjacent to Lagunitas
Creek, which is identified as a blue-line ströam, no stream impoundments or direct
diversions would occur as part of the project, nor would the project alter the stream
channel or stream banks. Ëurther, construction activities would not conflict with any

Habitat Corrservation Plans, Natural ConservatÍon Community Plans, or any
approved lncal, regional, or State habitat conservation plans, ,Additionally, the project
proposes to dedicate certain water rights for instream flows to protect, preserve,

restorê, and recover aquatic organisms and wildlife habitat. This water dedication
would benefit the wetland habitat in West Marin by allowing the National Park $ervice
to implernent its planned Olema Marsh restoration by availing additionaf water,
enabling full implementation of the Giacomini Wetland Restoration Frojeci.

Resolution tilo. 2021 -53
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Strict adherence to the adopted Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
(MMRP) would ensure no impacts on the CWP strearn and wefland conservation
policies.

H, The project is consistent with CWP water quality polieies and would not result in

substantial soil erosion or discharge of sediments or pollutants into surface runoff
(WR-1,3, WR-2"2, WR-2.3) because the grading and drainage improvements would

comply with the Marin County standards and best managemenl practices required

by the Departrrrent of Public Works.

l. The project would not cause significant adverse impacis on water supply, fire

protection, waste disposal, schoo[s, traffic and circulation, or their services.

1d" WHHREAS, the project is consistent with the mandatory findings for Coastal Permit

approval (Marin lnterim Zoning Çode Section 22"56.1301).

A. Water SuPPlY.

The NMWD historically has relied on the iwo Coast Guard Wells (located to the south of

its treatrnent plant, whlch ìs located approximately 500 feet from the end of tommodore

Webster Drivä at the point Reyes Staiion former Coast Guard Housing Facility) to supply

water for the West Marin senrice area. Due to the wells' location in the upper tidal reach

of Lagunitas Creek, they are under the influence of flows in the tidal reach of Lagunitas

Creek anO sun¡ect ìo påriodic salinity intrusion and occasional floodìng. The Gallagher

Ranch site is uþstre"m of any flooding and tidal reaches of l*agunitas Creek' However,

the existing run¡Wn Gailagher Well Nì^ t has a limited flow capacity (170 gallons per

minute) unã ¡, not currentlf connected to the West Marin distribution system' This project

would ¡ncrease the water'supply from the Gallagher site and integrate those wells into

the NMWD distribution system. Because noin Ooast Guard Wells mostly have

acceptable watár quality, offer reliable water supply during mosi months, ånd have ample

capa.rity to recharge, the Coast Guard Wells will continue to be the primary source'

The proposed Gallagher Well No. 2 would be used_during períods of high.tides, avoiding

saltwater intrusion iñto tne water supply systenr. By establishing a reliable emergency

backup source of water upstream of tfre 
-hlg-h 

tide water influences of Tomales Bay, water

service reliability will increase with the iirplementation of the proposed project, The

proposed wett witt serve West Marin communities of Point Reyes Station (including the

Ccast Guard housing area), lnverness Park, Paraclise Ranch Estates, Bear Valley

(including the Point 
*R"yus 

National seashore), and olema. The NMWD has an

agreement to assist the tnverness Public utilities District during Ðmergency water

shortages" ir,e à*u*lopment of this supplementary sLrpply, therefore, stands to benefit

that communitY.

îhe project would be consistent with planned development and planned growthìn the

region. The LCp describes existing and projecte.d.growth ìn the region' The LCP also

describes existing and projected wãter supply and demand in keeping with this projected

growih. Tú ñeo;eá þroject is consisteni with the LCP in that it is not growth-inducing

and would not increase the NMWD'S water supply. lnstead, the proposed project is

intended to secure a reliable and safe source of domestic water for the NMWD's

customers. ifr. pi"i."t would offset pumping volumes obtained at the Coast Guard
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Wells only when unavailable due to salinity intrusion or other operational conditions
preventing pumping, Thb amount of water pumped from all wells would remain within the
limits set in the water rights permits.

B. Septic System Standards

The Marin County Environmental Health Services Division staff reviewed the proposed
project and determined that the existing septic system would not be affected by the
project.

C. Grading and Ëxcavatisn

The project siie has va¡'ious slopes, and the project is designed to fit the site's topography
and exísting soil conditions, The prnject would include digging an approximately 500-
foot-long trench to place the pipelíne and digging the S9-foot deep weÌ[. The land
exposed at any one time during construction will be kept to the shoñest possible time,
As required by the mitigation measures, the area must be restored to a similar condition
as before the project. All excavated soil and excess material will be hauled to NMWD's
Corporation Yard in Novato for future use. The well pad would be the only impervious
sur-face created by the project. Chemicals, fuels, and any other materials onsite would
be used only for construction and would be properly disposed of within an authorized
landfill"

D. Archaeological Re$ources.

The project site was surveyed for archaeological and historical resources in connection
with the 20Û9 MND and the Gallagher Ranch bank stabílization projects. No
archaeolÐgical re$ources were identified as part of this survey or subsequent
implementation of the Gallagher Well No. 1 or bank stabilìzation, both qf which were
completed in 2010. While it is unlikely that the prcject would result in disturbances to
cultural resources, in ihe event archeological resourres are uncovered during
construction, all work shall immediately cease. The services of a quaNified consulting
archaeologist musi be engaged to assess the value of the resource and develop
appropriafe mitigation measures.

E. CoastalAccess

The proposed project is not located adjaceni to a shoreline. Therefore, the project would
not have any impact upon coastal access,

F. Housing.

The proposed project would not remove a residential unit that would provide housing
opportunities for ìow or moderate-income people.

G, Stream and Wetland Resource Proteotion

A municipal well is allowed within stream or wetland area under the Marin County lnterirn
Zoning Code $ection 22.56.1301.G.1, which provides "{sJtream diversions shall be
limited to necessary water suppli/ projects..." and the minimum flows necessary to
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maintain fish habitat, existing water quality, and protect downstream resources are

mainiained, as determined by the Department of Fish and Game and the Division of

Water Righis of the State Water Resources ünntrol Board (SWRÇB). Addiiionally, under

the LCPb Natural Resources Policy 3,a, development of water supply infrastructure

within mapped perennial or intermittent streåms, including impoundments, d.iversions'

channelizaiíons, and other substantial alterations, are permitied, provided such projects

mlnimize impacts on sensitive coastat resources. The LCF's Natural ResOUrCeS POliCy

S.b ôrgviOes that for such water supply projects must."inÇorporate the best mítigation

measures feasible, including erosion'and ruïoff control meâsures, and revegetation of

disturbed areas with native õpecies. Disturbance of riparian vegetation shall be held to a

minimum."

As described in the project documents, the project could. result in a reduciion in creek

discharge. However,'ìhÉ magnitude of this teOuhion would be negligible and would not

substaniially reduce streaniflow or lower water surface to the degree that would

adversely impact stream habitat, and thus would not decrease streäm flows' ìndividually

oicumutâtiv*ly, b"low the minimum flow level required by the SWRCB'

H. Dune Frotection.

The project site is located east of the community oT Point Reyes station' There are no

"äùi"liv 
occurring dunes on or wiihin the vicinity of the project site.

l. Wildlife Habitat Protection.

As described in the 2009 MND and subsequent Addendum, no vegetation or special-

status species and sensitive natural communities would be removed or impacted by the

project. special-statu* ãn¡mar species, inctuding Steelhead and Coho, were identified as

present in the projeci 
"iÀu 

áf 
"ng 

t-agunitas Ct*äk' Hu*"ver, the proposed project wÕuld

be sited to avoid wildlife habitát areas and to provide buffers for such habitat areäs'

Additionally, mitigatiàn measure '12-25 requires protection,lïeasures for special-status

species, Adherenceï tÅ* i"qùituu mitrããiion t*r*ut** described in the MND would

minimize impacts to special status spetles'

J. Protection of Native Plant tommunities'

The proposed pr'oject itself worrld not adversely impact native plant communities

because the project ìs proposed to occur in an area where no vegetation exists'

However, accorOing to"tf* äOOg MNû, the project site includes special-siatus species

and non-indigenous, naiuratized annual gräss species' These norr-indigenous grasses

threaten the re-establi'shment of nativJ plant species' As required by the project

mitigations, the project would include ,"r*uåing of disturbed areas with native vegetation

appiopriate for ihe'habitat type following construction

K. Shoreline Protection'

The subject proper^ty is not adjacent to the shoreline, and the proposed project would not

result in adverse effects on the coastline. The project would not require additional

shoreline protection.

Resolution No. 2021-53
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L. Geologic Hazards.

The project is located in a Seismic $haking Amplificatíon Hazard Area Zone 2, but is not

located within the vicinity of any known fauli lines'

M. Public Works Projects.

The proposed project is not located near l-lighway 1, nor would it include any roadway

improvements"'As described in fhe application material, the purpose of the project is to

protect ftre sàfety and reliability of NMWD's water supply for its consumers. The project

would not in.reaåe NMWD production capacity butwould provide a supplementalsupply

source when the other weli sites are unavailable. The project would not expand utility

service beyond the existing seruice limits and woultJ conform with the resource and visual

policies of the LCP and Marin municipal code"

N. Land Division Standards-

The project does not include a land division or property line adjustment.

O. Visual Resources and Gommunity Charâctêr'

Once the construction of the project is completed, project improvements would not be

visible trom puntic vantage pointå because of topography and existing vegetation. The

small gaugini station unðlo*ure would be screened by vegetation between Point Reyes*

petaluma Road and the creek. The wellhead vault would be almost flush with the ground

surface. p¡ping would be underground, except where it is attached to the underside of

the Gallagher"Ranch bridge. The pump control steel cabinet wsuld be aboveground but

screened for public view üy roadside vegetation from Point Reyes/Petaluma Road' The

project would not alter existing open space views in ihe area.

P. Recreational/Commercial/Visitor Facilities'

The project site is governed by Û*APZ-60 (Çoastal, Agricultural Production Zone)zoning

reguiations and wðuld not provide commercial or recreational facilities'

Q. Historic Resource Preservation'

The project site is not located within an icientified historic area of the LCP' The project

site was uu**y"à for srchaeological and historical resources in 20Û9 for the Gallagher

Ranch trant< stâbilization project, and no historical resources were identified'

A California Historical Resources lnformation System {CHRIS) records search identified

one existing i*rourr* of the Black Mountain Historic era ranch' The bridge over

Lagunitas C"reek was identified as a new historic re$ource, The projeci would not impact

these resources because the well and the mains would be primarily underground'

15. WHËREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the governing C-APZ-60 (Coastal,

Agricultural production zone, bne unit per 60 acres maximum density) and reqgirecl findings under

$ection 22.57 .0361of Marin County Code because:

tìesolution No. 2-021 -53
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A" The project would be compatible with and accessory to the existing agricultural uses
on the property. Public water facilities like wells are conditionally permitted in the C-
APZ zoning district. The proposed well would not signìficantly affect agricultural
production on the Gallagher Ranch. The project would affect less than 0,01 percent
of the 330-acre ranch and would not interfere with the operation of the existíng
livestock ranchíng operations.

B. The proposed project will have no significant adverse impacts on environmental
resource$, incfuding.strearn or riparian habitats and scenic resources.

C. The proposecl project will not impact or impair other agencies' ability to provide
necessäry services (fire protection, police protection, schools, etc.) to serve the
project site.

16. WHËRËA$, the proposed project is consistent with the mandatory findings to approve
a Use Permit (Section 22.88.0101.2 nf the lnterim Marin County Code), as specified below,

A. The establishment, rnaintênänoê or conducting of the use for which ã uss
permit is sought will not, under the particular case, be detrimental to the health,
safety, morals, comfort, convenience, or welfare of persons residing or
working in the neighborhood of such use and will not, under the circumstances
of the particular case, be detrirnental to the pubtric welfare or lnjurious to
property or irnprovements in the neighborhood.

The proposed project would benefit the public health, safety, and welfare by providing
safe water for domestic consumption. The project would reduce the need to pump at
the Coast Guard Wells during hígh tides or other conditions where pumping is known
to cause saltwater intrusion and contamination of the aquifer, The project would
reduce the need for increased off{ide pumping (which is currently done to
compensate for the times when high tides prohibit pumping) The proposed project
would not only increase safety but would improve supply reliability. The project,
therefore, will be beneficial for public health, safety, and welfare.

The project would further benefit the environment by providing water for plants, fish,
and wildlife by permanen{ly dedicating212.7 acre-feet (0.699 cfs)of Lagunitas Creek
water that the NMWD cån currently divert to instream uses (i.e., for the benefit of
plants, fish, and wildlife usìng the creek). Reduction in offlide pumping at higher
rates would also benefít the Lagunitas Creek fishery by keeping more water in the
stream.

Finally, as proposed, the project would be consistent with all applicable policies of
the Marin Couniywide Plan. The proposed project would not result in visual impacts
because the facility would be located over 400 feet from the nearesi public roadway
in an area that is parlially screened from off-site locations Lry exisiing vegetation and
topographical features, The project would not alter the drainage pattern of the area.

Resolution No. ?-021-53
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SECTION ll: ACTION

NOW îHEREFORE, BË lT RËSOLVED that the project described in condition of approval 1 is

authorized by the Marin Çounty Board of Supervisors and is subject to the conditions of projeci

approval^

This decision certifies the proposed project's conformance with the requirements of the Marin

Cor-rnty Development Code and in no wåy affects the.requirements of any other County, State,

Federai, or local agency that regulates development. fn addition to a Building Permit, additional

permits and/or uppro"uL may nä required from the Deparlment of Public Works, the appropriate

Fire protection Agency, the Énvironmental Health Services Division, water and sewer provìders,

Federal and State agencies'

SËCTloN lll: CONTITIONS OF PRoJËcT APPROVAL

NoW, THEREFORE, BH lT RES0LVED that the Marin County Board of Supervisors hereby

approves the Gallagîei Famity Coastal Ferrnit and Use Perntit, subject to the conditions licted

below

CDA-Pl,anninS Division

This Coastal permit and Use Perrnit approval authoriues the construction of a municipal well

to provide water for customers in the community of Point Reyes Station^ Two wells are located

on U.$. Coast CuarU prop*rty in Point Reyes $taiion (Coasi Guard Wells), while the third wetl

(Gatlagher Wetl No. ij. is focated on thõ project site. The .proposed 
projec,t-is to construct

GallagherWell llo. Z as part of the Gallagher'Wells,,located approximately 500.feet north of

the existing Gallagher Well No. 1. The futpo*u of the proposed project is io jncrease the

reliability oîuo**rti" water supply to offset the loss of water production at the NMWD's other

weils rocated on the u.s. coast'Guaro properly. The proposed weil wourd tie into the existing

watertransmission p'puLln* located south'of t'he private'Gallagher Ranch l9ceT road' The

proposeO well and disiribution pipelines would occur within 100 feet of Lagunitas Creek, which

traverses the Projecl site.

As part sf this project, the NMWD would abandon an exisiing well (the lgqney well), which

lies within the Lagunitäs creek stream channel. The Downey Wellwas initially constructed on

the bank of the Lagunitas Creek stream. HoWeVer, the creek has migrated over time such that

the well is now tocatåJ at the center of the creek channel' As a result, Downey Well produces

unsafe water quaìity for domestic consumption. Other improvements proposed include the

construction of water distribtrtion pipelines, plrmp stations, a wellfield, and other components

both within and outside the project site'

plans submitted for a Building Fermit shall substantially conform to plans identified as Ëxhìbit

A, entitled "Gallaghàr Well Ño. 2," Öonsi$ting of 2 sheets.prepared by Ngrth" lVlarin Water

District, received in final form on February 6, 2!21: t.ld on file with the Marin county

community Developrnent Agency, except as modified by the conditions listed herein'

The project shall conform to the Planning Ðivision's "Uniformly Applied Sta.ndards 2021" with

respect to all of ttre staÀOar¿ conditions ãf approval and the following special conditions: 10'

Resolution No 2021-53
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SËCT-ION IV: VESTING

NOW THEREFORË, BE lT RËSOLVED that unless conditions of approval establish a different

time limit or an extension to vest has been granted, any permit or entitlement not vested within

two years of the date of the approval, shall expire and become void. The permit shall not be

deemed vested until the permit holder has actually obtained any required Building Permit or other
conslruction permit and has substantially completed improvements in accordançe wíth the

approved permits, or has actually commenced the ailowed use on the subject propedy, in
compliance with the conditions of approval.

SËCTION V: VOTE

PASSEÐ AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of

Marin, State of California, on this 13rr' day nf July 2021, lty the following vote:

AYHS $UFERVISORS Damon Connolly, Katie Rice, Stephanie Moulton-Feters,
Dennis Rodoni

NOË$:

ABSEI{T

ATTEST:

CLËRK

NONË

Judy Arnold fi rÌ sÉ

d#b"*-#ffi#å*-
dl

PRËSIDENT, BOARD OF SUPERV¡SCIRS

Resoiution No, 2021-53
Page '12 af 12



êAV|N ilËWBO{r, OOt/ERil/oR
SIATË OF N TUR LRÊSOUnCËS^CËI{Cy

CALIFORìIIA COASTAL conütsslol¡
xoßrx cÊfrr*¡L çOÅ,sT DlSlRlCf oFFlcE
a5s uÀRr(ET 91',, $UlÎÊ æ0
g¡¡{ FRAt'aCtseO. C ¡ll0*2420
tr1$l00{-12ô0 "r'
r{oRTHCEt{TRArÕoÄSTlrôo^$1Âl.cA.6OV

APPHAL FORijl

Appeal of Local Govemment coastål Development Permit

Flllng Inüormetlon (SIAFF OlltYl

District Office: North Cenbaltoast

AppealNumber;

Data Filed:

Appellant Name(s):

APPELl"åIITE

mFomAlrf. Befur¡ you complete and subrnit this appeal form to appeal a csast¿l

development permit (CDP) decision of'a localgovemment wlth a certified local coastal

program (LCÉ) to the Califomia Goastâl Commission, pleaso review tllî aPoepl

i,ij, i,:;', 
": 

,ç,- i. The appeal information sheet describes who is eligible to appeal

whãt lgovenìment tDP declslons, tha propergrounds for appeal, and the

proceáutes for subñift¡ng suctr appeals to the Commission. Appellants arq reaponsible

br submitting appeals thåt confonn to the Commissbn law, including rogulations.

Appeals thaido not conform may not be accepted, lf y.ou have any questions about any

aËöe6 of the appeal procsss, pÉase contâc{ stafi in the Commission district office with

jurisdiction oveiitre area in guestion (see lhe Commission's rc1þ;!¡393 at

hf tps : /lcoastal . ca. oovlcontact¡*/) "

llob r¡gûrdh¡ ¡nelled appedl, Please note that emailed appeals are accepted

ONLy at the generalemail addrass br the Coastal Commiss¡on distric't office with

¡uriøUlon oier ttìo local govemment in question. For the North Coast disüÍct ofñce, the

Lmailaddress ¡s t1,."tn ¡."Ir1irl¡1;,!/g)îl?:lîr--î¡..:?:', An appealemailed to some other

"mà¡¡ 
addrass, ¡nciüå'irig â difi6ieni"dièrictb general emall addres$ or a staf email

"ddr""", 
willbe rejecteã, n ig tre appellant's rcsponsibilitylo use the conecl email

ãOOrso, and appétlants are encounàged to contact Gommission staff with any
questions. For inore information, sse the Commissionl çgd3ç!-Pggç. at

hlt¡¡u;iir¡paplal'cg.t$vlrx¡ntaufu fJr )'

EXH¡BIT 2



'$. Åppellar¡t ittfønmntion*

&ppe*N *ü local üÞF dææåsf;strt

Fage ä

ffave üur Ssashsrs
Name:

Mailing address

Phone nun'¡ber:

Ërnailaddress:

4fi $unnyside Dr

415-ðû3*18ã8

gbatmuirh@aol,com

How díd you participate ln the loeal tÜF apBticatlo n and d*cision-rnaking pno*e**?

ilid not participate el $ubrnitted eomment f îestified at heering ilno*u,

Describe
sumbitted *omments and testified át; Mârin öüunty þeputy äoning Administrator i'learing,

nt Marin Üounty Flanning tommissi*n hearin$ änd

at Marin tounty ffi*ard of äupervisors hearlng

tf you did nof participate in the local ütF applieation snd deeieion-making pr*öÊ$$,

pÉ¡ase identify why you shCIilld be allowed to appeaf anywey {e.9., if you did not
participate beeause yÕu wêre not properly notieed)'

Describe

üeserib€: $pve üun $øashir* tras *Nhax$tad the absr¡e list *f LtF eppeaf pråte$$es

I ff tfrere ar* multiBlø appe{lsnts, eaah xppellant rnust pruvide tt"$ir *wn mntæct and ¡:arlieipatiot'l
infownaticn. Flease attach additlonal ehe*ts ðs neteË$åry.

Þl¿raqo ir{¡rnfitu hnw votl exhausted atl LCP CDP anreal Þrocesses or otherwise identifyI rvssv ¡sv¡ l\rr.t¡

why ycu shouig bs sltowed t* apBeal {e.g., if the loeal govemment díd not follow prûpËr

ÇüF notiee and hearing procædureå, ör it eharges s fee f*r locsl apËellate tDF
pr*eesse*)



åpprel of loctl GDP docl¡¡lon
Fegr !

2. l¡crl CDP dccl¡lon b¡il[ appcll.rdr

Localgovemment narne:

Local govêmment approval bodY:

Local govemment CDP application number:

Local government GDP decision:

Date of local govemment CDP decision;

Marin County

Board of Supervisors

CÞP approval CDP denials

713121 FLAN mailed 7ngn1

Please identiff he location and description of the development tratYvâs apprÕved or
denied by he localgovemment

Describe: Gallager Family {North Marin Water Distriet)CoastalPermit and Use Permil

14500 Pt Reyes-Petaluma Rd, Point Reyes Station CA

Assessor's Parcel 1 19-050-17

Well lnstallation

z Attach addltionsl sheets ås nðc€effrry to fully &scrtbê the local govemment COF dsclsion, including a

description of the develognent that was the zubjecû of the CDP application and decis¡on.

r Very feur locst CDP denials a¡e appealable, and thooe that are also require submittal of an appeal fee.

Pleaáe aee the appe¡tÍtÍCIrmalt.on¡tteet for more informalion.



3. Àpplicant Infçrnnat[ø*t

Applicant name{s}:

Åpplicant Address:

&ppee{ ef lsöeü ü,BF dçc&s$*¡*t

Fags 4

Norlh Marin Water üistrict

$99 ftush treek PÍace, Ncvato CA S4S45

4. (årounds før *hi* aPPeala

For appeats af a tüF approväl, gr*unds for appeal nre limíted tCI øllegatinns that the

approved d*velopment does nst rsnftrm tÕ th* LtF or to Cosstel Aet publie at6€s$
piovisions" For appeat$ Õf a ttF denial, groundu for appeel ðrË limited to alfegations
that the developrnent cpnforrns to the LtF and to eeastalÂ$ publit aÕüëss prøvíslons.

Please elearly identify the ways in which th* developmerrt rneets sr doesn't meet, å$

applicable, the LtF arrd tCIastal Act provisions, with citationc t* specifie provisions as

rnuch as porsible. Appellants êrê ençouråged ta be een*ise, ænd to arrange their
appeals by topic area end by indlvidual pelicien.

fteseribe: See Áttached Fage

¿.{t"ta*h additionat sheets ås n&tes$åryr t* fufty deserib* the ground* for *Bp*al



Ãppeel sf loçal SSP Sacåsåsst

Paç* $

S" Ndentltrectl,on çf inter*sted pereams

On a separate paEe, pleås€ prsvide the names and contaet informatiçn ii.*,, ntailing

and emaif addresses) of aft persons whom y*u know to be interested ín the lpeal tüF
decision and/or the approved or deni*d deve{opment {e.g', ether persons who
participated in thp lodat*np applicntion and deeisian makinç prûG*ss, ett;.), and chenk

this bnx t* acknowledge that you hav* done so.

Inter*cted psr$on$ ídsntifisd and provided on a separate ættsched sheet

S. ItppelEant certificatiens

N attest that to the best of my knowledge, alf information ancf facts in tlri* nppeal ar*
cs¡'rect and compfete.

Fnint name Gordsn Bennett, Ëave #ur Sea*hmrê Prê*ident

(j
signnture

näte ûf $ignature 7/Ëä/å'f

Y. &æpre**n*atiçæ a*¡tflwrixnûlon*

While not iequÍred, y*u rnay identify others to represent y*u in the appeai proee*x. If
ynu du, they lnust hsvm the pûw#r to bind you in afl mafi*r* c*ncerning th* appeal. To

ds ss, please eomplete th* representatlve ar¡tharl¿stisrl farm belnw and ehecls thin bcx

lo acknowledge that you h*ve dCIr:e eu.

m
the

I havç authorieed å represefiiative, amd t hev* BrovÍdeeÍ ar¡tfisrisstisn fur them *n
repreaentatívc auth*ri¿sti*n ftrm ættaehed.

s Tf 61sre are muftipl* eppellant , eaelr appellanl yn¿¡et prÕvid& their Õwn eertifr*ati*sl, Flesse sttach

*dditionaf eh*€t* äs n*tsssår?,

s lf there årÊ rKu|t¡pl* appell*nt*, e*eh appelt*nt m{.¡st Pruvid* their ow¡n re¡:r*oentative *uthariaati*r: fnrnt

t6 idðntiry cthcrc lqho repreaent tl'rem. Fìease atlach sdditiçnäl $hê*ls ás nëð&s$sry/.



APPBAL MARIN COI.]NTY DECISION ON GALLAGHERWELL: ATTACHMENT +T

Marin County erred in claiming that Save Our Seashore (SOS) raised no issues

related to the LCP (see FLAN, Decision Finding #7 C). In contrast' pages z-3 of the
SOS S/z+/zr Letter (Attachment #z) specificaþ reference conflicts with LCP

Sections BIO z.r, BIO z.z, BIO 2.3, BIO 2.4, BIO 3.r and BIO 4.r.

BIO z.r The Decision Findings do not rebuttal the SOS claim of conflict with BIO z.r that

protects wildlife nursery areas. Steelhead (Oncorhlmchus mykiss), a threatened species, nest in

Lagunitas Creek within the property. BIO z.r also requires "no net /oss" of sensitive habitat

acreage. NMWD admits such loss, but claims (without study or evidence) that the loss is

"negligible." "Negligible loss" is inconsistent with "no net loss.o'

BIO z.z Decision Finding +r3 D (first sentence) claims that the subject is consistent with BIO

z.e because t}re "property does not prouide habitatfor special status species," but the County's

own GIS maps show that Lagunitas Creek, home to threatened Steelhead and to endangered

Coho salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) flows through the property. Also, Finding +r3 D (second

sentence) is inconsistent with the same Finding's first sentence because it claims that impacts to

the Coho (that the first sentence claims don't exist on the property) "tuouldbe reduced fo less

than sígnificant íntpacts becquse the Mitigatíon and Monitoríng Program taould be

implemented."But as SOS has pointed out, the NMWD Mitigation Program does not function in
a proactive manner to protect special status species from harm because it is designed to be

implemented only after evidence of harm has been found. Further, the NMWD Mitigation

Program has a qualitative trigger (vs the quantitative trigger requested in RWQCBz's zf Blzt
letter), which means the trigger is subject to NMWD's own interpretation and thus has never

been implemented despite conditions reasonably warranting implementation.

BIO 2.3 Decision Finding *r3 E claims the project conforms to BIO e.3 because it would "not

substantially alter" margins along riparian corridors." But there is no scientific study or

evidence to support this claim and the Finding conflicts with NMWD's own zoog IS/MND,

which states that potential impacts to the riparian zone would be mitigated by NMWD's

Mitigation Program (that is toothless and has never been implemented). Lastþ, BIO 2.3 calls

for such margins tobe "preseraed and enhanced," in contrast to "not substantíally alter(ed)."

B¡rO 2.4 Decision Finding *ç E claims the project is consistent with BIO z. that requires

"consideration of cumulatiue impacts"but, as SOS has pointed out, the current project

considers only its own incremental impacts rather than the cumulative impacts from both the

current and the proposed NMWD wells operating together.

BIO g.r & 4.r Decision Finding *r3 F claims the project is consistent with BIO 3.r because it
would "minimiz e impacts to str eam functions and fish and wildlife habitat" but there is no

scientific study or evidence to support this claim. Even a small reduction in water level over the

two mile stretch impacted by the proposed well could dry out acres of floodplain and isolate

pools in which special species fish would be trapped.

In Sum: SOS has proposed (attachment #g) a compromise mitigation measure consistent with

NMWD's ow¡ 2oo9 IS/MND that would allow the well to be permitted in a way that would be

consistent with the Marin County LCP and protect sensitive species. We urge that the Coastal

Commission to adopt this revised mitigation measure.

ATTACHMENT 1



SAVE OUR SEASHORE TO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSIONERS Re 5/24/zr

O\IERVIEW: This NMWD Gallagher well appeal is less a land use issue than it is a water use issue

involving State Water Board Order g1-t7. WR 95-17 requires Marin Water to release water from
Kent Lake (behind Peters Dam) into Lagunitas Creek to maintain specified minimum flows (6 cubic
feet per second (cfs) in dry year summers) for public trust protection (hereinafter salmon water).

But WR 95-17 also states (pg zB) "This permit does not authorize diuersion of any uater specifícallg
released from storage by Marin Municipal Water District for fish and tuildlife protection in
Lagunitas Creek...Permirtee INMWD] sha// not diuert or impair theflou of suchtaater.

Thus key issue here is NMWD's unpermitted use of salmon water. If this misuse had not occurred,

the appeal of the NMWD Gallagher well would not have been necessary...nor would the test and

evaluations requested by the Water Board. But because NMWD stubbornly refuses to forego
pumping salmon water, these tests'have become necessary to ensure that NMWD's unpermitted
pumping of salmon water does not harm protected species.

WR 95-17 also states (page zB, emphasis ours): that"analysis indicates that there uould be limited
naturalflow in the lower portion of Lagunitas Creek during summer motúhs of most years, and
almost no naturalflota during summer months of drA Aears. WR gS-L7's "no natural flow"
statement is consistent with MMWD current statement (per MMWD +ltSlzt Flow meeting) that
Lagunitas tributaries are presently mere "trickles," with the result being that all the dry-year water in
Lagunitas is salmon water (that NMWD pumps in violation of \AIR gS-1ù.

NMWD's defense is that it withdraws only o.3o cfs...a claimed insignificant portion of the 6 cfs

salmon water. But that is like defending a bank robbery that got only $o.3o and left $6 in the till.
In other words, the issue is not how much was taken, but rather the taking itself (but even how much
will remain an issue until testing requested by SOS and the Water Board is done).

NMWD also claims that its withdrawals are necessary for the health of its customers. But NMWD
has Rights and Agreements for more than enough water to satisfy its customers needs without taking
salmon water. There is no legitimate reason for NMWD to panic its customers and then try to
leverage that panic to justify an unnecessary taking of salmon water when NMWD has alternate
water sources for its customers that would not result in taking salmon water.

NMWD also claims that Marin Water's releases alone are sufficient to protect salmon...a claim that
could be true, but only if NMWD ceases to take that very same water.

NMWD's use of the proposed second Gallagher well in dry years (zozo and zozr) would not be an
issue if NMWD would agree to follow its own protocols and conform to WR g;-r7. But it hasn't.
The problem is that NMWD already agreed in the zoog Initial Study / Mitigated Negative
Declaration (IS/MND) to conform to WR g;-r7, yet failecl to follow the Study's Mitigation Measure
BR-z intended to protect the salmon. Thus the zoog Initial Study has not been mitigated.

Now NMWD proposes (zozr CEQA Addendum) yet another well that it claims will also confortn to
WR 95-17 with yet another new Mitigation BR-z that is just as inadequate and un-quantified as the
zoog Mitigation BR-2. F'urther, this CEQAAddendum is built on the foundation of the zoog Initial
Study that contains multiple errors and misstatements. In land use planning, a structure proposed

to be built on a defective foundation would not be allowed.

NMWD has had ample opportunity to protect the health of its customers by insisting on its senior
water rights (at no cost to its customers) and/or invoking its Intertie Agreernent (at minimum cost to
its customers). Instead, NMWD choses to take salmon water.

SOS remains committed to dropping our appeal if_the Commission incorporates as
conditions of the NIWWD permit that NMWD is prohibited from taking salmon water
and testing proposed in the z/8/zr\¡ly'ater Board Letter is done. Specifïc details of this
commitment can be found at the end of this letter.

1

ATTACHMENT 2



A RED HERRING COVERING A SALMON IMPACT

The following sections detait defects in the staff report to the Planning Commission for its 5/24/zt
hearing, defects in the zoog IS/MND, defects in the zozr Addendum and thus provides the

Commission with the authority to impose these additional conditions for the NMWD permit.

DEFECTS IN THE STAFF REPORT

r The Staff Report cover page (pages z-3) states thal: "Recent salinitg intrusions has impacted

usater quality...threatening public health...This change in conditions has necessitated the

construction of this project. ...às an urgent matter to protect the qualitg of tttater supply."

But this public health claim is a red-herring that diverts attention from the fact that this project

(if constructed) is anyway prohibited from pumping salmon water to protect public health.

Instead to protect public health, NMWD needs to pump water using senior Water License 43248
and/or adhere to Mitigation Measure BR-z...both of which add water over and above the salmon

water releases so that NMWD can pump that added water to protect human health.

As noted in the SOS SlzSlzr offer to withdraw our appeal (attachment #r), we have no objection

to this Well Project...provided that the Gallagher wells only pump water above and beyond that
which WR 95-17 requires to be left in the Creek for the salmon and that the testing and

evaluations request by the zlBlzt Water Board letter (attached) are done'

SOS notes that its Sl412r Board meeting, NMWD approved a contract for just such

environmental review, which the Commission should incorporate as a condition of the NMWD
permit. That NMWD action also appears to satisfy one of the two key conditions that SOS

proposes to withdraw the appeal. The other key condition (pumping only Water License 43248
water and/or Intertie water, not salmon water) remains unaddressed by NMWD and which the

Commission should incorporate as an additional condition for the NMWD permit.

z Resolution Section r (r) The Finding states that "the Dotuneg WeII produces unsafe uater
qualitg for domestic consumption...the proposed municipal uater weII uiII serue the puhlic's
critical need bg creating a reliable water soltrce." This is not correct. The Downey well has not
been used as a municipal water source since 1994 (IS/MND page 4) and was removed as part of
the zoog project. Thus, the implication that the water quality problems with the Downey well
necessitate the proposed Gallagher well No. z Project are incorrect.

B Resolution Section r (6) The Finding states that "The County's reuiew determined that tlrc
ospects of the project subject to County approual are adequately eualuated by the 2oo9 MND
andthe zozt Addendum , and therefore,further enuironmental reuietu cannot be required..."

But as this letter documents, the County's review was cursory...confused aspects of the prior
zoog project wittr the current zozr project in dispute...ancl simply echoecl NMWD's unsupported

claims without careful consideration of SOS's comments and the County's rights.

4 Resolution Section ro (emphasis ours) omits reference to BIO z.r ("Require enuironmental
reuiew pursuant to CEQA of deuelopment applicatíons to ossess the impact of proposed

deuelopment on natiue species and habitat diuersity, particularly special-status species,

sensitiue natural communities, wetlands, and important usildli-fe nurserA oreas... Require

adequate mitigation measuresfor ensuring the protection of any sensitiue resources und

achieuing "no net loss" of sensitiue habitat acreage. ualues, andfunction").

But threatened-status steelhead do build redds (nests) and lay eggs which mature in the gravel of

the wildlife nursery in Lagunitas Creek on the Gallagher property (Ettinger MMWD 314/zt' email:

"I'ue seen small numbers of redds fnests] on the Gallagher propertg, almost exclusiuely

steelhead'). NMWD admits that even the Addendum's inadequate assessment found a loss of
sensitive habitat deemed negligible. But "negligible" loss is not "no loss." Further, the o.3 cfs loss

deemed to be "negligible" was the loss from only one of two Gallagher wells and was compared to

2o2o summer flows as high as 7.r cfs (zlBlztWater Board letter).
2
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But actual 2o2o summer flows were as low as 4.r cfs. If each of the two Gallagher wells results in
loss of o.3 cfs, then when compared to a true "worst case" of 4.1 cfs, NMWD is taking 15% of the

salmon water, which is not negligible.

S Resolution Section 10 A states (emphasis ours): "the County needs to rely on the

enuironmental reuíeut adoptedby the LeadAgencg,but that does not mean that the CounV has

to approue the project " But, as SOS and Water Board letters document, the environmental

review adopted by the Lead Agency is defective in numerous ways, including its purported

conformance with the Marin Countywide Plan and its claim that human health mandates a

Project approval, when, use of Water License 4g24F and/or the Intertie), would also satisfy

human health needs without reducing salmon water. Thus the County has the authority to

require as a condition of approving the NMWD permit the additional environmental review (as

requested by the Water Board and SOS)...and a prohibition on NMWD taking salmon water.

6 Resolution Section ro D (page 4) states that the project is consistent with BIO z.z
("Restrict or modifu proposed deuelopment in areas that contain essentíal habitat for special-
status species") "beceTtse the subject property does not prouide habitetfor special sfalus
species." Bttt that statement is not correct. The subject propelty includes Lagunitas Creek and
thus does provide habitat for special status species (Coho Salmon and Steelhead).

Resolution Section ro B (page 4) states that the project is consistent with BIO 2.3
("Condition or modify deuelopment permits to ensure that ecotones, or natural transitíons
between habitat tApes, are preserued and enhanced because of their importance to tuildlife.
Ecotones of partíèular concern include those along the margins of ríparian corcidors) "because

it tuould nol substantialþ alter the margins along riparian corrídors...." But there is no data to
support this conclusion.

To the contrary, zoog IS/MND. states (emphasis ours): "it is possible tlzat pumping could reduce
the groundtuater aquifer to a leuel uhere riparian uegetation tuould be affected.... [But]. . .

surface flous uiII be maintained at the leuels required by Water Right Order g5-t7 and if
necessarA by NMWD requesting MMWD to release usater...These surfoceflous recharge the
stream underflow so that underflotu should continue to be auailable to...riparian uegetation in
the area near the weII site. Mitigation Measure BR-z usould applA to this impact. Giuen this
mitigation, it is not expected that psIigdig-grylphg from the Gallagher wells uould aduersely
affect riparian uegetation...." But as noted above, Mitigation Measure BR-z was never
implemented. Further, as also noted above, the operation of the Gallagher wells is now
continuous, not periodic. Thus impacts to riparian vegetation are not known, which is why the
z I B I ztWater Board letter recommended additional evaluation.

Resolution Section ro E (page 4) states (emphasis ours) that the project is consistent with
B,IO 2.4 ("Ensure that important corridors for wildlife movement and dispersal are protected as

a condition of discretionary permits, including consideration of cumulative impacts")...because
"no ríparian uegetation uould be remoued to abandon the [DouneU] tttell. The relocated
gauging station .-.tuould not require remoual of riparian...uegetation " But the Staff Report is
confused because the well removal and gauge relocation were part of the zoog Project...have
already been done...and thus are not part of the current Project. What is relevant in BIO 2.4 is
its consideration of cumulative impacts. As noted, neither the IS/MND nor the Addendum
evaluates impacts from both Gallagher wells operating together (cumulativeþ). Instead, NMWD
measures, for example, the cumulative weight of two boxes by putting the rst box on the scale,

reading the rst weight, then putting 1þs 2nd box on the scale, and claiming then cumulative weight
of the two boxes is the only difference between the 1st reading and the z"d reading. It is not.

Resolution Section ro F (pàge 4) states (emphasis ours) that the Project is consistent with
BIO 3.r and 4.r because the project "tuould minimize impacts to streamfunction andfi.sh and
uildlife habitqt." But that statement merely echoes the inadequate analysis of the IS/MND and
Addendum that the Water Board and SOS questioned and asked to be re-done. The staff report
also claims that the Project will not result in any "direct" diversions, but because of the highly
permeable soil, the pumping rate of Well +z is virtually identical to the flow decrease in the
õreek. Therefore claiming "no direct" diversion is like saying that you are not drinking water
because you are sipping it through a straw. The well has a direct impact.
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ro Resolution Section ro F (page S) is also confused in claiming that the project "proposes to

dedicatecertainuaterrightsforinstreamflo¿¿s." Butthatdedicationwasnegotiatedasa
mitigation for the 2oo9 IS/MND... has already been recorded... and thus is not applicable the

current Project. Resolution F also notes (emphasis ours): "strict adherence to the adopted

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program utould ensure no impacts" But as noted,

required Mitigations have not been carried out and monitoring of flows at the Gallaher site to

ensure compliance with WR 95-17 has been anything but "strict"'

DEFBCTS IN THE zoog INITIAL STUDY / (NOT) MITIGATED NEG DEC

rr Existing Water Rights (IS/MND page r) states: "Water License 43248 allows NMWD to
diuert uater between May t and Nouember t of each year [dry and normal rainfall years] at a
rate of o.67 cubicfeet per second....lNMWD's other water rightsl are not auailable during the

summer months (JuIy through October) of dry years....To meet water demand in dry years
uhen uater cannot be diuertedfrom Lagunitas Creek due to the restrictions described aboue,

NMWD has an Intertie Agreement uith the Marin Municipals Waste District (MMWD) to

release up to 2So acrefeet of utaterfrom Kent Lake." But zozo was a "dry year" per WR gS-

r7's definition, so did NMWD trigger the Inteftie Agreement as stated in the IS? No, it did
not...instead NMWD used salmon water and continues to use salmon water.

rz Project Objectives and Benefits (IS/MND pages z-3) states: "the Coast Guard WeIIs will
continue b be the primary supply....this netu ruater source (the Galiagher wells) tttould be used

during periods of high tides, auoiding salnaarcr intrusion...By establishing a reliable
emerg encA backtry source...

But during the zozo dry year, did NMWD use the Gallagher wells as an emergency backup

during high tides? No it did not...instead the Gallagher well pumped continuously.

As the attached zlB lztWater Board letter (page z) notes: "It is our understanding that the

frequency and consistency of use of the upstream Gallagher WeII No. 1 maA haue changed to be

moie consistent pumping during summer lousflow periods...additionallg these operations may
no longer be associated with the tides...as indicatedin the zoog IS/MND." Thus the "emergency

backup high-tide" claim used by the zoog IS to justify its conclusions of biological impacts "less

than significant with mitigation" is not supported.

r3 Biological Resources (IS/MND pages zo) states: " Under Water Right Order 95-17, MMWD
is required to releases waterfrom Kent Lake to meet minirnumflou)s ot the USGS Park Gauge.
Some additional streamflotu enters Lagunitas Creek dounstreann of the USGS Park Gauge...so
streamflotaspûsf tlte Gallagher Wells site are higher than theflows required at the USGS Park
Gauge...OnApril zt, 2oo9, theflotas at the Park Gauge were about t6 cfs while they tuere tB cfs

at the Gallagher Gauge [i.e. z cfs higher]"

But were streamflows past the Gallagher site z cfs higher than the flows required at the USGS

Park gauge during the zozo dry year summer? No, they were not. During the summer of zozo

the Gallagher flows were as low as 4.r cfs (almost z cfs lower than the Park gauge flows. As the

z/BlztWater Board letter (paged S) states: "Figure 4lzoztAddendum Exhibit Bl demonstrates

that uhile flows at the SPT gage range from 5.7 to 7 cfs......flouss the Project site range from 4.1

- 7.2 and are belout 6 cfs approximately 5o% of the period reported."

Thus the "wet-year-2-cfs higher-flow" assumption used by the zoog IS/MND to justify its

conclusions of biological impacts "less than significant with mitigation" is not supported.

14 Biological Resources IS/MND (page zo) states: "[Jnder Water Right Order 95-17, MMWD is

required to releases uater from Kent Lake to meet minimumflotas at the USGS Park Gauge.

These same minimumflow would be required in the section between the Gallagher wells and

the Coast Guard wells to insure that pumping fTom the Gallagher wells does not reduce the

minimum requiredflows to a leuel that aduersely affects fish..'
But were the minimum flows required at the Park Gauge [6 cfs in dryyear summers) maintained

at the Gallagher site? No they were not...as Exhibit 4 shows above, tlows were below 6 cfs

approximately 5o% of the period reported. Thus the zoog IS/MND claim that Marin Water's

releases are sufficient to protect salmon is not supported.
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15 Biological Resources IS/MND (page zo) states: "UnderWater Right Order 95-17, MMWD is

required to releases uaterfrom Kent Lake to meet minimumflotas at the \ISGS Park Gauge...If

the minimumflouts are not maintained, then NMWD usill request (as part of its Intertie
Agreement) that MMWD release suffícient water to Lagunitas Creek to reestablish at least the

minimumflouss...

But did NMWD request (as part of its Intertie Agreement) that MMWD release sufficient water

to reestablish at least the minimum flows at the Gallagher site? No, it did not...instead NMWD

used salmon water.

Asthe z/BlztWaterBoardletter(pages4-S)notes:MitígationMeasureBR-ztttasdeuelopedin
uhich a legal agreement uith MMWD toas reached (Intertie Agreement) for the release of
additional uatur to meet the minimum 6 cfs at the Project site...our reuieu...índicates that , as

currently implemented, Mitigation Mectsure BR-z is not consistently ensuring that instream

flotus are mairtoined at the required 6 cubicfeet per second (cfs) during "drg years" at the

Project site and thereþre maA not be protectiue of the aquatic enuironment."

Thus the 2oo9 IS/MND claim tlat the Intertie releases protect salmon is only correct when the

Intertie Agreement is triggered. It was not.

16 Biological Resources (IS/MND pages zo) states: "If the minimumflou)s are not maintained,
then NMWO uill request (as part of its Intertie Agreement) thot MMWD release sufficient
water to Lagunitas Creek to reestablish at least the minimumflottts...Alternately, after
reuieuing the streamflout monitoring, the Department of Fish and Game may conclude that the

reduction in streamflota below the Gallagher gouge is so small that it does not signifi.cantly
reduce habitat to fish and that additional releases from Kent Lake an'e not tuarranted."

But did the Department of Fish and Game conclude that the reduction in streamflow below the

Gallagher gauge is "so small" that it does not significantly reduce habitat to fish and that

additional releases from Kent Lake are not warranted.? No it did not. As noted inthe zlz6lzt
email from the Water Board, Mitigation Measure BR-z was amencled at the Board's request to

read: "No comments tuere prouidedby the Department."

Further, the o.3 cfs loss deemed to be "so small" was the loss from only one of two Gallagher

wells and was compared to a high zozo summer flow when actual 2o2o summer flows were as

low as 4.r cfs. If each well results in loss of o.3 cfs, then when compared to a true "worst case" of

4.r cfs, NMWD is taking t5o/o of the salmon water, which is not "so small,", particularly when

coming (improperly) out of salmon water. Instead, NMWD needs to take this same negligible

amount out of Water License 4924F and/or the Intertie water.

r7 Biological Resources IS/MND (page zo) states: "Weter License 43248 requires NMWD to

fiIe a Dry Year Wuter Shortagë Report follou,ting each drg year That report must describe flotu
conditions in the creek as compared at the Park Gauge and the Gallagher Gage and aII NMWD
diuersions. A public workshop to receiue public comment is required prior to adoption of the

final report." But the zozo dry year ended September go,2o2o. Did NMWD file a Dry Year

Water Shortage Report and conduct a public hearing? Not to our knowledge.

rB Biological Resources (IS/MND page 23) states: MMWD shall not diuert water from the
Gallagner wells to aduersely affect fish and taildlife residing between the Gallagher WeIIs and
the Coast GuardWells. To meet this standard, prior to constructíng anA proposedproject
improuements, NMWD prepared afinal hgdrological design plan describing...hou NMWD will
maintaínflou requirements dotunstreom of the Gallagher WelI site. The plan
addressed ...Final Arrangements tuith MMI4TRD regarding uater releases..,Details of hotts

woter releases wiII be initiated and terminated; and Prediction process for initiating and
terminating u ater releases...

But did NMWD create such a specific plan? No, it did not. As the z/z6lztWater Board email

notes (emphasis ours): "Cutentlg,the zoog IS/MND andAddendum onlg incorporate
qualitatiue descriptions..uill reuisions include adding quantitatiue pumping limits /
quantitatiue operating conditions for future operations of both us ells?"
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But the NMWD revisions failed to include any quantitative limits. Thus the zoog IS/MND
claim that Marin Water's releases alone are sufficient to protect salmon is not. correct.

19 Biological Resources (IS/MND page z4) states: "During periods tuhen watet'taas pumped-

fro^ {he Callagher WeIIs itis possible that the pumping could reduce the groundusater aquifer
to a leuel uhere riparian uegetation uould be affected...[But] surfoce water flotas tuill be

maintained at the leuels required by Water Right Order g5-t7 and, if necessarg, by NMWD
requesting MMWD to release uater to maintainthe minimumflotus. These surfaceflotus
recharge the streamunderflou...to prouide necessary uater to ríparianuegetationinthe area
near the well site. Mitigation Measure BR-z utould apply to this impact. Giuen this mitigation,
it is not expected that periodic pumping from the Gallagher WeIIs would aduersely affect
rip arian u e g et ation..."

But were surface water flows at the Gallagher site maintained at the levels required by Water
Right Order g5-r7 during the zòzo summer? No , they were not. Was Mitigation Measure BR-z
enacted? No, it was not. Was the pumping from the Gallagher Wells periodic? No, it was

not...instead it was continuous. Thus the rationales used by the zoog IS/MND to justify its
conclusion of biological impacts "less than significant with mitigation" are not supported and
contradicted by NMWD's own data.

MATERIAL DBFECTS IN THE zozl ADDENDUM BUILT ON THE FOI-INDATON OÞ-

THE MATERIALLY DEFECTIVE 2OO9 (NOT)MITIGATED INITIAL STUDY
zo Operation (Addendum page 3-rZ) states: "Operation of the project uould include purnping of

uãter from a u;eII adjacent to Lagunitas Creek, uhich could result in aduerse impacts to fish...if
not appropriately mitígated..As described in the zoog IS/MND, impacts to Lagunitas Creek as

a result of reduced streamflows during dry years would be mitigated by a release of usater

from Kent Lake...to ensure minimum required streamflotus..." But did any releases of water
from Kent Lake to mitigate impacts occur in the zozo dry year summer? No, none occurred.

zr Operation (Addendum page 3-r7) states (emphasis ours): "In order to understand the
cimulatiue impacts caused by operating both supplg utells...a technical memorandum and
analysis uas done by Sutro Science...fthat concluded] under low streamflow conditions, such
as those present during the constant rate test in September 2o2o grounduater pumping ftom
the proposed Gallagher taell No z locatíon could result in a reduction of creek discharge.
Hotl;euer, the magnitude of the reductiontuouldbe negligible."

But did Sutro study the cumulative impact caused by both supply wells? No, it did not. The
Addendum's assertion is contradicted by its own statement that the study was conducted during
tlne "pumping from [onla] the proposed Gallagher uell No, z location." Was the Sutro test
conducted under low stream flows conditions? No, it was not. To the contrary, USGS data from
the SP Taylor gage shows that the Sutro test did indeed take place when MMWD released flows
above that required by WR gS-rT. Further, test water pumped by Gallagher well No.z was

released on site to percolate back into the water table, thus biasing the test results.

As the zl9lzt Water Board letter (page 3) notes; "the Report did not consider or report the

withdraualsfrom Gallagher WeII No. t in combination with WelI No. z during the 7-day pump
test or the entíre study period to eualuation cumulatiue impacts... The Report states that testing
occurred during the worst case summer drought conditions" but Þ-igure 4 ...indicates that the
highest streamflota during the summer occut'red during the pump test period...The 7-day test
seèmed to hque ouerlapped uith the timing of an MMWD flow release [uhich] could mask the
ability to detect changes..."

ez Operation (Addendum page 3-rB) states "Besed on the Sutt'o Science hydrological
analysis...any predicted changes inJTous utould result in negligible impacts in habitat
conditions in iagunitas Creek...Implementation of Mitígation Measure BR-z t-uould ensure that
streamJTotu s of Lagunitas Creek u ould be maintained..."

But has Mitigation Measure BR-z ensured that streamflows of Lagunitas Creek would be

maintained? No, it has not. And is a reduction in streamflow a fair predictor of all downstream

habitat changes? No, it is not.
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As the zl8/ztWater Board letter (page 6) states (emphasis ours): Besed on [the small reduction
in streamflowl, it uas determined that the impactsfrom groundtuater purnping usould not
aduersely impact aquatic life....Ilotueuer, this paremeter is not the only critical pararneter.
Reduction in streamflow also affects...habitat quantitg and quality...1f the minimum 6 cfs flou
cannot be maintained at the Project site, then it is essential to determine if there is a

scientifícally defensible alternatiue baseflous minimum that tuill be protectiue of the aquatic
ecosystemu:hile allotaing groundtaater withdrautals at the Project site under deftned and
quantirted groundwater uell operating conditions. We suggest that other critical parameters

.critical instr eam habitat s qualfuy and
quantifu(e.g . pools, rffies and edge habitat); and (z) uater quality parameters such as

tempet"ature, DO [díssolu ed oxy g en]...

This more expansive habitat evaluation requested by the Water Board of NMWD below the

Gallagher site is the same habitat evaluation now being done by MMWD above the Gallagher site
(MMWD Board meeting 416lzt Item 3) in hopes of providing its own scientifically defensible

alternatiue baseflotu mínimum to support MMWD's planned request to the Water Board for
reduced minimum flows. It is also the same habitat evaluation proposed by SOS as a condition
to withdraw the SOS appeal of NMWD's Well permit.

SUMMARY: A RED HERRING COVERINGA SALMON IMPACT

NMWD's claim of a hurnan health emergency is a fabrication built on NMWD's own refusal to trigger
its water rights (Water License 4Sz4B water and Intertie water) that would solve the "emergency" of
its own making. The only real issue here is NMWD's unpermitted use of salmon water.

If this misuse of salmon water had not occurred, the appeal of the NMWD Gallagher well would not
have been necessary...nor would (arguably) the test and evaluations requested by the Water Board.

But because NMWD irrationally refuses to forego pumping salmon water (and wants us to believe
that .3 cfs + .3 cfs = .3 cfs), these tests have become necessary to ensure that NMWD's unpermitted
pumping of salmon water does not harm protected species. It would have been much easier if
NMWD had adhered to WR gS-L7's mandate not to pump salmon water in the first place.

Again, SOS remains committeà to dropping our appeal if-the Commission incorporates
as conditions of the NMWD permit that:
a) NMWD is prohibited from taking salmonwater...if there is no water available

above and beyond the salmon water, then NMWD must use \Mater License 43248
water and/or Intertie water, not salmon water (defined as the WR 95-17 required
flow at the SP Taylor gage less the flow, if any, from San Geronimo Creek).
Further Water License 4Sz.4B water and Intertie water must account for loss in
transmission. For example, if the SP Taylor gage reads 6 cfs and the Pt Reyes gage

reads 4 cfs (a r/3 loss), then a NMWD additional withdrawal, say of o.6 cfs (above
and beyond salmon water) must be o.9 cfs at the SP Taylor gage to account for the
r/3 loss in transmission).

b) If, in any case, flows at the Pt Reyes gage are below those required for salmon at the
SP Taylor gage, then NMWD must do the evaluations and testing proposed in the
z/ 8/ zrWater Board Letter.

In sum, SOS is simply asking NMWD to
. Stop taking salmon water that it is prohibited from taking, but continues to take;
. Carry out the rnitigation that it said it would do, but didn't do;
¡ Do the forrner testing it said it did, but didn't do; and

" Do the proposed testing it said it would do, but has yet to do.

Is that too much to ask? Apparently so for NMWD. Now the question is: is that too
much to ask Marin County to hold NMWD to?
Thank you for reading the above comments on this confusing (and confused) water use issue.

Gordon Bennett SOS Presiderfi Sl19l27
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To: Marin County Board of Supervisors

Date: July t2) 2o2r

From: Save Our Seashore

Re: GallagherWell Permit TlqlzrAgenda #rB

NMWD claims that their CEQA analysis of the Gallagher Well project must be accepted due to

NMWD's role as lead agency...notwithstanding that Save Our Seashore has detailed the many

defects in that CEQA analysis.

Save Our Seashore's position is that Marin County has a public trust obligation and that if NMWD's

CBQA analysis is defective, it must be rejected.

But, if the County is unwilling to reject NMWD's CEQA analysis, then we request that the County

enforce the terms of NMWD's own CEQA analysis by incorporating them into the Gallagher Permit.

NMWD claims that the installation of the 2na Ç¿ll¿gþer well is an urgent matter (a position with

which we disagree)...so urgent that it overrides the need to study potential impacts to the creek and

its Coho, an endangered species (a position with which we also disagree)'

But if the matter is so urgent, then the quickest way forward is again that the County enforce the

terms of NMWD's own CEQA analysis by incorporating them into the Gallagher Permit.

Save Our Seashore does not want to go always to the Coastal Commission, the State Water Board,

or the Department of Fish and Witdlife to remind NMWD of its public trust obligations that rise to

a critical level during dry year summers. Flows during dry year summers is a local issue that calls

for a local solution by requiring NMWD to adhere to the summer dry year commitments in its own

2oo9 Initiat Study pages r9-zr (emphasis ours) :

The existing and new Gallagher Wells will pump water.from surrounding gravels and indirectly.from
Lagunitas Creek...A redtrction in the flow of Lagunitas Creek could have a signi/icønt impacl on

aquatic wildtife andfish in the streatn between the Gallagher íI/ells sile and the Coast Guard Wells

site....The State has established minimum instream.flows needed to support .fish and wildlife in
Lagunitas Creek [6 cubic feet per second as measured at the USGS Park Gauge./rom June l6
through November t o.f any dry yearJ. These same minimumflows would be requÍred in the

section between the Gallagher Wells and the Coøst Guard ll/ells to ensure that pumpingfrom the

Gallagher Wells does not reduce the minimum requiredflows to a level thal adversely aLfecß fish
and aquatic wildlife. (Jnless.flows are maintained at these required levels, there could be an increase

in water temperature and ct loss of habitat, and thís would be a potentially signi/icant impact on

biological re,sources...lf the minimamflows are not maintained, then NMWD will reqaest (as part
of its Intertie Agreement) that MMIID release sufJicient woter to Lagunitøs Creek to reestahlish

øt least the minimumflows.

So NMWD'S own CEQA commitmdnt (above) is what we are requesting that Marin County

incorporate into the Gallagher Permit:

If flows drop l¡elow 6 cubic feet per second at the Gallagher Gauge, then
NMWD shall require Marin \Mater (per the terms of its Intertie Agreement) to
release additional water above and beyond the state-required 6 cubic feet per
second measured at the Park Gauge so that NMWD can pump this additional
water for its customers without impacting fish and wildlife in Lagunitas Creek.
Should the State Water Board and the Department of Fish and Wildlife
determine that a flow other than 6 cubic feet per second at the Gallagher Gauge

is required to protect fish and wildlife, then that alternate flow shall trigger the
Intertie Agreement.

If NMWD's CEQA analysis is defective, it must be rejected.. .but if it is fine, it must be followed.

Gordon Bennett, Save Our Seashore President
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Item #10

FINAL Minutes of Technical Advisory Committee
Virtual Meeting - No Physical Location

JulY 12,2021

Attendees: Easter Ledesma, City of Santa Rosa
Gina Perez, City of Santa Rosa
Roberta Atha, City of Santa Rosa
Craig Scott, City of Cotati
Kent Carothers, City of Petaluma
Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa
Colleen Ferguson, City of Sonoma
Drew Mclntyre, Notlh Marin Water District
Christina Goulart, Town of Windsor
Matt Fullner, Valley of the Moon Water District
Paul Sellier, Marin MunicipalWater District

Staff: Pam Jeane, SCWA
PaulPiazza, SCWA
Don Seymour, SCWA
Brad Sherwood, SCWA
Lynne Rosselli, SCWA
MichaelThompson, SCWA
Peter Martin, City of Santa Rosa
Tony Williams, NMWD

Public Attendees: David Keller, FOER

1 Check-in
Drew Mclntyre, TAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m

2. Public ments
No public comments

3. Recap of June 7.2021TAC meetinq and approval of minutes
Moved by Craig Scott, City of Cotati, seconded by Jennifer Burke, City of Santa Rosa;

unanimously approved. No public comment.

4. Water Supplv Conditions and TUCO
Ooñ Seymour, SCWA. Storage at Lake Mendocino is currently 28,800 acre-feet (AF)

with a current release of 84 cubic feet per second (cfs). The average daily decline was
143 AF in June and increasedto 172 AF in July. Observed storage on July 1 showed
1,270 AF above the developed threshold for the reservoir. As of July 12, the amount
dropped to 617 AF and the reservoir is on track to drop below the threshold within the
next 1-2 weeks, resulting in curtailments as authorized under the emergency regulation

issued by the Division of Water Rights after its August 1 assessment. The cuftailments
limit any use in the upper Russian River to human health and safety needs and minimum

stream requirements. As part of the Emergency Regulation, Sonoma Water and the
Russian River Flood Control District will negotiate prior to September 1 regarding water
availability this Fall. lf demands on the upper Russian River don't change, the reservoir
could reach minimum level by October 1. Storage at Lake Sonoma is currently 127,300
AF with a release of 101 cfs. The average daily decline was 320 AF in June and

decreased to 250 AF in July as a result of reducing minimum stream requirements in the
lower Russian River. The five-day average flow at Healdsburg was 30 cfs, with a current

t



flow of 237 cfs. The five-day average flow at Hacienda Bridge was 49 cfs, with a current
flow of 42 cfs. Frank Mello, Operations Coordinator, was given kudos for his effort and

oversight in managing flows and overseeing releases. Drew Mclntyre, NMWD, asked
how the information on diversions will be conveyed. Don Seymour responded that,
although the TUCO requires monthly reports, Sonoma Water is reporting weekly through
its hydrological report to the State Board and the information will be shared with the
water contractors and posted on the website. No public comments.

5. Sonoma Marin Savinq Water Partnership
a. Water Production Relative to 2013 Benchmark

Drew Mclntyre, Norlh Marin Water District. Refer to handout. Water use
for May 2021 was 24o/o below the 2013 benchmark and year-to-date
water us is 13% below the 2013 benchmark. Future updates will also
show 2021 Russian River diversions vs 2020 starting July 1 based on the
State Board's order calling for a20o/o reduction in diversions from the
Russian River. No public comments.

b Drouoht O Messaoino and TUCO Term 9 Renortino
Paul Piazza, SCWA. Refer to handout. Photos were shared from the very
successful "Drought Drop By" event on June 12. This three-county,
regional event distributed approximately 10,000 water saving kits to the
general public at 16 locations. Two additional events are planned -
August 21 and October 9. The "Saving Water Challenge" was launched
on July 1 and includes opportunities to win prizes and 31 tips to save
water. Other outreach events and messaging include participation at the
Sonoma County Fair "Fun Fest", a Gray Water Webinar Series (in
conjunction with Daily Acts) and a Trusted Messenger video with local
business and community leaders. The fourth of six monthly TUCO Term 9

reports was submitted in early July detailing all the outreach efforts and
the Partnership's conservation programmatic savings of 5.5 million
gallons in the first four months. No public comments.

6. Potter Vallev Proiect Update
Pam Jeanne, SCWA. There have been no significant changes since the last update. A
1-Tz day, in person, workshop with Sonoma Water and its partners, CalTrout, Round
Valley lndian Tribes, Humboldt County and Mendocino County lnland Water & Power
Commission, is scheduled for later this week. Future plans will be discussed related to
the status report due to FERC by mid-September. PG&E is operating under a FERC
variance which was recently put out for comment and will continue as issued until at
least August. Public Comment: David Keller, FOER, referenced a Press Democrat
afticle on $3 million in funding for studies related to this project and asked about the
likelihood of receiving them. Pam Jeane, SCWA, responded that there is a lot of support
at the State level, but confirmation won't occur until after legislative break in September.

7. SCWA Capital lmprovement Proiects Update - lnflatable Dam & RR Crossinq
This item was continued to the August 2,2021WAC/TAC meeting.

B. Reqional Water Supply Resiliencv Studv Update
Don Seymour, SCWA. At the request of TAC leadership, Jacobs has refocused its
efforts on modeling drought scenarios and responses. The model is functioning and

work has begun on validation and calibration. Jacobswill meetwith each of the paftners

to identify data gaps and identify drought issues and interests specific to each

2



contractor. Jacobs has met with Santa Rosa and additional interviews should be

completed by the end of July with a goal to look at baseline scenarios by September. No

public comments.

9. ltems for Next Aqenda
. SCWA Capital lmprovement Projects Update
. State Water Board Tracking -20% Reduction
. November/December Allocation(s)

No public comments.

'10. Check Out
Meeting adjourned at 9:57 a.m
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Item #11
Ð,SBURSËMEATS - DATED AUGUST 5, 202'I

Date Prepared 812121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

1

2

3

Akouka, Guillaume

Alpha Analytical Labs

Amazon/Gen u i ne-Hardware

American Family Life lns

Arrow Benefits Group

A.S.T.l.

AT&T

AÏ&T

9 Bold & Polisner

10 Charles Custom Welding

11 Chiandotto, Mara

12 Diesel Direct West

13 Feigon, Susan

Fiserv/Bastogne lnc.

Fishman Supply Co

Fisher Scientific

Fontana, Sandra

14

15

'16

17

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Lab Testing

Lab Supplies ($St ), Laserprinter (Accounting)
($3ZO¡, Mop for Lab ($32), Adjustable Desk
Risers (2) (Engineering ($662) & Radio Cell
Modem Parts ($295)

July AFLAC Employee Paid Benefit

June Dental Expense

Annual Fire Service Testing (22)

July lnternet Connection

Telephone ($00¡, Fax ($89), Leased Lines
($t+z¡ & Data ($286)

June Legal Fees General ($10,800) & Potter
Valley FERC - NMWD Portion ($1 13)

Welding Services: John Deer Loader & Vacuum

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Gasoline (1,998 gal) ($8,088) & (Diesel (621

gal) ($2,632)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Return Payment-Unable to Locate Account

Ear Plugs (800)

Electrode Storage Solution (Lab)

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

$97.88

235.00

1,442.59

3,085.53

1,709.41

2,295.00

90.25

587.1 3

10,912.50

660.00

741.00

10,719.95

145.53

57.47

101.25

72 71

75.00

4

5

6

7

8

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursement - Dated August 5,2021



Seq Payable To For Amount

19 Goodpaster, Stacie

1B Gateway Commons

Grainger

Greene, Stefan

Hach Co.

Hacker, Carlene

Hiebel, Norma

Holton, Nancy

Kehoe, Chris

27 Marin County Tax Collector

28 County of Marin

McLellan Co, WK

Mclaughlin, Patricia

McMaster-Carr Supply Co

Moraes, Anthony

NMWD Employee Association

Novato Sanitary District

NSI Solutions, lnc

Office Depot

Refund Excess Advance Over Actual
Construction Job Costs-Gateway Commons
Fire Service

Exp Reimb: AWWA Membership Renewal
(911121-8131122\

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Novato "Water Smart Landscape Efficiency"

Ampule Kit (Lab)

Novato "Water Smart Landscape Efficiency"

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Exp Reimb: Office Supplies Due to Working
Remotely

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots ($2OO¡ & Water
Systems Operation & Small Water Systems
Training Series ($3SO¡

LAFCO Expense Allocation FY21l22 (Budget

$15,000) (7121-6122)

Encroachment Permit (381 & 350 Alameda Del
Prado)

Misc Paving

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

Fittings for OM Transfer Pump ($302) &
Electric Enclosure for OM Ponds ($2tO¡

Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less
Final Bill

Dues (4/30 121 -7 I 15121)

April ($25,500) & June 2021 RW Operating
Expense ($23,397)

QC Samples

Misc Office Supplies

3,670.89

294.00

1,725.69

200.00

343.11

124.00

218.62

76.62

535.50

13,087.57

448.54

5,625.22

75.00

512.30

711.01

1,355.00

48,896.57

341.00

473.07

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

*Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursement - Dated August 5,2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

37 Pace Supply

Protection Engineering

Quincy Compressor

R & B Company

Staples Business Credit

Sundborg, Cindy

Synectic Technologies

Target Solutions Learning, LLC

United Parcel Service

Univar

VWR lnternational LLC

Waste Management

Weitz, Elizabeth

Box Lids (2) ($415), Flange ($1 1Z¡, Corp Stops
(18) ($1,148) & Gaskets (100)

Zinc Anodes (50)

Labor to Diagnose Overheating lssue on STP
Compressor

Brass Couplings (2) ($96), Nipple, PVC
Couplings, Flange ($1aS¡, Tees (2) ($709) &
Gate Valve ($1,665)

Miscellaneous Office Supplies

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

Quarterly Phone System Maintenance

Additional Software Licenses (5)

Delivery Services: Sent STP Compressor Oil
Samples & Thermometer for Calibration (Lab)

Sodium Hypochlorite (200 gal) (PRTP)

Graduated Cylinders ($9e¡, Sulfuric Acid,
Buffers ($146) & Detergent ($98) (Lab)

Green Waste Removal

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

1,720.42

2,990.80

634,50

2,730.28

304.45

75.00

446.70

691,40

40.55

140.02

387.49

80.00

75.00

3,771.00
TTZTSZS5ã

Zenith lnsurance Company Worker's Comp Final Audit (511 120-4130121)

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $125,829.52 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

0 oe
Date

a

*Prepaid

ger

Page 3 of 3 Disbursement - Dated August 5,2021



Ð'SBURSEMEAJTS . DATED AUGUST'Í2, 2021

Date Prepared 8110121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R"

90405.

90406*

90404*

90407*

90408.

1 All Star Rents

Alpha Analytical Labs

Arrow Benefits Group

A.S.T.I

Buck's Saw Service

Carbone, Mary Christine

DataTree

Deboi, Jeffrey

9 Direct Line lnc

10 EKI Environment & Water, lnc.

Net Payroll PPE7l31l21

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE7l31l21

State Taxes & SDI PPE7l31l21

Unemployment Claim Quarter 4101-6130121

Pension Contribution PPE 7131121

Business License for WA State for Remote
Employee ($92¡, Emergency Towing for District
Vehicle Accident ($54+¡, GFOA-V|rtual
Conference ($535), Thermometer Recalibration
Service ($1+Z¡, User License for Bluebeam
Software ($++0¡, Zoom for Board Meetings
($42¡, American Council of Engineering
Reference Book ($98) & Lab coat (2) ($78)

Propane (5 gal)

Lab Testing

July Dental Expense

Fire Service Testing 7120-7121121 (25)

Small Tools Gas ($130) & Chain File

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

July Subscription to Parcel Data lnfo

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

August Telephone Answering Service

Prog Pymt#8: Prepare 2020 Urban Water
Management Plan Update (Final Payment)

Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank Card

$153,302.58

68,813.19

15,469.58

106.95

39,263.78

2,034.72

20 34

270.00

6,565.10

2,555.00

159.87

100.00

100.00

400.00

255.25

2,667.60

2

c

4

5

6

7

I

"Prepaid Page I of4 Disbursements - Dated August 12,2021



Seq Pavable To For Amount

14

11 Electrical Equipment Co

12 Fell, Justine

Ferguson, Marcee

Foley, Matthew

13

15

16

17

'18

19

21

23

Capacitors for Aerators @ STP (8) ($108) &
Breaker for Small Pump Station ($1 ,1 15)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Chlorine Reagents (1,000) (STP)

Reference Cultures (Lab)

Level Sensor for STP

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Deferred Compensation PPE 7131121

Parts & Materialfor E/M

Encroachment Permit (300 Montego Key)

Misc Paving

Novato "Water Smad Landscape Efficiency
Rebate" Program

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Novato ($1,352) (750) & Point Reyes ($609)
(150) Annual 2021 Water Quality Reports

Deferred Compensation PPE 7131121

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

1,223.06

125.00

250.00

100.00

348.99

38.92

269.78

301.93

678.12

75.00

8,779.41

442.66

448.54

361.31

635.49

71,860.48

32.94

75 00

1,961.66

1,020.00

657 09

Friedman's Home lmprovement Parts for O.M. Transfer Pump ($233) &

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies
($116)

Grainger

Hach Co.

ldexx Laboratories

lnstrumart

Kozik, Francis

Lincoln Life

Maltby Electric

County of Marin

Marin Reprographics

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Color Scanning Services (95) (Office/Yard
Building Refurbish)

25 Marin Pool Service Replacement Check: Original Lost it Mail
(Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter
Less Final Bill)

20

22

24

26

27

28

29

30

31

Mclellan Co, WK

McMahon, Kay

McQuinn, Sue

MSI Litho

Nationwide Retirement Solution

North N/larin Auto Parts

*Prepaid Page 2 of 4 Disbursements - Dated August 12,2021



Seq Pavable To For Amount

32

34

36

3B

33

35

37

Recology Sonoma Marin July Trash Removal

Office Depot

Parkinson Accounting Systems

Pini Hardware

Pipette.com

Prunuske Chatham lnc

Quadient, lnc.

R & B Company

Rice, Kimberly

Rieger, Minda

Rotary Club of Novato-Sunrise

Andrew Sims & Ako Walther

South Bay Foundry

Stone, Norman

Syar lndustries lnc

Thatcher Company of California,
lnc.

T & T Valve & lnstrument lnc

Underground Service Alert

Office Supplies

Annual Maintenance on Accounting Software
(811121-7131122) ($6OO¡ & July Accounting
Software Support ($293)

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Service on Pipette Equipment (Lab)

Prog Pymt#11: Leveroni Creek Embankment
Repair (Balance Remaining on Contract
$14,093)

September Postal Meter Rental

Bolts (500) ($1,194), Nuts (100), Couplings (5)

($1,719), Flanges (4) ($369), Hydrant
Extensions (10) ($1,356), Nipples (80) ($2,832),
Corp Stops (25) ($1 ,411), Tee ($265) & Pipe
Joiner ($1,OAO¡

Refund of Deposit/New Development/WC
Restriction-Novato

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Annual Dues (Mclntyre) (7121-6122) (Budget

$1 50)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Valve Caps (1 18)

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Sand (15 yds)

Ferric Chloride (20 tons)

Rebuild Parts for STP Filter Valves

Regulatory Cost for 2020 California
Underground Service Alert Tags (3,343)

Pipe for Hydrant Locks

303.32

892.50

671.98

151.00

2,627.50

143.09

10,325.83

541.78

1,000.00

75.00

162.00

100.00

2,778.25

75.00

932 54

14,197.63

628.71

4,668.17

104,78

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

4B

49

50

*Prepaid

Van Bebber Bros
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Seq Pavable To For Amount

51 Verizon Wireless

Verizon Wireless

Cellular Charges: Data ($1 ,177), Airtime ($1S+¡

& iPads for Asset Management ($200)

July SCADA & AMI Collectors ($6SO¡

1 ,510.98

810.84

75.00
T,4T4þ4F,.Zï

52

53 Wendt, Marc Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $424,545.24 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

08/tt Ooa
r-Controller Date

Date
e-

r

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated August 12,2021
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To:

From:

Subject

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator

Summer 2021 Drought Mailer
V:\l\¡emos to Board\Summer 2021 Drought Mâ¡ler'doc

August 13,2021
gb

RECOMMENDEDACTION: lnformationOnly

FINANC|ALIMPACT: lncludedinFY202ll22Budget

The Summ er 2O2l Drought Mailer (mailer) is attached for your information (Attachment 1).

This mailer focuses on the water use prohibitions and conservation tips to help get through this

drought period in the Novato Service Area. lt is expected to be distributed to around 25,000 postal

customers in the three zip codes that encompass the Novato Service Area (94945, 94947, and

g4g4g). This is an increase of 7,000 additional pieces distributed compared to the Waterline news-

letter quantity we send out due to the Waterline being sent to specific customer addresses (with du-

plicate customers purged), while this will be sent to all postal recipients in the three Novato zip

codes. The mailer is expected to be dropped on the week of August 23'd. A similar mailer is being

produced for the West Marin Service Area and is expected to be mailed shortly after the Novato

mailer.
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Be a good neighbor.
Tips to help reduce your water 
usage during the drought.

For more info visit nmwd.com/drought

Water your landscape 
efficiently. Follow new rules 
for when you can irrigate! 
(See reverse.)

Turn off the water while 
you lather, shave, or brush 
your teeth.

Replace an inefficient toilet 
with a new high-efficiency 
model (rebates available).

Find and fix leaks! Check 
your WaterSmart portal 
and/or water meter regularly 
and perform a toilet dye test.

Don’t run the dishwasher 
or washing machine unless 
they are full.

Sweep off patios, decks, 
sidewalks and driveways 
with a broom rather than 
a hose.

Get a rebate of up to $800 
per household for replacing 
lawn areas with low water 
use landscape.

Re-landscape with low 
water use plants. Look for 
the “water smart plant” label 
at local nurseries.



New Drought Rules
The Novato Service Area is required to reduce water use by 20% 
compared to the same period last year. The following mandatory 
measures are now in effect:

Gutter Flooding
Unreasonable irrigation overspray or run-off 
to the curb or gutter is prohibited. 

Swimming Pools
There are new prohibitions about filling new 
swimming pools and refilling drained pools 
during the drought. 

Water Leaks
Check for leaks in your home! Leaks must 
be fixed no later than 3 days after being 
found.

Water Fountains
Operating a decorative water fountain that 
does not recirculate water is prohibited.

Washing Vehicles
You must use a hose with an automatic 
shut-off nozzle when washing vehicles, 
trailers, and boats. 

Serving Water
Dining establishments will only bring 
customers a glass of water upon request.

Washing Paved Areas
Don’t use potable water to clean paved areas. 
Instead, use a broom to keep your patios, 
decks, sidewalks, and driveways clean. 

Landscape Irrigation
Novato customers may only use 
overhead/above ground irrigation up to 
three days per week. 

Odd numbered street addresses may water 
Monday, Wednesday, Friday.

Even numbered street addresses 
may water Tuesday, 
Thursday, Saturday. 
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James D. 'Jim' ßritz - Obituary

1924 - 2021

Jim only made it to 97 years, but he was certain he would live to be 100, jesting, he

attributed the Fritz family's longevity to "the cryogenic effects if growing up

swimming in the frigid waters of Lake Superior." Jim Fritz passed away in Napa,

California.

Jim was born outside Montreal, Wisconsin to Don and Ruby Fritz. Jim lived in
Novato, where he worked as Chief Engineer with North Marin County Water District.
He was a member of St. Francis of Assisi Episcopal Church where he sang with the

choir, and was a dedicated member of Novato Rotary and founder of Rotary Club of
Novato Sunrise.

He leaves his wife, Beatrice Abbate; and his four children, Don, Laura, Susan and

David. He has five grandchildren. He was preceded in death by his wife of 57 yearc,

Marti Fritz.

Jim had a passion for the arts. He was a woodcarver, carpenter) arr accomplished
pianist, and sang in choirs internationally. He will be remembered most for his
photographs, which he developed and printed. They are evocative of his love of
nature, architecture, and candid moments of people. These images were collected on

his extensive world travels. He inspired many of his friends and relatives to pursue

travel, education, and community involvement.

Community was vital to Jim, from international projects bringing water to
underfunded neighborhoods, to local engagement. His favorite Rotary project was

Fishing in the City, where young children are introduced to fishing as a means to learn

about the importance of nature.
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Jlrn FnHta Heaves NMWÐ

JIM FRITZ

Jamcs D. Fritz. has finishcrl
l¡i.ç last rvork ilay for thc Nortlt
Mari¡r Watcr Dist¡ict aftcr nlorc
than 25 ycars.

Friu,, who rcccivcd his civil
cnginccring degrea from thc
University of Wisconsint \Yas
hircd in 1964 as a Scnior En-
gincer a(tcr first having worked
I I ycars as an engincer witJt
East Bay lr{unicipal Utility Dis-
uicu He bccame Nortlr Marin's
Chicl Enginccr in 1969, and was
also dcsignatcd as ofliccr of thc
Disrrict.

As thc engincer-in-chargc,
Frie h¿s playcd an instrumcnul
rolc in the planning, dcsign and
const¡uçtion o[ watcr faciliúes
for thc Novato a¡ea which he
saw grow from 18,000 con-
sumcrs to 53,000.

Hc ¡lso dcsigncd facilities for
he Di ric 's Wes lvlrrin servics

arcas which includc the [¡oint
Rcycs watcf systcm and the
Oceana Marin and Tomales
scwcr s),stcms. He has playcd a
viral role in hclping achieve thc
higlr suandards and reliable scr-

vice whích are hallmarhs of
Nonh Mairn Water.

In tfte capacity of Chicf En-
ginccr, Fritz. with diplomacy'
and faimcss, ca¡ried ou¡ thc Dis-
rrict's long sunding policy that
new growth pay iu own way
and hc gained the respcct of
dcvcloprnent engincers and en-
ginccrs in othcr govcfimcnt
agencics and udlities.

Jim and his wife, Marty, are
long-tirne Novatû residcnts.
They havc been active in locat
service organizations and in-
volved in many cûrnmunity âc-
tivides ranging from local opcra
to coostruction of scnior citiecn
projccs by the Novato Rotary.

Mr. Fritz.was rcccntly
' onore' aa a ^aÍewe" 'inncr

hostcd by his co-workcrs and at"
tcnded by 95 guese, including
many of his fricnds, as well as
his daughtcn l¡ura and Susan,
son David, and tlicir families.



Marin county drought tracker

Ðtl urin $nùrpnrùrnt $otrnrl

The Marin CounQ Drought Tracker features wøter supply and water conservatíon
numbers for Marin Municipal Water Distríct, North Marin Water District and
Sonoma Water.

Marin Municipal Water District

Total reservoir supply as of July 30 4I.2o/o;32,787acrefeet Average water supply for
July 30: 79.3%;63,072acrefeet Water conservation July 23to July 29*:24% (1%
decrease from prior week) MMWD's mandated conservation target:40Yo

North Marin Water District

Stafford Lake water supply as of July 29 40o/o; I,699 acre-feet Average water supply
for July 29(since 1994): 60%; 2,59}acre-feet Note: NMWD fed about l,1OOacre-feet
of Russian River water into Stafford Lake from February to April. Novato water
conservation as of July 25**: 22o/o (IYo decrease from prior week) Novato mandatory
conservation target:20o/o West Marin water conservation as of July 25***:37%o (no

change from prior update) West Marin mandatory conservation target:25Yo

Sonoma Water

(supplies 25Yo of MMWI)'s supply andTíVo of NMWD's supply) Lake Mendocino
supply: 3I.9%;25,4}4acre-feet Lake Sonoma supply: 50.1%;722,B}lacre-feet *

conservationYo is based on collective use compared to three-year ayerage water use

for this time period for 2018-2020 ** Novato conservation Yo compared to June

2020water use x** West Marin conservation%o compared to water use in June 2013,

the last normal water year

Sources: MMWD, NMWD, Sonoma Water
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1r081-home plan draws concerns
NOVATO

Size, water use, traffic issues raised over Fireman's Fund site

$tt nrin $nùrprnùsd Journul

By Will Houston

h.ous ln. cotn

Developers seeking to transform one of Marin County's iargest commercial properties
into a 1,081-home neighborhood received mixed reviews this week from cify residents
during the project's first public hearing.

Bay West Development is proposing the housing on the nearly 65-acre former
Fireman's Fund Insurance Co. campus aI 177 San Marin Drive in Novato. The
campus, the largest non-retail commercial properly in the county, has been vacant
since the insurer moved to Petalumain2015.

The San Francisco-based developer and the Colorado-based Forum Investment Group
purchased the campus in a joint venture in January from DW Partners, a firm in New
York City. The owners declined to disclose the sales price, but records from the Marin
County Assessor-Recorder's Office indicate the price was in the range of $28 million.

A recurring concern voiced by attendees at the virtual community meeting held on
Thursday wening was that the number of proposed homes was too large. The ongoing
drought prompted several speakers to raise concerns about whether the
redevelopment would demand too much water supply, while others expressed

concerns about parking and traffic.

"We know that the property will be developed. My comment is density is way too
high," Novato resident Bill Wolff told the developers.

Novato resident Seth Shorett said the housing density "strikes the right balance" for
the size of the property. I{owever, Shorett and others questioned whether the
developers plan to incorporate some commercial space into the plans, given that the
campus is one of the last remaining commercial sites in the city.
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"Novato has a dearth of commercial space and is way out of balance in commercial
space versus residential," said Shorett, a board member for the Novato Chamber of
Commerce.

If built, the development would make a sizeable dent in the city's state-mandated
housing development targets. The Association of Bay Area Governments is proposing
Novato build more than 2,000 new homes priced at various levels between 2023 and
203r.

Bay West partner Pete Beritzhoff and associated landscaping and design contractors
addressed questions raised at the meeting and provided more granular details about
their proposal. They released their conceptual plan last week.

"Our intention is to always take a methodical approach here and start with some

strong feedback from the community and design review before we advance our pIan,"
Beritzhoff told the attendees. "We will be using what we learned tonight as we take
the next steps."

About 35 acres of the site would be developed into for-sale homes and rentable
apartments divided among eight blocks. The conceptual plan includes 161 two-story
detached homes on three blocks at the western side of the properfy.

The eastern side of the property, closer to transit and Highway 101, would have
buildings of two to five stories containing apartments and potential senior housing.
That part of the project would have 921 residences.

The site would be graded so that smaller single-family homes would be at the highest
elevation and the taller apartment buildings ranging up to 55 feet would sit at a lower
elevation.

The three offioe complexes and the artif,rcial pond on the campus would be removed.

Novato city code would require 20o/o of the homes to be priced at affordable leveis,
though the city can also waive this requirement if the developer agrees to pay a fee.

Open space would make up about 26 aues, mostly on the perimeter, and would
include new amenities such as gathering spaces, play areas and trails connecting to
Mount Burdeil that will be available to the general public.

Bertizhoff disagreed with concerns that he was proposing too many homes, especially
given the property's proximity to public transit options such as the Sonorna-Marin
Area Rail Transit station just across the street.
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"I really don't feel like we're pushing the envelope here," Beritzhoff said.

As for water concerns, city staff said all of the site's landscaping will be watered

using the existing recycied water system on the property. Landscaping makes up

about 50% of Novato's water use during the summer months.

City Planning Manager Steve Marshall said all deveiopment projects are referred to
the city's supplier, the North Marin Water District. While he acknowledged the

drought is a concern for the city, Marshall also said the project is several years from
beginning construction and that the city may have other supply options by that time.

The North Marin Water District is planning to study options for new water supply
sources for Novato this year in response to historic dry conditions.

Additionally, traffic studies will be performed to address impacts to roads such as San

Marin Drive, Marshall said.

While Bay West Development has not reieased the number of parl<ing spaces it plans

to include, Beritzhoff said it will meet state mandates.

"'We are highly in tune to what the market needs from a parking standpoint and we'll
be providing it while meeting the rule o1'the law here," he said.

State housing laws in recent years do allow certain developments to provide fewer
parking spaces if certain conditions are met, such as being close to public transit
options.

However, some residents raised concerns about the developers not providing enough

spaces and assuming that residents in the apartment buildings would rely on the
SMART train for their cornmute.

More information about the proposal and upcoming meetings can be found
atbit.lyl3ydruXX
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Supervisor touts conservøtion, growtlt amid wuter sltortøge

Marin Voice

pttudn Snùrprnùenf f, ournul

By Dennis Rodoni

Water supply is a complicated issue in California and throughout the West - even

when there's no drought.

This year's drought reminds me of 1976-77, when all of us placed bricks in our toilets
and made lifestyle changes to save water. Some say this year is the driest in Marin
County in 150 years.

During my 20 years on the North Marin Water District board of directors, I learned
that nothing is for certain and good planning is necessary to have an effective
response to any emergency. Marin Municipal V/ater District and North Marin Water
District, along with the Sonoma County Water Agency, have done just that with
excellent water-reducing programs and rebates through the initiative known as the
Sonoma Marin Water Saving Partnership.

They also pianned for this drought by increasing our recycled water supply to offset
potable through their work in the North Bay Water Reuse Authority. In the North Bay,
we now produce up to 5,000 aore-feet per year, or 1,800 million gallons, of recycied
water. One acre-foot of water per year is enough to serve two or three single-family
homes. In Marin, 1,500 acre-feet of recycled water is produced, saving 500 million
gallons of potable water. Millions of dollars have been invested in this water option
and we can expand its uses.

Both conservation and recycled water increase the supply of water by rcducing
demand or providing an alternative. What we haven't been abie to do is identify
additional supply for our potable water. lJsing financial resources on raising dams,

developing wells or building a desalination plant are often considered when we have a

drought, but lose support when the drought ends. And there are tremendous

challenges, environmental risks, and hefty costs in undertaking those efforls.

I am a big fan of having as many solutions in the toolbox as possible, including
anything that produces more water, but the reality is that we must live within our
current supplies short of buying more rights to Russian River water, piping in water
from the East Bay or desalination.
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So how do we do that? Collectively, we waste a lot of water in our homes, mostly in
our landscapes. We often fail to fix a leak, rarely check out irrigation systems for
problems and overwater most of our plants. 'faking advantage of rebates and
conservation has cut our per-capita water use by 35o/o compared to the state's 20o/o

reduction targetby 2020, and there is still more room to improve.

Secondly, all water districts need to switch to real-time monitoring of water usage.
The technological capacity is available, and we must use it. Real-time meter
monitoring and other solutions are readily available and already being used in some
aÍeas of Novato.

Recycled water and the purple piping used for recycled water need to be expanded
and required in every new development. And landscaping should only be allowed if it
is served by recycled water, with an exception for food production. This should
include requirements to use recycled water in toilets in commercial and large
residential developments.

Flomeowners should consider installing a catchment tank to collect roof runoff. It
takes just one good storm to fìll a 2,500-gallon tank. That water should be used for
vegetable gardens, washing patios or walkways, and in an emergency for potable
water.

Part of being a sustainable community is continuing to provide well-paid jobs and
housing to support those jobs. The drought should not stop us from building new
housing for seniors, affordable housing for lower wage workers and general
workforce housing. Those developments should be designed to be water efficient with
very little landscaping and other outdoor water usage. Right now, new developments
in Marin are prohibited from using the potable water supply on landscaping or
required to use recycled water if they do install landscaping.

The Marin and North Marin districts say that less than lYo of their water supply goes

to new development. T'his is a small sacrifice for sustaining our local economy.

I think we can afford a small increase in water demand to save jobs, create housing
and sustain Marin's economy. f)on't you? District 4 Supervisor Dennis Rodoni is
president of the Marin CounQ Board of Supervisors and previously served 20 years
on. the lt'lorth Marin Water District Board of Directors.

Recycled water and the purple piping used for recycled water need to be expanded and
required in every new clevelopment.
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tltilities consider rationing of water
WEST MARIN

$tlurin $nùrprnùBnf $ournnl

By Will Houston

v, h o u s t o n.@,tn ar inü . c o nt

Thousands of West Marin residents could soon be placed under mandator¡r water
rationing rules enforceable through service shutoffs and fines as large as $500.

The Stinson Beach County Water District will consider an ordinance on Aug. 21 that
would limit households to a l25-ga11on allotment per day if supplies dip low enough.
The Inverness Public lJtility District will consider adopting its own rationing rules on
Aug. 25 but has yet to define what the allotment could be. Both communities follow
the lead of Bolinas, which has been under a water rationing watch since February.

Inverness experienced its driest year on record in 2020-21, receiving only 15 inches of
rain when it would normally get an average of 38 inches. The district, which serves
1,100 people, relies almost entirely on water from seven creeks on the Inverness
Ridge for its supply.

"A couple of them are virtually dry no'w," said Wade Holland, the district's customer
services manager. "It's troubling."

On Monday, the Inverness district enacted its first-ever mandatory water restrictions
that prohibit all outdoor uses of potable water, including sprinkler systerns, drip
irrigation, refilling pools and washing cars. Residents are still able to use a hose

nozzle or watering can for spot watering. Violations can result in a misdemeanor
charge with fines ranging from $1,000 to $10,000 and up to 30 days in jail.

The creeks that replenish the district's 10 storage tanks have dried out more quickly
than anticipated, Holland said. While creek flows normally would keep the storage

tanks at or near their full 440,000-ga11on capaciTy, the tanks are now only f,rlling up
75Yo and dropping lower every week.

"It doesn't take long to get to the point where you're just empty," Holland said.
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While residents have significantly cut back their water use, the creek flows are not
rneeting daily demands. The district is having to tap emergency wells as a result just
to keep up, Holland said.

Water demand for the entire system in July was 63,100 gallons per day, down from
103,300 gallons. The water district supplies also have had more demand as a result of
the pandemic when weekend homes began to be occupied full time, Holland said.

How long the district has until it could run out of water is not clear, Holland said

"It's impossible to predict," Holland said. "There is no historical model."

To avoid this outcome, the district is in early talks to obtain supplemental water
supplies. While Holland declined to provide more details, he said the discussions do
not include trucking in water.

"We are looking to get supplemental water into the system itself," Holland said.

The Stinson Beach Counfy Water District and the 2,000 residents it serves rely
entirely on the Easkoot Creek watershed off Mount Tamalpais for supplies.

Being on the coastal side of the mountain provided enough rainfall to keep supplies
ample for now, said Ed Schmidt, the district general manager, but that could change in
the coming months, especially in the case of another dry winter. The district received
just 13 inches of rain in2020-21, nearly 600/obelow its average of 32 inches.

"'W.e're so fortunate here but we want to be prepared to do a mandate of I25 gallons
per day," Schmidt said.

l'he district board is expected to vote on the rationing rules at 9:30 a.m. Aug. 21. The
ordinance, which is nearly identical to the one the district adopted in 2014 during the
2012-2017 drought, would require homes to use an average of 125 gallons per day.
This equates to about a 20o/o reduction in average water use and is the same amount
that residents in Bolinas are being asked to use, Schmidt said.

Water use would be tracked monthly. Households that use more than their allotment
would receive a warning letter, followed by fines of $100 to $500 and potentially
water service shutoffs if fines are unpaid. Additionaliy, the district will be charge

$ 100 for every 7 48 gallons of water that a household uses over its allotment.
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I-Iouseholds with four or mo1'e people can apply to increase allotments to 145 to 185
gallons per day depending on the number of residents. Businesses are being asked to
voiuntarily reduce water use by 20%.

While the ordinance would officially tal<e effect on Sept. 1, the rationing will only
kick in if the district's water storage drops to 70%o or below its capacity.

'Ihe district uses five wells to pump water and can store up to 1.25 million gallons at a
time. As of Monday, the district's storage was at 85a/o and has remained consistent,
Schmidt said.

"In the last two months, not one day have we gone down to 70o/o of our storage,"
Schmidt said. "We think that the water supply, if and when it does drop, it will drop
slowly."

Meanwhile, the district is looking for new sources of water, including new wells and
exploring the potential of a small portable desalination plant in the long term.

In Muir Beach, the local water supplier enacted a 25%o conservation mandate on July
72 for the nearly 340 residents it serves.

"This is the earliest we have gone to our mandatory conservation," said Mary Halley,
manager of the Muir Beach Communify Services District. "Last year, it didn't even
get triggered until mid-September. Sometimes it won't be until October or
November."

The small coastal community relies entirely on groundwater pumped alongside
Redwood Creek. The district is able to store about 300,000 gallons at a time in two
water tanks, which is enough to last about two to three weeks of demand.

When the district enacts mandatory conservation, measures is determined by
Redwood Creek. The mandate tal<es effect once the creel< starts to dry to the point that
it is no longer a continuous flow but instead clisconnects into pools.

The district regularly monitors its wells and is currently installing a system that will
allow it to do so automatically rather than manually, Halley said. How much longer
the groundwater supplies will last is unclear, however, and the district will adapt to
changes as needed, Halley said.

"'We're all in really new territory here if we don't get rain this winter," Halley said.
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A small stream from Inverness Ridge flows past the Point Reyes shipwreck in Inverness in July 2020. The Inverness

Public Utility District relies almost entirely on water from seven creeks on the ridge.

ALAN DEP - MARIN INDEPENDENT JOURNAL
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Landscaping restrictions eyed for new developments

MARIN MUNICIPAL

Plan would ban grounds needing potable water

plt rrin $rtùrprnùrfi Snuunnl

By Will Ilouston

whouston@marinij.com

Lush green lawns and other thirsty plants might become a thing of the past for new
housing developments in much of Marin County.

The Marin Municipal Water District is proposing to permanently prohibit new
developments in its southern and central Marin service area fiom installing
landscaping that would require potable water supplies. Landscaping using recycled
water irrigation would be permitted under the proposal.

For those unable to access recycled water, the district could allow for the use of low-
water plants.

The district's board enacted similar landscaping rules in .Tuly but limited the duration
to the current drought.

Facing the possibility of depleting local reservoir supplies by next summer after two
dry winters, the district needs a long-term and fundamental shift in how water supplies
ate used, board members said.

"I think we want to have a new policy that new development should be zeronet water
lor outdoors to the maximum extent possible," said Cynthia l(oehler, the board's
president, said at its meeting on Tuesday. "This isn't, we're going to have landscaping
as usual and you're just going to figure out how to do that in an efficient way. 'We

want a completely different approach to landscaping."

District staff plans to return to the board with potential options of what the regulations
could look like, including examples of rules by water districts in arid areas such as

Nevada.

The district is the largest in Marin and serves about 191,000 people. Lanclscape
irrigation makes up about 50Yo of the district's total water use during the summer
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months. The district recently limited outdoor sprinkler use to just one assigned day per
week, enforceable by fines.

District staff did not provide an estimate of how much water savings a permanent

restriction on new landscaping could generate. However, previously reported data

regarding the district's efforts to convince residents to replace turf with more water-
conscious landscaping give some indication.

About 79%o of properties served by the district have turf grass. Earlier this year, the
district tripled its turf replacement rebate fiom $1 to $3 per square foot and has set a
target to have about 0.1 square miles of turf, or about 6Yo of the total turf area in the
district. If this is achieved, the district estimates it would save about lll acre*feet of
water each year, or about 60/o of Itre district's total potable water demand in2020.

Of its target to replace 400,000 square feet of tulf each month, the district replaced
about 36,700 square feet in June and 86,000 square feet in July, according to Carrie
Pollard, the district water efficiency rnarrager.

Board members debated Tuesday about how specific the new restrictions should be or
what exceptions could be included. There was €eneral consensus that ornamental
landscaping used primarily for aesthetics should not be allowed.

Board member Larry Russell suggested that new developers should have to pay to
extend the recycled water pipes to their properties if they plan to install the
landscaping or pay a fee that would aid the district in expanding its system.

"It's time to take a fresh look at this issue and be creative," Russell said

Board members disagreed over whether to allow developers to pay a fee to bypass the
requirement, similar to what some communities allow deveiopers to do to bypass
affordable hous ing mand ates.

Marin County Community Development l)irector Tom Lai said the proposal would be
one method of addressing the competing challenges of providing water to existing
customers while still allowing housing production needed for projected growlh and to
meet state mandates.

"One concern would be that this could increase the cost for new housing development,
particularly on affordable housing, if the development is required to bear the cost of
extending the infrastructure for recycled water," Lai wrote in an email. "This is an

initial impression made without the benefit of seeing any ftnal proposal or adopted

ordinance."
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The proposal also raised questions about what the district will define as fundamental
versus ornamental landscapes and about the potential of creating heat islands -urbanized areas that have higher average temperatures because of a lack of greenery
and a higher concentration of heat-absorbent roads, buildings and other structures.

The district is also drafting potential rules that would suspend most new water service
hookups. The district estimates the water saved during the next year based on current
projects being considered would be about 0.I% of its total annual demand.
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Strict watering rules approved for West Marin
DROUGIIT COI.{CERI\S

NMWD places limits on sprinklers, drip irrigation

$l|urin Snùrprnùrnf $mrnul
By Will Houston

whouston com

About 1,800 residents in West Marin are now limited to turning on their outdoor
sprinklers to one day per week and their drip irrigation to two days per week or face
fines up to $500 under new drought rules adopted this week.

The North Marin Water l)istrict Board of Directors voted unanimously to approve the
stricter watering rules on Tuesday as a way to conserve supplies for Lagunitas Creek
and to comply with an existing agreement with Marin Municipal Water District.

The new restrictions apply to district customers in Inverness Park, Olema, Point Reyes
Station and the Paradise Ranch Estates who are served by three water wells in the
Lagunitas Creek watershed.

'Ihese communities have already been under drought restrictions since early 2020,
which require them to cut back water use by 25%o from July through October. The
previous rules allowed residents to use overhead sprinklers two days per week and

drip irrigation three days per week.

Violations will result in initial warnings followed by lines ranging up to $500 and
potential water service shutoffs for repeat offenders.

Ken Levin, president of the Point Reyes Station Viilage Association, said 'West Marin
is used to difficult dry periods and has supported the conservation measures. West
Marin ratepayers have well exceeded their mandate, conserving by 37% compared to
water use in June 2013.

"We are already conserving and we will eontinue to do so during this unprecedented
drought," Levin said. "Brown is the new green."
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The water district adopted the new restrictions on sprinkler use and drip irrigation in
response to Marin Municipal W.ater District, which adopted similar rules in July.

The two water districts have an agreement in which Marin Municipal Water District
will release water fiom its largest reservoir at Kent Lake into Lagunitas Creek should

North Marin Water District's well pumping cause the creek flows to dip below a state-

mandated level. Part of that agreement requires the West Marin service area to have

similar conservation rules in place as Marin Municipal Water District, said North
Marin Water District General Manager Drew Mc-Intyre.
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Desalination option shelved; focus now on briclge pipeline

MARTN MUNICIPAL

Water district to study feasibility of span project

By Will Houston

whous to n@,marinij. co m

The Marin Municipal Water District is shelving plans to rent two desaiination plants
to avoid the potential depletion of water supplies by next summer and will instead
focus efforts on a pipeline across San Franoisco Bay.

Aside from the desal project's estimated price of $30 million to $37 rnillion, the two
temporary plants the district found would only be able to generate a quarter of its
daily water needs if reservoirs go dry, said Ben Horenstein, the district's general
manager.

"It isn't too attractive if that's your only option," I-Iorenstein said.

By comparison, the proposed 5- to 6-mile pipeline across the Richrnond-San Ral'ael
Bridge could carry the 10 million to 15 million gallons aday the district says would
be needed for vital indoor water uses. The district is looking to buy Central Valley
water that would travel for more than 100 miles through various canals, reservoirs,
water facilities and possibly the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta before reaching the
East Bay and being pumpecl over the bridge to Marin.

The district estimates that the project and the water purchases could cost $60 million
to $88 million, but the pipeline could be a permanent fixture available for future
droughts. The district built a pipeline across the bridge in 1977 when drought
threatened to exhaust the water supply within 120 days.

However, unlike desalination, a pipeline does not guarantee the district will receive
any water. The district is negotiating with several suppliers in the Sacramento Valley
to buy water allotments from sources such as agricultural producers who choose to
fallow their fields.

"'W"e're continuing to talk with them and beginning to fashion what an agreement
would look like in terms of ideally an option agreement where the decision to actually
buy would be at soÍìe point in the future," Ilorenstein said.
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Land is revealed as the water level continues to decrease at Soulajule Reservoir west
ofNovato in West Marin on Thursday.

PHOTO BY ALAN DEP - MARIN INDEPENDENT JOURNAL

Reclaimed non-potable water is used to irrigate the landscaping at Lagoon Park in San Rafael

SHERRY LAVARS - MARIN INDEPENDENT JOURNAL

Whether the pipeline project is actually feasible and whether the district's board
decides to proceed with it is expected to be made more clear in the coming two
months, Horenstein said.

"If for whatever reason there were significant issues in that effort, we certainly have
the opportunity to pivot back to the desal facility," Horenstein said.

The district and the 191,000 residents it serves in central and southern Marin face the
prospect of running out of reservoir supplies as early as June if the upcoming winter is
as dry as the last. The district's seven reservoirs in the Mount Tamalpais watershed
are just 40% full after two consecutive dry winters, including the second lowest
rainfall on record for the winter of 2020-21.

The reservoirs make up 75o/o of the district's water supply, with the other 25Yo coming
from Sonoma Water imports. Those imports have already been reduced by 20%
because of Sonoma'Water's own supply issues at Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma.
Imports could be reduced even more in the coming months if Lake Sonoma levels
drop low enough.

If the district chooses to reconsider desalination, its staff would need to work at a
breakneck pace to acquire the necessary state and federal approvals as well as to have
the facilities to operate it. Aside from that, the desalination option must be approved
by voters.In2010, district customers approved Measure S, which requires the utility
to gain voter approval before it can construct a desalination plant.
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Horenstein said the district has no plans to put a lneasure before the voters

Should the district cross all of these hurdles, the two temporary desalination plants the
district found available in the market are only estimated to produce up to 3.6 million
gallons per day, which is about a quarter of what would be needed.

The water district had previously considered building a permanent desalination
facility in San Francisco Bay and tested two small plants in the 1990s and early 2000s.
A permanent plant could have provided as much as 60%o of the current potable water
demand. However, the idea was shelved in 2010 after water use by residents and

businesses continued to decline.

If the upcoming winter is as dry as the last and no additional water supplies are

available, including a cessation of Sonoma Water imports, Marin residents could
expect draconian conservation mandates.

Under this scenario, all outdoor water use would be banned and residents would be
asked to cut water use by about J}o/o, fiom ar average of l29 gallons per day to as

little as 37 gallons, Paul Sellier, the district operations manager, told the board last
weel<.

"We want to be cognizant of the fact that while we're hoping that this drought is short
term, it could be quite long-term in nature and we have seen that certainly in the past,"
Sellier said. "And so I thini( it's a fair question about sustaining this level of
conservation."

So far, the district's customers have failed to achieve the 40%o conservation mandate
the district set in April. The most recent update shows ratepayers ramped up
conservation to 28Yo this past week.

Ratepayers meeting the 40o/o conservation target is vital not only to stretch out
existing supplies but also to buy some extra time for staff to get any needed
emergency water supply projects in place, Sellier said. Assuming next winter is as dry
as the last, the district's estimation for when it could run out of reservoir supplies
could be pushed from as soon as June to closer to September 2022 if ratepayers
conserve by 40% or fiiore.

"It's got to be part of our DNA, regardiess," Sellier told the board

Water supply forecasts also make it very likely that the conservation mandate will
increase to 50Yo in December. A 50% conservation mandate is triggered when total
reservoir storage levels dip below 30,000 acre-fèet, or about 38o/o, as of Dec. 1. As of
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Friday, total reservoir storage was at 32,129 acre-feet, with forecasts projecting it will
dip below 30,000 later this month or early next.

One other option raised by district board member Larry Bragman last week was using
freight trains to haul Central Valley water to Marin instead of the pipeline.

"I know it sounds a little off the wall, but we possibly could get that going faster than
we could construct a pipeline," Bragman said at the board meeting. "It's just
something that I think should be considered or at least looked into."

Sellier said freight could work in concept but would be very challenging in practice. A
typical freight tank car holds around 30,000 gallons, meaning as many as 500 cars
would be required each day to meet the district's water demands.

"You'd have massive lines of rail cars," Sellier said

Other board members were skeptical, saying the costs could reach as much as $4,000
per acre-foot of water to haul and would require clean tanks. Cynthia Koehler, the
board president, advocated for focusing those dollars on conservation projects such as

turf replacement and expanding recycled water systems.

"That's really where I think I'd rather see us putting our resources as a district before
we're looking atthat kind of thing," Koehler said at the meeting.

A fisherman walks the shoreline of Soulajule Reservoir, well below its normal level for this time of year, west of
Novato on Thursday.
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Voters huve role in Marin Municipal Wuter District sltortøge

ptt urin $nùrprnùDnt $rurnul
Dick Spotswood

The opposition was led by those demanding low water rates with others fearing
ample supply would lead to unwanted residential growth.

The welcome arch across Modesto's main street proclaims, "'W.ater, wealth,
contentment, health."

In essence, water, the first word, directly leads to the following benefits. The same

formula applies to Marin. Now it's the scarcity of water that endangers our county's
ability to enjoy the benefits of wealth, contentment and health.

The entire American West is enduring a drought of epic proporlions. The globe's
climate will only get warmer in the next 50 years. Marin is late preparing for that
eventuality. Doing so isn't impossible but it comes with a hefty price tag and can't
happen overnight.

Semi-arid San Diego County has already accomplished what Marin needs to do. They
have a sufficient water supply that will last until 2045. Marin may run dry next year.

San Diego's water comes from the Colorado River and other secondary sources via
long term contracts plus the agency's pioneering desalination plant in Carlsbad. That
6*acre, $ I billion facility produces 50 million gallons of water a day, about 1 0% of the
need of the county's 3,347,000 residents.

San Diego County Water Authority's water resources lnanager Jeff Stephenson
reports his agency has raised the height of one of its dams. "It was easier than building
a new dam." That action expanded the agency's "carty over capacity" for dry years.

Their Prime Water Project, like a similar Santa Clara County experiment, will recycle
runoff into drinking water, ideally providing 30 to 90 million gallons each day.

The authority and its Z{-member agencies have, like Marin Municipal Water and
North Marin Water districts, aggressively promoted water conservation. The result
was usage decreased by 50% since 1990. IJnlike their Marin counterparts, San

Diego's Water Authority was equally determined to seel< additional supplies and
increased storage capacity .
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That wasn't cheap. San Diego reports some of the highest water rates in California.
The choice is inevitable: either a jurisdiction secures adequate water accompanied by
high rates, or it has inaclequate supplies at relatively inexpensive rates.

With the exception of a just commenced effort to return a water pipeline to the
Richmond-San Rafael Bridge, MMWD has no water source or increased storage
capacity projects under consideration. Conservation is surely part of the puzzle but
further decreasing water use isn't enough.

Supply must be increased

Part of the responsibility for lack of supply lies with MMWD's elected board and
staff. That doesn't excuse the role central and southern Marin voters played.

On rnultiple occasions voters defeated ballot measures to transport more water from
Sonoma. The opposition was led by those dernanding low water rates with others
fearing ample supply would lead to unwanted residential growth. Environmental
activists s cuttled preliminary desalination efforts.

In those days Marin wasn't facing a long-term drought. Like all Americans, Marinites
have short memories. With rationing back, the same public is outraged water district
directors were asleep at the switch.

Both MMV¡D and North Marin Water should examine additional supply options
including desalination. When the professionals make their fìndings and district
ratepayers have their say, water directors must make the hard decisions and not allow
the process to drag on.

An opportunity arises in 2022. Two of the five MMWD board posts are up for
election. Incumbent Jack Gibson represents San Anselmo, Terra Linda and North San

Rafael. He's completing 24 years on the job. Board President Cynthia l(oehler's
constituents are in Mill Valley, Sausalito, Marin City and Tamalpais Valley. She'll be

finishing her fourth four-year term.

Both are dedicated public officials and are committed to the status quo

If the incumbents decide to run and are reelected it'll be a vote of confidence in the
agency's current direction. If new qualified candidates emerge, then voters will be
seeking long-term but costly water reliability. Columnist Dick Spotswood of Mill
Valley writes on local issues Sundays and Wednesdays. Email him
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Water district boørd VP mukes case for bridge pipeline

plturin $nùrprnùrnf Smrnul
Marin Voice

By Larry L. Russell

With rainfall and reservoir levels at historic lows, managing our water supply has

never been more critical.

The effects of climate change are here are seeing them firsthand. We have had
two consecutive dry years, and rainfall levels during the past 18 months have been the
lowest we have on record in more than 140 years. As a community, we have faced
drought before and we responded with remarkable conservation efforts that helped
carry us through.

While conserving water remains vital to preserving our current water supply, the
Marin Municipal Water District is answering the call to explore all available options
to supplernent our supply and build resiliency into our system.

Over the past year, Marin Water has increased the volume produced, as well as

improved accessibility to, recycled water through our partnership with the Las
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. We are currently in the process of opening a

recycled water filling station that will be available to all Marin residents. Studies are

underway to locate groundwater sources and to determine the feasibility of caching
flood water to be utilized during dry conditions.

We are carefully assessing long-term options like desalination, and weighing a myriad
of factors including cost, timing, environmental issues and how much additional water
supply each project may provide. l)uring all of this careful consideration, the Board of
Directors has not lost the sense of urgency. Reliably providing high quality water to
our customers is our charge, and it is a charge not taken lightly.

As we continue to evaluate projects to secure additional water supply, constructing a
pipeline across the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge has emerged as a strong option to
increase Marin Water's supply long-term. The pipeline would also create an intertie
into regional water sources, greatly irnproving our resiliency and our ability to
respond to potentially catastrophic events, such as earthquakes.
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To provide the needed water, the district has already taken proactive steps to identify
and seek out agricultural and irrigation district water rights holders who routinely sell
their current entitlements to clients like Marin Water. We are not simply putting
another straw into already strained Delta supplies; this water is allocated and would be
used for agricultural purposes if it were not used by us. We are simply redirecting it to
be available to our customers.

This water would then be transferred through infiastructure facilities owned by other
agencies, including East Bay Municipal Utility District and Contra Costa Water
District, among others. The collaborative spirit and partnership of regional water
agencies has been key to the early implementation of this project. In addition to
working with our water agency partners, the district is working closely with CalTrans
on an expedited construction timeline for the pipeline.

As we move forward in assessing the bridge pipeline, we are carefully weighing the
cost benefit ratio. While exact figures are not yet available, we estimate the cost to be
up to $80 million. Because of our current strong financial position, we believe we can

meet the financial needs a project of this scale will require through a combination of
bond and possible grant funding opportunities, with only a one-time rate increase. We
do not know how much rainfall will occur this winter. We do know that we may not
be able to solely rely on our local water supply to carry us through times of severe
drought.

Securing additional supply does not negate the need to continue to use water as

carefully as possible, however. ln fact, the ambitious timeline we are creating to
achieve this project can only be successful through continued conservation efforts.

Our customers have always answered the call to conserve. Now is the time for the
board to take bold action and ensure we are prepared to face this drought, as well as

others in the future and all potentially catastrophic events (such as earthquakes) by
increasing our water supply and resiliency.

Once again, we are asking you to use as little water as possible during this drought to
help us all get through this crisis . Larry L. Russell of Tiburon is vice president of the

Marin Municipal Water District Board of Directors.

Ihe district has already taken proactive steps to identify and seek out
agricultural and irrigation district water rights holders who routinely sell their
current entitlements.
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Find ways to increase Marin water supply

Editorial

$tt urin $nùrpntùnrf $nurnul

If the Marin Municipal Water District had plans to expand our water supply in
commonsense preparation for a long-lasting drought, it hasn't been evident in its last-
minute scramble to find Írore water.

The district's primary strategy has been conservation, which its customers exercised well
enough to shelf the 2010 plan to build a desalination plant on San Pablo Bay. But now,
faced with a historic drought, the district is asking its customers to cut back their water
use even more - doubling down on conservation.

MMWD customers ate having trouble reaching the district's 40% reduction goal
They've had trouble getting to 30Yo.

It appears that banking on conservation was a risky strategy as MM\ffD officials now
warn its water supply could be tapped out by Septernber 2022 if normal rainfall doesn't
return or if another source of water isn't found.

Officials announced last week that they have taken a hard look at bringing in ships
equipped with desalination plants and have scrubbed that idea. The plants couldn't
generate enough to be worth the cost.

Now, the district is now focusing on building a pipeline to the East Bay to irnport water.
The riskthat strategy faces is this: 'Whathappens if those agencies atthe other end of the
pipeline face similar stresses on their water supply?

The district's decision in 1916 to start bringing in water frorn Lake Sonorna, which today
represents 25o/o of the MMWD water supply, certainly has proven wise. Marin has

outgrown the capacity of its seven reservoirs. Ilut the Sonoma County 'Water Agency is
facing the same drought conditions as Marin. Lake Sonoma is down to half its storage
oapacity and the agency has ordered a20Yo reduction in deliveries, adding to MMWD's
water supply crunch.

The reduction could be increased in the coming months as the level of L,ake Sonoma
drops.

At this point, with desalination shelved - again - MMWD has limited options and
irnporting water from a pipeline across the San Rafael-Riohmond Bridge appears to be
the best one.
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Given the crisis MMV/D and its customers face, every possible option deserves to be on
the table. Conservation needs to be among them, but the district can't gamble that it will
be enough.

This time, the transbay pipeline needs to be a permanent connection and the district is
akeady negotiating with Central Valley water suppliers to tap their supply.

The district's board will be making those decisions over the next two months

The district needs to do more. It needs to take a look at dramatically expanding its storage
capacity. That's long overdue.

Also, the district should aggressively expand its use of reclaimed water for outdoor
irrigation.

That's also overdue.

Placing temporary restrictions on new commercial and residential buildings installing
landscaping - which consumes about half of the district's daily water use - until we
are out of this drought certainly makes sense.

By doing so, the district can reduce the drawdown on its now-limited supply.

Stopping new development by banning new water hookups would be more politically
symbolic than effective in terms of saving water. Projected growth around the county is
expected to have a limited impact on MMWD's water supply, but banning it would create
serious economic hardships, from developers and financiers to construction workers and
suppliers.

What's crystal clear is that MM'WD is scrambling and the district's reliance on outof-
county water - and higher costs - will likely increase.

So, likely, will ratepayers' bills.

Facing a crisis is hardly the most opportune time to be planning and negotiating, but
district board members' decision to bank so much on conservation rather than bolstering
our supply put us in this quandary.

Maybe rain will help us out.

Maybe it won't. It's time to improve the odds that MMWD ratepayers have enough water
to endure prolonged dry spells.
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Website Statistics

Nov
2020

Dec
2020

Jan
2021

Feb
2021

Mar
2021

Apr
2021

May
2021

Jun
2021

Jul
2021

2020/ 21
Visitors

3,869 4,110 5,046 4,677 5,475 6,707 9,676 12,676 11,538



Social Media Followers

Nov-2020 Dec-2020 Jan-2021 Feb-2021 Mar-2021 Apr-2021 May-2021 Jun-2021 Jul-2021

              

Facebook 
 Likes

1,186 1,188 1,186 1,181 1,185 1,183 1,181 1,178 1,181

          

Twitter                
Followers

14 17 21 24 29 28 35 42 44

Instagram 
Followers

414 431 439 457 469 482 497 516 536



NMWD Most Visited Pages

Pages Unique Pageviews % of Total

Home 6,528

Watersmart 3,800

Online Billing 2,317

Emergency Water Conservation Ordinances 1,471

Novato Service Area Drought Guide 975

Drought 562

Save water outdoors 496

Save water indoors 366

Novato Water 353

Contact 350

https://nmwd.com/
https://nmwd.com/account/watersmart/
https://nmwd.com/account/online-billing/
https://nmwd.com/emergency-water-conservation-ordinance-41-amended-for-novato-service-area/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/drought/novato-service-area-guide/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/drought/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/outdoors/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/indoors/
https://nmwd.com/your-water/novato-water/
https://nmwd.com/contact/
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July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

72 people reached | 1 engagement

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

77 people reached | 2 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

68 people reached | 2 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

102 people reached | 8 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

68 people reached | 3 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

75 people reached | 5 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

1069 people reached | 119 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

57 people reached | 3 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

51 people reached | 0 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

96 people reached | 5 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

74 people reached | 7 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

48 people reached | 1 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Facebook

54 people reached | 3 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

72 people reached | 4 engagements



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Twitter



July Social Media Highlights | Instagram

4 likes 4 likes



July Social Media Highlights | Instagram

3 likes 5 likes



July Social Media Highlights | Instagram

3 likes 5 likes



July Social Media Highlights | Instagram

2 likes 4 likes



July Social Media Highlights | Instagram

3 likes



New Website Form: Water Waste Report

New Water Waste Report 
form was published to the 
website, and NMWD staff are 
able to access the reports via 
the secure data system.

The new form was promoted 
via social media in July.



New Website Pages: Drought FAQs

Drought FAQs pages were 
added to the website for both 
the Novato Service Area and 
the West Marin Service Area.



About Section: New Org Chart Added

A new Organization 
Chart was created and 
added to the website 
in July, to reflect recent 
staffing changes.



What’s Next?

30

● New secure forms being added to NMWD.com for Start/Stop Service and Bill 
Adjustment requests

● North Marin Water District supply expansion news story

● Drought Drop-by story 

● Drought ‘New Rules’ and ‘Save Water’ tips continue to be posted on social media

● Photoshoot being planned for August 2021 to get new images for website and 
social media

   



Thank You
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